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Message from our Chairman

This is SciClone Pharmaceuticals’ first annual report after its listing on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. We hope to begin with clarifying our philosophy and
principles so that you can gain better understanding of our company.

| personally admire the principles of Mr. Buffett’'s Berkshire Hathaway Inc..
The first of these principles is also the most important philosophy of SciClone.
"Although our form is corporate, our attitude is partnership. Charlie Munger
and | think of our Shareholders as partners.”! We also think of all the
Shareholders as our partners to create value together.

As a pharmaceutical company, protecting the interests of patients is the
fundamental principle that our decisions are based on. Curing diseases and
relieving pains define our missions. In case of any conflicts between the
interests of patients and those of other stakeholders (including Shareholders),
patients shall have priority. Despite any impact on our short-term performance,
we believe in the long run this principle will best serve the interest of our
shareholders.

| have been working in the pharmaceutical industry in China for nearly 20
years, and have witnessed the rapid development of the industry. | have also
witnessed the growth of many outstanding companies. | believe that the
success or failure of companies all depends on human effort. Although some
companies have distinguished advantages and resources, they ultimately failed
owing to inappropriate practice; on the contrary, some other companies who
have inferior advantages and resources gained success due to proper and
better operations. Despite various challenges in the past, SciClone’s team
strived to accumulate more and more good resources and made full use of

these resources. SciClone only works hard, and never complains.

The trust of patients, shareholders and society shapes the foundation that
our businesses are based on. We will protect our reputation in the same way
as we protect our eyes. We are committed to creating world-class corporate
governance. Our Board of Directors is composed of outstanding international
and domestic entrepreneurs and experts, who are expected to advise us on
corporate governance and development. We believe disclosure in an honest
manner creates the foundation of trust. Our principle is to have empathy with
our shareholders, as we should share what you want to understand about our
company from your prospective, including negative information.

Interested Shareholders may read all of Buffett’s principles through this link: https:/
berkshirehathaway.com/owners.htmi
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We will balance the short, medium and long-term development of the
Company, and regard long-term development as our most important goal.
We will focus on persistently improving our core competency and constantly
enhancing and releasing our long-term intrinsic value, since we believe that the
stock price of the Company will ultimately reflect its intrinsic value.

Our vision is to become a leading international specialty pharmaceutical
company. We will unswervingly engage in the areas of oncology and severe
infections. Over the past year, we have introduced three Phase Ill innovative
products. In the future, relying on the resources of the Board of Directors
and major shareholders of multinational enterprises, we will rapidly enrich
our product line through strategic cooperation with partners and product
development and committed to strengthening our R&D capabilities, especially
those for innovative products. We will take the business opportunities brought
about by medical reform and demand in the future to further enhance our
market position in the specialty medicine industry.

I ' would like to express my heartfelt thanks to our Shareholders, management
team, employees, business partners and customers for their support and
dedication to the Group.

Restart for revival. It is always Day One and everything is possible.

Il. Annual Results of our Company

I am pleased to present our annual results for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Financial Highlights

During 2020, in spite of a challenging operating environment resulted from the
outbreak of COVID-19, which confronted businesses and the macroeconomy with
uncertainties, risks and challenges, our sales of products maintained a strong
growth momentum as we further deepened our market penetration of our key
product Zadaxin through effective lifecycle management, achieved progresses in
the commercialization process of our in-licensed products, Zometa and Angiomax,
expanded our product pipeline, and continued to adopt innovative business models
such as the “Go-to-Patient” model. Our revenue grew to RMB1,918.6 million in 2020
from RMB1,708.1 million in 2019, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.3%.
Our gross profit grew to RMB1,490.5 million in 2020 from RMB1,314.9 million
in 2019, representing a year-on-year increase of 13.4%. Our profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB753.7 million in 2020, as compared
with RMB614.6 million in 2019. Our total comprehensive income for the year was
RMB916.1 million in 2020 as compared with RMB659.9 million in 2019.
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Business Review

We are a biopharmaceutical company with an integrated platform for product
development and commercialization. We strategically focus on some of the largest
and fast-growing therapeutic areas with significant unmet medical needs in China,
primarily including oncology and severe infection. Leveraging our integrated platform,
we strive to develop and commercialize a portfolio of high-quality marketed products,
including our proprietary product, Zadaxin, and pipeline drugs in our focused
therapeutic areas.

Our Business Model and Products

In 2020, we primarily engaged in the sales of (i) our proprietary product, Zadaxin;
(i) our in-licensed products; and (iii) promotion products on behalf of our business
partners in China.

o Sales of our proprietary product, Zadaxin: In 2020, we generated our revenue
primarily from the sales of Zadaxin to Sinopharm in China, which has acted as
our exclusive importer and distributor for Zadaxin in China for approximately
10 years. We continued to expand our innovative “Go-To-Patient” model for
the sales of Zadaxin. For the year ended December 31, 2020, sales through
our "“Go-To-Patient” model contributed to more than 55% of our total
sales volume of Zadaxin during the same period. In 2020, we continued to
manufacture Zadaxin through our CMO partner, Patheon Italia with whom we
have worked since 2002 under a manufacturing and supply agreement subject

to a term of automatic renewal every two years.

° Sales of our in-licensed products:

o Zometa: Zometa is our marketed in-licensed product indicated for
the treatment of patients with multiple myeloma and patients with
documented bone metastases from solid tumors, and hypercalcemia
of malignancy. In February 2020, Novartis transferred to us certain
marketing authorization, domain name, trademark, other intellectual
properties and third-party agreements related to Zometa. We recorded
profit sharing from Novartis as part of other income for its sales of
Zometa in China pursuant to our licensing arrangement with Novartis.
As authorized by Novartis, we began distributing Zometa as the importer
and distributor in certain provinces in China since December 2020 and

thereby began generating revenue from our sales of Zometa.
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o Angiomax: Angiomax is our to-be-marketed in-licensed product
indicated for use as anticoagulant in patients undergoing percutaneous
coronary intervention, including patients with heparin-induced
thrombocytopenia and thrombosis syndrome. For Angiomax, we
entered into an agreement with Huizheng (Shanghai) Pharmaceuticals
Technology Co., Ltd (“Huizheng”) on August 31, 2020, under which
Huizheng was engaged for the promotion and distribution of Angiomax
in Mainland China.

. Sales of promotion products on behalf of our business partners: In 2020,
we continued to sell promotion products for our partner pharmaceutical
companies, such as Pfizer and Baxter, as a promotor and distributor for such
business partners.

Our Product Development

In 2020, we continued to actively engage in the development of our proprietary and
in-licensed pharmaceutical products, focusing on building up a drug portfolio with
strong positioning in high-value and high-growth sectors. In recent years, we started
the development of a number of pipeline drug candidates, focusing on oncology and
severe infection as our primary therapeutic areas. For our in-licensed products, we
generally acquire licenses and get involved in the product development process from
various stages, ranging from IND filing for some of our early-stage pipeline products,
to pivotal clinical trials for some of our late-stage pipeline products. As of December
31, 2020, we had a portfolio of eight pipeline drug candidates, including five late-
stage candidates and three early-stage candidates that have entered into Phase Il
clinical trial or earlier stage.

. Our expansion of our portfolio of pipeline drug candidates:

o) PEN-866: In March 2020, we in-licensed from Tarveda Therapeutics PEN-
866, a selective precision oncology drug candidate treating solid tumors.
PEN-866 is expected to complete its US Phase Il trial in solid tumors in
2022.

o) RRx-001: In June 2020, we in-licensed from EpicentRx, Inc. RRx-001,
a well-tolerated next generation small molecule immunotherapeutic
treating solid tumors. By December 31, 2020, RRx-001 has completed its
US Phase Il trial in colorectal cancer, is expected to launch its US Phase
IIl trial in colorectal cancer in 2021, and is expected to complete its US
phase lIl trial in small cell lung cancer by the end of 2021.

TWAEBEERKABMR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2020 £ & $& &5 ANNUAL REPORT 7
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Naxitamab and Omburtamab: In December 2020, we in-licensed from
Y-mAbs Therapeutics, Inc. two drug candidates, Naxitamab, which
is used to treat high risk neuroblastoma, and Omburtamab, which is
used to treat CNS/leptomeningeal metastasis from neuroblastoma. By
December 31, 2020, Naxitamab has completed Phase | and Phase I
trials in the U.S. and received approval from FDA on Biologics License
Application in November 2020, and we plan to utilize overseas clinical
data for the NDA application in China for Naxitamab. By December 31,
2020, Omburtamab has completed Phase | and Phase Il trials in the U.S.
and Y-mAbs plans to refile BLA for Omburtamab in 2021, and we plan
to utilize overseas clinical data for the NDA application in China for
Omburtamab.

Product development progress of our pipeline drug candidates:

Oravig: Oravig is a miconazole buccal tablet pipeline drug candidate we
in-licensed from BioAlliance, used to treat oropharyngeal candidiasis.
After our completion of the registration trial and passed the data
verification of the sampling test base by the NMPA in September 2019,
we submitted the requested additional data for relevant technical review
in June 2020 and received approval for the license in December 2020.

SGX-942: In December 2020, SGX-942, one of our previous potential
drug candidates, failed to achieve its Phase Ill clinical endpoint. As a
result, we provided full impairment to related intangible assets with the
amount of RMB19.6 million as of December 31, 2020. The impairment
losses were recognized as administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31,
2020. We intended to closely monitor the subgroup analysis of the Phase
Il clinical data of SGX-942, and to continue to develop its other potential
clinical applications.

In 2020, we continued to expand our research and development team. As of
December 31, 2020, our research and development team grew to more than 70
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Sales, Marketing and Distribution

In 2020, we continued to promote our proprietary and in-licensed products primarily
to hospitals and pharmacies through our sales and marketing activities. We sold our
proprietary and in-licensed pharmaceutical products through distributors to hospitals
and pharmacies. Specifically, for our proprietary product, Zadaxin, we procured the
APl from Polypeptide, manufactured Zadaxin through our CMO partner Patheon
Italia based on our sales and production forecast, and recognized revenue through
sales of Zadaxin to Sinopharm, which acts as our exclusive importer and distributor
for Zadaxin in China. In compliance with the “two-invoice system”, after our sales of
Zadaxin to Sinopharm, Sinopharm cleared the products through customs of China as
an imported drug and distributes further to hospitals and pharmacies. Sinopharm's
distribution network of Zadaxin covered 31 provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions in China as of December 31, 2020.

During the year, we kept developing and maintaining our collaboration with
pharmaceutical companies such as our partners Pfizer and Baxter. We promoted
the promotion products we sold for such partners to hospitals and pharmacies
through our sales and marketing activities. Our business partners supplied us
with such promotion products and we imported through SciClone lJiangsu. We
recognized revenue of the sales of promotion products to our distributors through the

distribution network we managed.

In 2020, we further expanded our sales and marketing taskforce. As of December 31,
2020, our sales and marketing team grew to more than 650 employees systematically
deployed to cover approximately more than 2,000 hospitals in China and to capture

the latest market dynamics.

Production and Quality Control

We manufacture our proprietary product, Zadaxin, and our in-licensed products,
Angiomax, through Patheon Italia, an industry-leading, highly reputable CMO. We
outsourced the production of Zometa to Novartis under the Supply Agreement with
Novartis. Our production quality management standards remained complied with
GMP in various markets where we have operations.

Impacts of Significant Policies with Respect to Pharmaceutical
Industry

In 2020, a number of reform policies were frequently issued in China pharmaceutical
industry, and the volume-based procurement remained the most influential one
for the operation of pharmaceutical companies. Bivalirudin, the compound for our
product Angiomax, was listed in the catalog for the fourth batch of volume-based
procurement on December 25, 2020. In the case that thymalfasin, the compound

for our proprietary product Zadaxin, is included in the volume-based procurement

TWAEBEERKABMR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2020 £ & $& &5 ANNUAL REPORT 9
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catalog, Zadaxin may face more intensive competition in sales to public hospitals and
public medical institutions, and consequently, our business, results of operations and
financial conditions will be adversely affected. In such case, we may formulate our
optimal strategy and choose whether to participate in the volume-based procurement
depending on our balancing of various factors including the price level, sales volume
and market shares.

Outlook

Looking into the coming year, we will further leverage our integrated platform for
product development and commercialization in order to capture more opportunities.
Our development measures include continuing to:

° strengthen our marketed product portfolio through effective lifecycle
management, including continuing to accumulate clinical evidence of Zadaxin
in sepsis, immune-oncology and as COVID-19 vaccine enhancement and
investment in clinical studies and new assets;

° expand our pipeline through investment in new assets and clinical studies, such
as the Phase Ill Multi-Regional Clinical Trials of RRx-001 for Small Cell Lung
Cancer with EpicentRx, with accelerated fast-to-market strategy for late-stage
assets and potential first/best-in-class focus for early-stage assets;

. innovate in business model, such as the “Go-To-Patient” model, and enhance
our commercial and development capabilities to drive product growth;

o commit to development of talent and enhancement of our operational

infrastructure to support our future expansion; and

o navigate through external challenges, such as the volume-based procurement,
by orchestrating national and regional taskforce.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to all of
our employees and management for their hard work, strong teamwork and valuable
contribution. | am also thankful for the trust and support that we have received from
all of our shareholders and stakeholders.

Sincerely,

Mr. Li Zhenfu

Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director
Beijing, April 28, 2021
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2020 £ [E] A 2020 REVIEW
BZ12A3MBLEE
Year ended December 31,
2020%F 20194
2020 2019
AREBETRT ARBEET
RMB million % RMB million %

A Revenue 1,918.6 100.0 1,708.1 100.0
AR AR Cost of revenue (428.1) (22.3) (393.1) (23.0)
EF Gross profit 1,490.5 77.7 1,314.9 77.0
SHE REHR X Selling and marketing expenses (456.4) (23.8) (460.3) (27.0)
ITHAY Administrative expenses (216.2) (11.3) (118.4) (6.9)
MR X Research and development (“R&D") expenses (75.4) (3.9) (87.7) (5.1)
E A Other income 139.2 7.3 6.8 0.4
EbFAx Other expenses (75.2) (3.9) — —
Hiblezs,” (F518) 7% Other gains/(losses), net 28.5 1.5 (5.1) (0.3)
REFIHE Operating profit 834.9 43.5 650.2 38.1
BEUA Finance income 11.5 0.6 12.2 0.7
BB A A Finance costs (29.6) (1.5) (1.2) 0.1)
BE (BRA&) SWASES  Finance (costs)/income, net (18.1) (0.9) 11.0 0.6
P8R s A8 Profit before income tax 816.8 42.6 661.2 38.7
TSR Income tax expense (63.1) (3.3) (46.6) (2.7)
KABHEE AES Profit for the year attributable to

FRFHE owners of the Company 753.7 39.3 614.6 36.0
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Revenue

Our revenue increased by 12.3% to RMB1,918.6 million in 2020 from RMB1,708.1
million in 2019. This increase was primarily a result of increases in the revenue from
sales of Zadaxin, promotion products for business partners, Angiomax and Zometa.
The following table sets forth our revenues by products for the years ended December
31, 2019 and 2020.

2020F 12 A31BEFERERE I HKA -
BZ12A3MBLEE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AREBHER ARBEET
PN Revenue RMB million %  RMB million %
=Byl Zadaxin 1,568.2 81.7 1,349.3 79.0
REBEIERHEE Promotion products for
HEEMR business partners 336.3 17.5 314.3 18.4
DC Bead DC Bead 8.1 0.4 44.4 2.6
ZHE Angiomax 1.3 0.1 — —
B Zometa 4.7 0.3 — —
= Total 1,918.6 100.0 1,708.1 100.0
H A Zadaxin

HALERMHBEBER - BMR -+
A+ ERDFEE B A I 1996 4 &
EREMBEITHEE  c BRI EERA
H2019F M ARB1,3493FE T MAR
2189 H B T 3 16.2%E 2020 F th A R ¥
1,568.2B 87T c BHMHE B LEANIKA
EMHEEZHR BRI TEZRKEM(AR

B LA A B A R TR B 0 BR FR U8 BECOVID-19
ZERZE) -

Zadaxin is our proprietary product. We developed Zadaxin in the early 1990s and
obtained the approval for its sales in the China market in 1996. Revenue from sales of
Zadaxin increased by RMB218.9 million, or 16.2% from RMB1,349.3 million in 2019
to RMB1,568.2 million in 2020. The increase in our revenue from sales of Zadaxin
was primarily due to the increase in market demand for Zadaxin as a result of various
factors including Zadaxin’s use in the prevention and clinical treatment of COVID-19
in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Promotion products for business partners

Our promotion products for business partners include Farlutal, Methotrexate, and
Estracyt, which we promote and sell for Pfizer, and Holoxan, Mesna and Endoxan,
which we promote and sell for Baxter. Revenue from sales of promotion products
for business partners increased by RMB22.0 million, or 7.0% from RMB314.3 million
in 2019 to RMB336.3 million in 2020. The increase in our revenue from sales of
promotion products for business partners was primarily due to the increase in sales
volume of promotion products for business partners.

DC Bead

DC Bead is a microbead used in Transarterial Chemo-Embolization for liver cancer
treatment. Revenue from sales of DC Bead decreased by RMB36.4 million, or 81.9%
from RMB44.4 million in 2019 to RMB8.1 million in 2020. The decrease in our
revenue from DC Bead was primarily due to the discontinuation of our DC Bead
business on April 30, 2020 pursuant to the termination agreement we entered
into with Boston Scientific after Boston Scientific’'s acquisition of BTG plc., which

previously owned DC Bead.

Angiomax

Angiomax is our to-be-marketed in-licensed product, indicated for use as an
anticoagulant for use in patients undergoing percutaneous coronary intervention
including patients with heparin-induced thrombocytopenia and thrombosis syndrome.
Revenue from sales of Angiomax increased from nil in 2019 to RMB1.3 million in
2020, primarily due to the start of our sales of Angiomax in the fourth quarter of
2020 for promotion preparation.

Zometa

Zometa is our in-licensed product, indicated for the treatment of patients with
multiple myeloma and patients with documented bone metastases from solid tumors,
and hypercalcemia of malignancy. Revenue from sales of Zometa increased from nil in
2019 to RMB4.7 million in 2020, primarily due to the start of our sales of Zometa in
December 2020.

TWAEBEERKABMR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2020 £ & $& &5 ANNUAL REPORT 13
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Cost of revenue

Our cost of revenue increased by 8.9% to RMB428.1 million in 2020 from RMB393.1
million in 2019. The increase in our cost of revenue was mainly due to: (i) product
costs increased which was in line with the increase in the sales of Zadaxin and
promotion products for business partners; and (ii) the increase in transportation
and freight cost caused by a decrease in flights between Italy and China due to the
outbreak of COVID-19.

The following table sets forth our cost of revenue by amount, as a percentage of total

cost of revenue and as a percentage of total revenues for the years indicated:

BE12A3MBLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20205 20194
2020 2019

ARBEET ERAESE AREEHET RBRABE S

RMB million % % of revenue RMB million % % of revenue
BB AR Product costs 364.5 85.1 19.0 322.6 82.1 18.9
B ERA Warehouse costs 14.8 3.5 0.8 20.2 5.1 1.2
BENA Freight costs 34.5 8.1 1.8 28.4 7.2 1.7
HAh Others 14.3 3.3 0.7 21.8 5.6 1.2
&5t Total 428.1 100.0 22.3 393.1 100.0 23.0
EFIREFE Gross Profit and Gross Margin

BMOEMBA2019FWARE1,31498 &
TLEMARE17558 & 7L 13.4% % 2020
FHARE1,49058 8L MEMHEFE
R2019F R2020F RFMEEHIEBE - 95 5

77.0%K77.7% °

HEREHHX

BMOEEREHEAZA2019FHARE
4603 H & TR 2 0.9%E 2020 F ) A R ¥
456.4E BT - FERBHMNCOVID-19&FIEL™
SHEREBHERIUEREREGHMAY
BHHEBRD -
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Our gross profit increased by RMB175.5 million, or 13.4%, to RMB1,490.5 million
in 2020 from RMB1,314.9 million in 2019, and our gross margin remained relatively
stable at 77.0% and 77.7% in 2019 and 2020, respectively.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses decreased by 0.9% to RMB456.4 million in 2020
from RMB460.3 million in 2019, primarily due to a decrease in market development
and business promotion activities and a decrease in travel and meeting expenses, in
both cases caused by the outbreak of COVID-19.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses increased by 82.6% to RMB216.2 million
in 2020 from RMB118.4 million in 2019, primarily due to several one-off expenses
including (i) a significant increase in listing expenses recognized; and (ii) an increase
in impairment losses in connection with the impairment of intangible assets related
to SGX-942, one of our potential drug candidates which failed to achieve its Phase Il
clinical endpoint in December 2020. In addition, there was an increase in employee
benefit resulted from the share-based compensation expenses. Excluding the one-off
expenses, the increase was in line with the general expansion of our business.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses decreased by 14.0% to RMB75.4 million
in 2020 from RMB87.7 million in 2019, primarily due to reduced research and
development activities in the COVID-19 pandemic.

Other Income and Other Expenses

Our other income increased significantly to RMB139.2 million in 2020 from RMB6.8
million in 2019, primarily due to (i) an increase in licensing income in relation to
Zometa resulting from our licensing arrangement with Novartis; (ii) DC Bead business

termination compensation from Boston Scientific.

Our other expenses of RMB75.2 million in 2020 primarily represented amortization of
intangible assets in relation to Zometa.

Other Gains/(Losses), Net

We had net other gains of RMB28.5 million in 2020, compared to net other losses
of RMB5.1 million in 2019, primarily due to a significant increase in net foreign
exchange gains resulting from fluctuations in the value of USD against RMB in 2020
as we held more foreign currency liabilities than assets as of December 31, 2020.

Operating Profit

As a result of the foregoing, our operating profit was RMB834.9 million in 2020,
compared to an operating profit of RMB650.2 million in 2019.

Finance (Costs)/Income, Net

We had net finance costs of RMB18.1 million in 2020, compared to a net finance
income of RMB11.0 million in 2019, primarily due to a significant increase in interest
expenses on borrowings resulting from interests accrued on the loan borrowed from

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch.
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Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense increased to RMB63.1 million in 2020 from the income tax
expenses of RMB46.6 million in 2019, which was in line with our profit growth during
the year.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year was RMB753.7 million in 2020,
compared to the profit for the year of RMB614.6 million in 2019.

Other Financial Information
Capital Structure

Our total assets grew to RMB2,882.6 million as of December 31, 2020 from
RMB1,845.8 million as of December 31, 2019, whilst our total liabilities grew to
RMB2,570.8 million as of December 31, 2020 from RMB320.6 million as of December
31, 2019.

Liquidity, Financial Resources, and Gearing

We have historically funded our cash requirements principally from cash generated
from operations, and to a lesser extent, equity and debt financing. We adopt prudent
treasury policies in cash and financial management. To achieve better risk control
and minimize cost of funds, our treasury activities are centralized. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in RMB or USD. Our liquidity and
financing requirements are reviewed regularly. We will consider new financing while
maintaining an appropriate level of gearing in anticipation of new investments or

maturity of bank loans.

As of December 31, 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents of RMB1,119.0 million,
which were predominantly denominated in USD. Going forward, we believe that our
liquidity requirements will be satisfied by using a combination of cash generated from
operating activities, other funds raised from the capital markets from time to time and

the net proceeds received from the global offering of the Company.
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As of December 31, 2020, our total borrowings were approximately RMB1,954.5
million, all of which was denominated in USD. The following table sets forth further
details of our banking borrowings as of December 31, 2020:

ARBEHET FilZ=

RMB million Interest rate

AR Secured 1,954.5 MR TEERE
+3¥2.3%

LIBOR plus 2.3%

&t Total 1,954.5 TEA
NA

HE2020F 128310 » BB ERSHIERT
ME O NEANEAREERE - HE2020F
12A31H  BRMMWEEAGBLXR(BERE

BIAEE4AE) 589.2% (B E£2019F12 A 31
B :17.4%) °

= EN- 3

BMMEARY EERFEERAFARABOY
ERREORENRERVEENBES DL -

BN EABXA2019FHARK6EE
TTELZE2020F A RB469.48 87T ° F M
FEIERAAARIKEEMSRESREIREERMN
BREFEARMOFTEIEAFAIREES -

BEAUBRAEZEAREE

HE2020F12A31HIEFE  ARRILKE
TEMEARKERIEE -

FHEARE
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As of December 31, 2020, we had no unutilized banking facilities, nor have any
significant contingent liabilities. As of December 31, 2020, we had a gearing ratio
(total liabilities over total assets) of 89.2% (17.4% as of December 31, 2019).

Capital Expenditure

Our capital expenditures principally comprise expenditures for purchases of property
and equipment relating to office use and purchase of intangible assets. Our capital
expenditures changed to RMB469.4 million in 2020 from RMB32.6 million in 2019.
We plan to fund our planned capital expenditures using cash generated from
operations and the net proceeds from the global offering of the Company.

Material Acquisitions and Future Plans for Major Investments

The Company did not conduct any material acquisition or investment during the year
ended December 31, 2020.

Significant Investments Held

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ Report in this annual report, as of December 31,
2020, the Company did not hold any significant investments.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Our subsidiaries operate in Cayman Islands, Mainland China and Hong Kong, and
they are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposure, primarily
with respect to RMB. Foreign exchange risk primarily arises from recognized assets
and liabilities in our subsidiaries in Cayman Islands when receiving or to receive
foreign currencies from, or paying or to pay foreign currencies to business partners.
We manage foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of our foreign
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exchange exposures and try to minimize these exposures through natural hedges,
wherever possible, and may enter into forward foreign exchange contracts, when
necessary. We did not enter into any forward contract or other financial instruments
to hedge our exposure to foreign currency risk in 2020.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As of December 31, 2020, we had over 790 full-time employees, most of whom were
based in mainland China, with the remainder in Hong Kong, United States, Italy, and
the Cayman Islands.

Committed to establishing a competitive, fair remuneration and benefits system, we
continually refine our remuneration and incentive policies in order to ensure that our
employees receive locally competitive remuneration packages. As required under the
PRC regulations, we participate in housing fund and various employee social security
plan that are organized by applicable local municipal and provincial governments.
We also purchase commercial health and accidental insurance for our employees. We
also provide regular and specialized trainings tailored to the needs of our employees
in different departments, so that our employees may stay up to date with the latest
industrial developments and technological advancements. In order to incentivize our
employees, we have granted and planned to continue to grant share-based incentive
awards to our employees in the future to incentivize their contributions to our growth
and development.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In January 2021, we obtained the approval for the commercialization of Oravig in
China from the NMPA.

In January 2021, we completed the transfer of Import Drug License (“IDL") for
Zometa, and became the Marketing Authorization Holder (“MAH") of Zometa in the
PRC.

On January 22, 2021, the Company's shareholders approved and adopted a share
based payment scheme (the “Post-IPO RSU Plan”), under which a total number of
6,689,963 shares of the Company will be issued and granted to certain directors,
officers, and other key contributors and employees of the Group subject to certain

vesting conditions after the Listing.

In February 2021, an aggregate of 6,689,963 shares of the Company were issued and
then directed to SCLN ESOP Management Limited, a company incorporated for the
purpose of holding shares under the Post-IPO RSU Plan in trust for and on behalf of

grantees to be determined after the Listing.
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In February 2021, we participated in the fourth batch of volume-based procurement
for bivalirudin with Angiomax, but Angiomax did not win the bid.

On February 5, 2021, our Board approved our plan to declare a dividend of
approximately USD120.0 million from our consolidated retained earnings as of
December 31, 2020 to our existing Shareholders. We completed the payment of such
dividend with our own cash before the Listing.

On March 3, 2021, the Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, no important events affecting the Company occurred since
December 31, 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Zhao Hong (#3), aged 57, is our executive Director, chief executive officer and
president. He is a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhao
has more than 30 years of experience in the medical and pharmaceutical industry.
Prior to joining our Group, he served as a lecturer of Nanjing Medical University
(FARERIAE) from July 1986 to September 1992, and served in Xian Janssen
Pharmaceutical Ltd. (FAZHRVEEARAF]) from December 1992 to July 1995, a
regional sales manager, national sales director and senior vice president of Beijing
Novartis Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. At RFEZER E2H R A 7)) from July 1995 to February
2011, and an executive vice president of Simcere Pharmaceutical Group (JoE BE3E £
&) from February 2011 to April 2013. Mr. Zhao joined SciClone US in April 2013 and
served as its CEO (China Operations), in charge of its operations in China before the
incorporation of the Company.

Mr. Zhao received his bachelor’'s degree in clinical medicine from Nanjing Medical
University (FIRERIKE) (formerly known as Nanjing Medical College (R R EE
) in July 1986, in Jiangsu province, the PRC. He obtained his Executive Master of
Business Administration (“EMBA") from China Europe International Business School
(PEEIFE TR9E26%) in April 2002, in Shanghai, the PRC.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhenfu, aged 57, is our non-executive Director and the chairman of the
Board. Mr. Li is the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is
the founder of GL Capital Group (f28f& & %), one of our substantial Shareholders, and
has served as its president and chief executive officer since February 2010. Prior to
founding GL Capital Group, Mr. Li served as the China president of Novartis Overseas
Investment AG Beijing Representative Office from June 2004 to January 2010.

Mr. Li also has served as a director of The Nature Conservancy (K B AR EHE) since
September 2009, a director of China Entrepreneur Club (FfEI{ 2 K{E£4EE) since
April 2009, and a vice executive president of Pharmaceutical Chamber of Commerce
of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (%2 B T B B 443 ) since
December 2010.

Mr. Li obtained his bachelor's degree in materials science from Beihang University
(AEEMZEHMAAKE) in July 1986, in Beijing, the PRC, and his master's degree in
metallurgical engineering from lllinois Institute of Technology in December 1988, in
Chicago, the U.S.
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Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella, aged 67, is our non-executive Director. Dr. Vasella has
over 40 years of experience in the medical and pharmaceutical industry. Prior to
joining our Group, from December 1996 to February 2010 Dr. Vasella was chief
executive officer and from February 1999 to February 2013 chairman of the board of
Novartis International AG (New York Stock Exchange: NVS and Six Swiss Exchange:
NOVN). Dr. Vasella served as a director of XBiotech Inc. (NASDAQ: XBIT) from
November 2014 to January 2018.

Dr. Vasella has served as an independent non-executive director of PepsiCo, Inc.
(NASDAQ: PEP) since February 2002 and an independent non-executive director of
American Express Company (New York Stock Exchange: AXP) since July 2012. Dr.
Vasella was appointed as Economic Advisor to Governor of Guangdong Province, the
PRC by the governor of Guangdong Province, the PRC in November 2003. He also
served as chairman of the International Business Leaders’ Advisory Council for the
Mayor of Shanghai (IBLAC) in 2004 and 2005.

Dr. Vasella obtained the FMH Specialty certification in internal medicine in November
1985; he pursued his psychodynamic and psychotherapy training at the University of
Bern and Freudinstitut Zurich from September 1978 to May 1988, the Program of
Management Development certification from Harvard Business School in December
1989; the certified coach qualification from Der Deutsche Bundesverband Coaching
(DBVC) in Germany in June 2014; and the certified coach qualification from “The
Leadership Circle” in September 2016.

Dr. Vasella received Ordem Cruzeiro do Sul from President of Brazil, in 2000,
Harvard Business School’s Alumni Achievement Award from Harvard Business
School, in October 2003, first international award for responsible capitalism 2003
by the archbishop of canterbury, the most Rev & Rt Hon Dr Rowan Williams PC
FBA in December 2003, was entitled the foreign honorary membership of American
Academy of Arts and Sciences in 2008, and Prix Pasteur from the Institut Pasteur, in
France in 2007. Dr. Vasella was adjudged the winner of Golden Peacock Leadership
Award for Corporate Social Responsibility 2010 by the chairman of the Golden
Peacock Global Awards in September 2010.

Dr. Vasella obtained his Swiss medical diploma from the University of Bern in
December 1979, in Bern, the Switzerland, and his doctor of medicine degree from the
University of Bern in October 1980, in Bern, Switzerland. He also received an honorary
doctorate degree by the University of Basel, Switzerland.
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Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien, aged 39, is our non-executive Director. Ms. Lin has
extensive experience in investment and is currently the managing director of private
equity investment department of GL Capital, one of our substantial Shareholders. She
has been with GL Capital since August 2011.

Ms. Lin obtained her bachelor’s degree in management science and engineering from
Stanford University in June 2004.

Ms. Li Quan (Z&), aged 41, is our non-executive Director. Ms. Li is a member
of Audit Committee of the Company. Ms. Li has over ten years of experience in
investment management. Ms. Li served as an executive director of CDH Investments
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, one of our substantial Shareholders, from
December 2010 to May 2017 and has served as a managing director in private equity
department since June 2017, responsible for the management of CDH Fund V.

Ms. Li obtained her double bachelor's degree in cell biology and genetics, and
economy from Peking University (3L 5K 22) in July 2002, in Beijing, the PRC, and her
master’s degree in school of computing in bioinformatics from National University of
Singapore in July 2004, in Singapore.

Mr. Shi Cen (F%), aged 45, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Shi has about 20
years of experience in the field of investment management. Mr. Shi joined Ascendent
Capital Partners (Asia) Limited (_E3E& 7R (Z2)M) BBRA]) in April 2011, and currently
serves as a partner. He currently holds directorships in several companies including
an independent non-executive director of IDG Energy Investment Limited (Hong Kong
Stock Exchange: 0650) since August 2016, and a director of BE Education Ltd. (%
FHBE AR AR since May 2019. Mr. Shi served as an analyst of Goldman Sachs
from November 2000 to May 2003, a vice president of CCMP Capital Asia Pte Ltd.
(formerly known as JP Morgan Partners Asia) from May 2003 to June 2007, a senior
vice president of D. E. Shaw & Co. from June 2007 to March 2011, and a director of
Ningxia Xiajin Dairy Group Company Limited (2B E# I X EBERHBR A A]) from
June 2014 to July 2020.

Mr. Shi obtained his bachelor’'s degree and master’s degree, both in economics, from
Tsinghua University (BZEAZ) in July 1997 and June 1999, respectively, in Beijing,
the PRC.
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Ms. Wang Xiaozhuo (8 =), aged 42, is our non-executive Director. Ms. Wang
has about 17 years of experience in the field of finance and investment. Ms. Wang
has served as chief business officer in Inclusive Finance Department of Bank of China
since January 2021. Ms. Wang served as an executive vice president of Bank of China
Group Investment Limited (FEREEZEFRAF], “BOCGI”), one of our substantial
Shareholders, from March 2016 to December 2020, and held several directorships
in subsidiaries of BOCGI, and companies in which BOCGI holds equity interests. Ms.
Wang held several positions within Bank of China (FB#£77) (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 3988 and Shanghai Stock Exchange: 601988) from July 2003 to March
2016, with her last position serving as the head of financing department at the head
office of Bank of China from July 2004 to March 2016.

Ms. Wang obtained her bachelor's degree in international finance from Ocean
University of China (FE&EFKEZ, formerly known as Qingdao Ocean University)
in July 2001, in Shandong Province, the PRC, and her master’s degree in economics
from Peking University (3t 5 A2%) in June 2003, in Beijing, the PRC.

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen (1B 2), aged 63, is our independent non-executive Director. He is a
member of Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Liu has served as the Dean of
Peking University Institute for Global Health and Development since 2020 (1t = K
ZEREREREMIITFTEK), a MOH Yangtze River Scholar Professor of Economics (24
BRI 2ERIEHIR) at National School of Development of Peking University (3t
RABEZREEICPT) since 2013, and the director of PKU China Center for Health
Economic Research (AEFUAER BB LB FTH L) since 2006. Dr. Liu has served
as an independent non-executive director of MicroPort Scientific Coporation (31£|%
ERIZ45RAE]) (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 0853) since September 2010.

Dr. Liu graduated from mathematics, physics and chemistry department of Southwest
Minzu University (FAFS RIEAE) in 1982, in Sichuan Province, the PRC, and obtained
his master's degree in statistics from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics (FAF 814X K E2) in 1985, in Sichuan Province, the PRC, and his doctoral
degree in economics from the City University of New York in 1991.

Dr. Chen Ping, aged 62, is our independent non-executive Director. He is a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Chen is the founder of
PharmaResources (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (/& BAB %R EE 2% (H B R /A 7)) and has been
served as its chairman of the board and the chief executive officer since December
2007. Prior to that, Dr. Chen once served in Bristol Myers Squibb Company (New
York Stock Exchange: BMY) and was the main inventor of several patents including
Dasatini.

Dr. Chen obtained his bachelor’s degree in organic chemistry from Peking University
(AERARE) in April 1982 in Beijing, the PRC, and his doctoral degree in organic
chemistry from Duke University in May 1990 in North Carolina State, the U.S.
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Mr. Gu Alex Yushao, aged 52, is our independent non-executive Director. He is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Gu has over 26 years of experience in business
administration and corporate management. Mr. Gu serves as a senior vice president,
president of Greater China operations and a member of global executive committee
of Medtronic since January 2018. Prior to that, Mr. Gu once served as a consultant
of McKinsey & Company and a corporate executive of base resins and the business
leader in Asia Pacific of SABIC Innovative Plastics. He has also served as the corporate
executive of China of General Electric Company (New York Stock Exchange: GE) from
May 2004 to May 2008, the president in China of Covidien Healthcare International
Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (which is currently a part of Medtronic plc) from
September 2009 to January 2015. Mr. Gu then joined Medtronic plc (New York Stock
Exchange: MDT), and served as a vice president, and the president of Medtronic's
Minimum Invasive Therapy Group (MITG) and Regional Growth Initiative Group
from January 2015 to December 2017. Mr. Gu obtained his bachelor’'s degree in
engineering and Master of Science degree in Mississippi State University in December
1991 and December 1993, respectively, in Mississippi State, the U.S., and his MBA
from the University of Chicago’s Booth School of Business in June 2001, in Chicago,
the U.S.

Ms. Wendy Hayes, aged 51, is our independent non-executive Director. She is
the chairwoman of the Audit Committee of the Company and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Hayes is currently an ALl Fellow at
Harvard University. Ms. Hayes has served as an independent director of Gracell
Biotechnologies Inc. (NASDAQ: GRCL) since January 2021, iHuman Inc. (New York
Stock Exchange: IH) since October 2020, Burning Rock Biotech Limited (NASDAQ:
BNR) since June 2020, and Tuanche Limited (NASDAQ: TC) since November 2018.
Between May 2013 and September 2018, Ms. Hayes served as the inspections leader
at the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in the United States. Prior to that,
Ms. Hayes was an audit partner at Deloitte (China).

Ms. Hayes is a certified public accountant in the United States (California) and China.
Ms. Hayes obtained her certified public accountant license from the California Board
of Accountancy in November 1998.

Ms. Hayes received her bachelor’s degree in international finance from University of
International Business and Economics (¥fMEFE 5K in June 1991, in Beijing,
the PRC, and her executive MBA from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (&
/L EFr) in October 2012, in Shanghai, the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For biographical details of Mr. Zhao Hong, who form part of our senior management
team, please refer to “— Directors — Executive Director” in this section of this annual
report.

Mr. Shao Peter Chihwen, aged 58, is a vice president of our Company. Mr. Shao
has over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our
Group in February 2012, Mr. Shao worked at several U.S. pharmaceutical companies,
including Noven Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Andrx Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (currently known
as Actavis, Inc.), Nektar Therapeutics, Inc. (currently known as Novartis International
AG (New York Stock Exchange: NVS and the Six Swiss Exchange: NOVN)), Jazz
Pharmaceuticals plc (NASDAQ: JAZZ), Kanghong Sagent (Chengdu) Pharmaceutical
Corporation Limited (ERSAE&(KENLEZEBRAF]) (currently known as Segent
(China)Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (BEERZEHFRAF]), Flavine North America, Inc.
and Map Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (currently known as AbbVie Inc. (New York Stock
Exchange: ABBV)).

Mr. Shao obtained his bachelor’s degree in marine chemistry from Xiamen University
(EPFIKEZ) in July 1979 in Fujian Province, the PRC, his master's degree in analytical
chemistry from Florida International University in April 1992 in Florida State, the U.S.,
and his MBA degree from San Jose State University in May 2007 in California State,
the U.S.

Mr. Wu Mingxiang (5 B3%f), aged 55, is a vice president of our Company. Mr. Wu
Mingxiang has 24 years of experience in sales and management in the medical and
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, he served as a pharmaceutical
sales representative and the director of South China region of Beijing Novartis
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (JbRFAZERLEBRRAF]) from October 1996 to February
2014. Prior to this, Mr. Wu served as a lecturer of Jiangxi Medical College of
Nanchang University (FAE&AEZIEEZRL) (formerly known as Jiangxi Medical

College (TFAEEE307)).

Mr. Wu received his bachelor degree in medicine from Jiangxi Medical College of
Nanchang University (Fg&KZ)I7HE820) (formerly known as Jiangxi Medical
College (TFAEEZ[T) in June 1990 in Jiangxi Province, the PRC.
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Mr. Chang Yansong (E%#2), aged 52, is a vice president of our Company and
the vice president and general manager of oncology business unit of our Company.
Mr. Chang has 27 years of experience of marketing and business operation in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chang served as an engineer
of Northeast Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (RILEZEEE XD AR A 7)) (Shenzhen
Stock Exchange: 000597), formerly known as Northeast General Pharmaceutical
Factory (RILBIEELERR) from July 1991 to February 1994, a national business
manager of Sino-American Shanghai Squibb Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (&L
M E BEIEAR /AR from May 1995 to February 2008, and a marketing manager
of Medtronic (Shanghai) Management Co., Ltd. (% (L8) EE AR A A]) from
March 2008 to May 2013.

Mr. Chang obtained his bachelor’s degree in biochemistry from Jilin University (Z#%
AZ) in July 1991 in Jilin Province, the PRC, and his EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (/83238 A E) in December 2008 in Shanghai, the PRC.

Mr. Jia Min (E#), aged 50, is a vice president and the head of the immunization
business department of our Company. Mr. Jia has 24 years of experience relating
to sales and market development in the medical and pharmaceutical industry.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jia held several positions with Shanghai Roche
Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (L/8ZKREHEERAF]) from April 1996 to April 2010 with
his last position serving as a business unit director (business unit head) of Shanghai
Roche Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Mr. Jia served as a marketing director of Nycomed
Pharmaceutical Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (=RIBAZ Z&:x)(5) B R A 7)) from
August 2010 to June 2011, and a general manager of anti-inflammatory, analgesic
and rheumatic immunity department in Simcere Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (B &E%
%®) from August 2011 to August 2013. From August 2013 to March 2017, Mr.
Jia served as a deputy general manager and general manager of business unit of
Sunshine Guojian Pharmaceutical (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (ZABE % (L&) DA
R A7) (formerly known as Shanghai CP Guojian Pharmaceutical Development Co.,
Ltd., EEREEfEEEZER AR AR, and a vice president of 3SBio Inc. (=4 &%)
(Hong Kong Stock Exchange:1530).

Mr. Jia was awarded the Gold Award for Excellence of Innovation in Roche
Global Pharmaceuticals 2003 Olympiad Award Competition by the Roche Global
Pharmaceuticals Division in May 2004, and won 2008 Roche Global Pharma CEO
Award for Innovation and Excellence by the Roche Global Pharmaceuticals Division in
December 2008.

Mr. Jia received his MBA from Asia International Open University (Macau) (32l (2
F9) B ARAE) in March 2003, in Macau. Mr. Jia also received his diploma in
management from China Europe International Business School (HFEREIFR T R2p)
in December 2006 in Shanghai, the PRC, and completed the Chief Marketing Officer
course for senior management from the same school in October 2015.
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Mr. Wu Lianzong (RE’R), aged 46, is the vice president of our Company. Mr.
Wu has 22 years of experience in the regulatory registration in the pharmaceutical
industry in China. Prior to joining our Group, he once served in Allergan Information
Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and the head of China regulatory affairs of Hospira
(HFtin (PE) EERARAD

(China) Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. A]), from

October 2012 to September 2016.

Mr. Wu received his qualification of pharmacist from China Pharmaceutical
Association (FEIZE2) on July 15, 1998. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree
in medicine from Hebei Medical University (A/itZ8RIKE) in June 1998 in Hebei
Province, the PRC, and his master’s degree in medicinal chemistry from Peking Union
Medical College (b A EEE2ET) (whose Chinese name was formerly known as # B
A EEELAE) in March 2004 in Beijing, the PRC.

Dr. Guo Xiaoning (3BEEZE), aged 43, is a vice president, the head of research and
development department and the chief medical officer of our Company. Dr. Guo
has 15 years of R&D experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our
group, Dr. Guo served as a research affiliate of Roswell Park Cancer Institute from
July 2005 to April 2007, a senior scientist of AstraZeneca Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (New York Stock Exchange: AZN, London Stock Exchange: AZN, and Nasdaq
Stockholm AB: AZN) from June 2007 to December 2011, a program manager at
Johnson & Johnson Medical (Shanghai) Ltd. (&4 (L&) EZEEMBRAF]) from
January 2012 to February 2014, a senior director and a clrmcal drug development
leader of Covance, Inc. from February 2014 to November 2018, and consecutively a
deputy general manager, the head of clinical development and regulatory affairs of
General Regeneratives (Shanghai) Limited (X EAEYEE BRI (L/8) BRAF]) from
November 2018 to March 2020.

Dr. Guo obtained his bachelor's degree in chemistry from Nanjing University (F
FAE) in July 2000 in Jiangsu Province, the PRC, and his doctoral degree in
pharmacology from Shanghai Institute of Materia Medica of Chinese Academy of
Sciences (R BRI /G ZEYFRITHT) in July 2005 in Shanghai, the PRC.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the senior management of our Company held any
directorship in public companies, the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years immediately preceding the
date of this annual report.
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The Board of Directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
report to the shareholders on the corporate governance of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance
its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) as the basis of the Company’'s corporate governance practices. As the
Company has not yet listed on the Stock Exchange during the year ended December
31, 2020, the requirements under the CG code or the continuing obligations of a
listed issuer pursuant to the Listing Rules were not applicable to the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the period from the date of listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on March 3, 2021 (the “Listing Date”) to
the date of this report, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is spending
sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises eleven Directors, consisting of one executive Director,
six non-executive Directors, and four independent non-executive Directors. The

composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer) (Appointed on June 24, 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) (Appointed on June 24, 2020)
Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella (Appointed on August 27, 2020)
Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien (Appointed on February 5, 2021)
Ms. Li Quan (Appointed on June 24, 2020)

Mr. Shi Cen (Appointed on June 24, 2020)

Ms. Wang Xiaozhuo (Appointed on June 24, 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen (Appointed on February 19, 2021)

Dr. Chen Ping (Appointed on February 19, 2021)

Mr. Gu Alex Yushao (Appointed on February 19, 2021)
Ms. Wendy Hayes (Appointed on February 19, 2021)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 27 of this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Board held two meetings in August 2020
and December 2020, respectively.

A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings held
during the year ended December 31, 2020 is set out below:

HEER

Bl Name of Directors Attendance
HRIE (7TEAAZL) Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer) 2/2
Li Zhenfusc 4 (ZEF=F/%F) Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) 2/2
Daniel Luzius Vasella f&§£™ Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella 0/1
Lin Shirley Yi-HsienZzz @ Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien @ A
N/A

FREL Ms. Li Quan 22
AEEE Mr. Shi Cen 2/2
TEELt Ms. Wang Xiaozhuo 2/2
2FEBIF L Dr. Liu Guoen® N3 A
N/A

Chen Ping&=+® Dr. Chen Ping @ A
N/A

Gu Alex Yushao 5t 4® Mr. Gu Alex Yushao @ TiE A
N/A

Wendy HayesZ +© Ms. Wendy Hayes © A
N/A

Daniel Luzius Vasellaf =7 2020F8H427H
BEZARENTEST HERMBALERDE
2020F 12AMEEEEE °

Lin Shirley Yi-HsienZ 7202142 ASH# %
ERIFPTES -

Z2IE B 18+ - Chen Pingf+ + Gu Alex Yushao
% 4 FWendy Hayes%Z 50202142 A 19 & %
ERBILERITES -

EEEIRRITHRAR
AAREERERRITRBEBY DB L
Zhenfuft £ R R R AT - EERE Y
EFGETRSYARAAREHERES -
THEBEEABAARANEBERRAS
ERE—REE -

30

Notes:

(1) Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella was appointed as non-executive Director on August 27, 2020. He
did not attend the board meeting in December 2020 due to the personal matters.

(2) Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien was appointed as non-executive Director on February 5, 2021.

(3) Dr. Liu Guoen, Dr. Chen Ping, Mr. Gu Alex Yushao and Ms. Wendy Hayes were appointed
as independent non-executive Directors on February 19, 2021.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are held by
Mr. Li Zhenfu and Mr. Zhao Hong respectively. The chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
chief executive officer focuses on the Company’s business development and daily
management and operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Since the Listing Date, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to renewal after the

expiry of the then current term.

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings. Under the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”), at every annual general meeting of the Company one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Articles
of Association also provides that the Board shall have power from time to time and
at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company;

and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides direction
to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their implementation,
monitors the Group's operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound

internal control and risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard
of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for
bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be
reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings
for Directors would be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate.
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, Company organized training session
conducted by the Hong Kong legal advisors for all Directors. The training session
covered a wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties and responsibilities,
corporate governance and regulations.

The training records of the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2020 and up
to the date of this report are summarized as follows:

HE AR

AN ERE -~ BE -
B AR

Attended Internally-
facilitated Briefings
or Training, Seminars,

B Directors Reading Materials
HiTEE Executive Director

MR E (BEHITE) Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer) v
FHTEF Non-Executive Directors

Ll Zhenfult % (ZF&F %) Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) v
Daniel Luzius Vasellat&+ Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella v/
LIN Shirley Yi-HsienZzz & Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien v/
TREZT Ms. Li Quan v/
AEEE Mr. Shi Cen v/
FREEL+ Ms. Wang Xiaozhuo v/
BUIHTESF Independent Non-Executive Directors

2R EE+ Dr. Liu Guoen v
CHEN Pingf& 4= Dr. Chen Ping v/
GU Alex Yushao%t 4 Mr. Gu Alex Yushao v/
Wendy HayesZ & Ms. Wendy Hayes v/

ExZEE
EEgoRY=_AZEg AERZEE
YNZEEMRERRRE UEEBEAQRAE
BROEMNRE - ARBAMEEELZEGHR
REEMT ERERENT  ZFRERE
BEIBRENERIBE BERZEg
FMEZEeRREZEG RESECDHRN
R B A s R Bk 22 P A uh - 30 A) RE 2SR AR
RER -

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.
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The list of the chairman or chairwoman and members of each Board committee is set
out under “Corporate Information” on page 2.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Ms. Wendy Hayes and
Mr. Gu Alex Yushao, independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Quan, non-
executive Director. Ms. Wendy Hayes is the chairwoman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, scope of audit and appointment of
external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

As the Company was listed on March 3, 2021, no Audit Committee meeting was held
during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Zhao Hong,
executive Director, and Mr. Gu Alex Yushao and Dr. Chen Ping, independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Gu Alex Yushao is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the Remuneration
Committee include determining remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management according to the authorization of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board in relation to remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management, and the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such remuneration policy.

As the Company was listed on March 3, 2021, no Remuneration Committee meeting
was held during the year ended December 31, 2020.
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The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management by band for the year

MM EHFMNEREINDT ended December 31, 2020 is set out below:

AE
FEWA Annual Income Number of Persons
KA A R#5,000,0007T Below RMB5,000,000 6
BB AR%10,000,0007T Over RMB10,000,000 1

REZES

REZBEEE=Z2KE HMIRTES
Li Zhenfust £ R B IE91TE S 2IH A1 L/
Wendy HayesZ % ° Li Zhenfut £ BT IR B &
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Li Zhenfu, non-
executive Director and Dr. Liu Guoen and Ms. Wendy Hayes, independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Li Zhenfu is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and formulating the policy concerning diversity of Board members.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in
the Company’s Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary,
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy that are necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

As the Company was listed on March 3, 2021, no Nomination Committee meeting
was held during the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognizes the importance of diversity
of the Board as it promotes board effectiveness and sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’'s competitive
advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will review and
assess the composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on
appointment of new Directors of the Company. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all
aspects of diversity in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents,
skills, experience and background on the Board.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity on the Board
and is to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of

corporate governance.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is sufficiently
diverse and selection of board candidates shall be based on merit against objective
criteria and with due regard for merit and the contribution that the selected

candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy at least annually to
ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.

Nomination Policy
The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and

appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the selection
criteria and process and the Board succession planning considerations in relation
to nomination and appointment of Directors and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

Company.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability and the
potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited
to the following:

. Reputation for character and integrity;

o Accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries in which the
Company’s business is involved and other professional qualifications;
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. Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

° Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

o Contribution that the candidate(s) can potentially bring to the Board; and
° Plans in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and appointment
of Directors. During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report, there
was no change in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

As the Company has not yet listed on the Stock Exchange during the year ended
December 31, 2020, the requirements set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code were not applicable. Since the Listing Date, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and overseeing
their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management procedures and
guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key business processes and
office functions, including sales, purchase, financial reporting, human resources and
information technology.

All divisions/departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify
risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various aspects including
key operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control policies
are properly complied with by each division/department.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads, assessed
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the risk
management progress, and reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all
findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

The Company has engaged external professional firm for providing the internal audit
function and performing independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. The internal audit function
examined key issues in relation to the accounting practices and all material controls
and provided its findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the management report,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended December 31, 2020 and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant

resources.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in the
practices and procedures, including financial reporting, internal control and other
matters, in their workplace.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general guide to
the Company’s Directors, senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements

IN RESPECT OF THE

of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as

a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 73 to 80.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A breakdown of the remuneration payable to the external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year
ended December 31, 2020 is set out below:

e ERER

Fees Paid/Payable

AR

Bk % 48 B Service Category RMB

ZEAR TS Audit Services 2,604,000
IR ERTE (IREMIBEN Non-audit Services (Provision of tax advisory services and

RIS RAREIRIE - e RERWME) preparation of Environmental, Social and Governance Report) 820,000

3,424,000
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pan Rongrong and Ms. Chan Sin Man Nico have been appointed as the
Company’s joint company secretaries with effective from February 19, 2021. Ms.
Chan Sin Man Nico is a senior manager of corporate services of Tricor Services
Limited, a global professional services provider specializing in integrated business,

corporate and investor services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company secretaries
on corporate governance and board practices and matters. Ms. Pan Rongrong
has been designated as the primary contact person at the Company which would
work and communicate with Ms. Chan Sin Man Nico on the Company’s corporate

governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various communication channels.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should be proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of

the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Articles 12.3 of the Articles of Association, general meetings shall also be
convened on the written requisition of any one or more members holding together,
as at the date of deposit of the requisition, shares representing not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carry the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. The written requisition shall be deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office of the Company, specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s). If the Board does not
within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the Articles

of Association, for convening a general meeting.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address: 3401A, Windsor House, 311 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Email: ir@sciclone.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the
above address, and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order
to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company has adopted an amended and restated Articles of Association by a special
resolution passed on January 22, 2021, and the amended and restated Articles of
Association taking effect from the Listing Date. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure that
shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly
reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends. Depending
on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions and
factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared
by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

We are a biopharmaceutical company with an integrated platform for product
development and commercialization. We strategically focus on some of the largest
and fast-growing therapeutic areas with significant unmet medical needs in China,
primarily including oncology and severe infection. Leveraging our integrated platform,
we strive to develop and commercialize a portfolio of high-quality marketed products,
including our proprietary product, Zadaxin, and pipeline drugs in our focused
therapeutic areas.

The analytical statements for income and contribution from results of business
segments of the Group are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
Group on pages 81 to 82 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Company’s results, assets and liabilities for the last four financial
years is set out on page 219 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and performance analysis of the Group as of the Reporting
Period are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Discussion details on the Group's
environmental policies and performance are set out on pages 220 to 236 of
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the status of the Group's
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have material impact on the
Group is set out in the section headed “Litigation and Compliance” on page 71 and
the description of the risk management and internal controls of the Company is set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 37 to 39. The
aforesaid discussion forms a part of the Directors’ Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the percentage of the total purchases attributable
to the five largest suppliers was approximately 66% of the total purchase of the Group, and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 28% of the total purchase
of the Group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020, the percentage of the total revenue attributable
to the five largest customers was approximately 86% of the total revenue of the Group,
and sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately 79% of the total revenue
of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers or the Group's five largest customers.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group continues to give regard to prudent capital management and liquidity risk
management in its investment strategy, and follow stringent procedures to evaluate
and approve investment projects. To decide whether to invest in certain acquisition
and investment projects, the Company will mainly consider the assessment of the
strategic impact and net present value of the project. As of December 31, 2020,
the Group held 531,438 shares in Zentalis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (NASDAQ: ZNTL,
the “Zentalis”) (the “Investment”), representing approximately 1.3% of the issued
and outstanding shares of Zentalis according to the public information. Zentalis is a
clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company focusing on discovering and developing
small molecule therapeutics targeting fundamental biological pathways of cancers.
The Group made the investment in December 2014 with the investment cost as
the nominal value of these shares and Zentalis became listed on NASDAQ in April
2020. As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the Investment was approximately
RMB180.1 million, representing approximately 6.25% of the total asset of the Group.
The Group did not receive any dividend from Zentalis for the year of 2020. Please
refer to Notes 5 and 26 of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
more information. Save as disclosed above, the Company did not hold any significant
investments for the year ended December 31, 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group as at December 31, 2020 are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended
December 31, 2020 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in Notes 33 and 38 respectively to the
audited consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
the Listing Date with net proceeds received by the Company from the global offering
in the amount of approximately HK$2,083.6 million after deducting underwriting

commissions and all related expenses.

Since the Listing Date, approximately HK$466.4 million out of the net proceeds from
the Listing had been used to repay our loan facility of USD300 million with China
Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd Hong Kong Branch. Save as disclosed above, since the
Listing Date, the Company has not utilized any other portion of the net proceeds,
and the Company intends to gradually utilize the net proceeds in accordance with the
intended purposes as stated in the Prospectus.

Please refer to the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the

Prospectus for details.

DIRECTORS

The Directors as of the date of this annual report are:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer and President)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman)

Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella

Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien

Ms. Li Quan

Mr. Shi Cen

Ms. Wang Xiaozhuo

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Liu Guoen

Dr. Chen Ping

Mr. Gu Alex Yushao

Ms. Wendy Hayes
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In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhao Hong, Mr. Li
Zhenfu, Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella, Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien, Ms. Li Quan, Mr. Shi Cen,
Ms. Wang Xiaozhuo, Dr. Liu Guoen, Dr. Chen Ping, Mr. Gu Alex Yushao and Ms.
Wendy Hayes shall retire at the Annual General Meeting. All of the above Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The executive Director has entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the

Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION AND PENSION SCHEME

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’'s emolument policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Group, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market practices. The
Company offers the executive Directors and senior management, as its employees,
with remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, benefits in kind, performance-
related bonuses, share based payments, pensions, and other social insurance
benefits. Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive Directors receive
compensation according to their duties (including serving as members or chairmen of

the Board committees).

Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and duties and with
reference to the market conditions, the Company’s remuneration policy and the
prevailing market conditions, subject to the approval of the shareholders general
meeting. Details of remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid individuals of

the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 13.
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COMPENSATION OF
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group are decided

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

by the Board with reference to the recommendation given by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance

and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest paid
individual in the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are payable, for the

year ended December 31, 2020, by our Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As of December 31, 2020, Mr. Li Zhenfu, being our non-executive Director and
Chairman, held non-executive directorships in certain GL Pharmaceutical Portfolio
Companies, but was not involved in the daily management and operations of such

companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors is interested in any businesses apart
from our Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with our Group’s business under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year ended December 31, 2020.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Company to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as at December 31, 2020,
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and section 352 of the SFO were not
applicable to the Directors or chief executives of the Company as at December 31,
2020. As at the date of this annual report, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which (a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as

follows:

(i) Interest in Shares and underlying Shares

PN

ERITRAN

RHHEEE BB (%)

BRoEHAE Approximate

Number of percentage of the

Shares or issued share

BEE 'BETBRABES EEME underlying capital of the

Name of Directors/Chief Executives Nature of Interest Shares Company (%)

Li Zhenfust 4 R EE R 195,104,060 28.78%
Mr. Li Zhenfu Interest in controlled corporation®

RS RIEEEER? 11,979,690 1.77%
Mr. Zhao Hong Interest in controlled corporation®

EmEaAY 11,256,210 1.66%

Beneficial owner @

M aE

(1) GL Trade Investment L.P.#3% % 104,968,370 1% i%
FHE®EA ¥ A RGL Capital Management
GP Il B.C. | Ltd. (=R MEREMA A
A7 AGL Capital Management Ltd&:#&
#7A) > GL Capital Management LtdfGL
Partners Capital Management LtdLion River
IN.V.5 545 B 51% f49%E) 1 7 © Lion River
| N.V.fAssicurazioni Generali S.p.A(—xR®
BEANEBEARARGMETHAR)2EHES -
F R GL Partners Capital Management LtdgLi
Zhenfusc &2 HI70% 8 # % » Li Zhenfudkt 4
W18 ARGL Trade Investment L.P.ATHA HY
104,968,370 B 13 H HE A = o

Notes:

(1) GL Trade Investment L.P. held 104,968,370 Shares, whose general partner was GL Capital
Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd., a company incorporated in Canada which was wholly
owned by GL Capital Management Ltd. GL Capital Management Ltd was held by GL
Partners Capital Management Ltd as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as to 49%. Lion River |
N.V. was wholly owned by Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock
Exchange. As GL Partners Capital Management Ltd was controlled by Mr. Li Zhenfu as to
70%, Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed to be interested in 104,968,370 Shares held by GL Trade
Investment L.P.
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GL Glee Investment Limited held 90,135,690 Shares. It was wholly owned by GL China
Opportunities Fund L.P., whose general partner was GL Capital Management GP L.P.,
whose general partner was GL Capital Management GP Limited, which was held by GL
Partners Capital Management Ltd as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as to 49%. Lion River |
N.V. was wholly owned by Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock
Exchange. As GL Partners Capital Management Ltd was controlled by Mr. Li Zhenfu as
to 70%, Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed to be interested in 90,135,690 Shares held by GL Glee
Investment Limited.

Convergence International Holdings Ltd. (“Convergence”) held 11,979,690 Shares.
Convergence is wholly owned by Beijing Convergence Management Consulting
(Limited JtR#RERERZAGEEE (B
R&%) ), which was in turn owned by its general partner, Juli Information, as to
0.000003957%, and its limited partner, Zhoushan Kangnuo Equity Investment Partnership
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (AHLUE#RIERESR DX (BRA%) , “Zhoushan
Kangnuo”), as to 99.999996043%. As Mr. Zhao Hong is interested in 32.44% equity
interests in Juli Information Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (EW{E 87 (k) BRAF)
and 40.96% partnership interests in Zhoushan Kangnuo, Mr. Zhao Hong is deemed to be
interested in 11,979,690 Shares held by Convergence.

Partnership  Enterprise Partnership)

Being options for 11,256,210 Shares granted to Mr. Zhao Hong under the Option
Incentive Plan.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors

and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the

Shares,

underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated

corporations, recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the

SFO or required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.



FERRREALQF

% 42 51 AH B8
BROFHWEZERAR

I

S

AR ARG HE2020F12 A31H M R ABER
Fr b - #Z=2020F12A31H - (EBELHE
WRBIDEXVEN B2 X35 B A R(EFH R B E I
BIYE3I36MB{I NERRALRA - BEXRFE
BEBE BARAREFIAESITBRAER
M EEZRFBRARANESTLEFAITEMN
SNEBRB(ES REBEKRGI)DFE3361K7EH
AARTGFEMNELMATEEA5% A ERH
AR ERSOABIT ¢

EEEWE
Directors’ Report

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OR UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as at December 31, 2020,
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and section 336 of the SFO were not
applicable to the Company as at December 31, 2020. As at the date of this annual
report, so far as the Directors or the chief executives of the Company were aware,
the Substantial Shareholders, other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, who had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

EARRAF

2RITRAN

IR = BRED (%)

HERGOEE Approximate

Number of percentage of

Shares or the issued share

BREE LB EEME underlying capital of the

Name of shareholders Nature of Interest Shares Company (%)

Li Zhenfut 4 R EEERC 195,104,060 28.78%
Mr. Li Zhenfu Interest in controlled corporation®

GL Partners Capital Management Ltd S EE RS 195,104,060 28.78%
Interest in controlled corporation®

Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A R EE RS 195,104,060 28.78%
Interest in controlled corporation®

GL Trade Investment L.P. BEERD 104,968,370 15.48%

Beneficial interest®

GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd. R EBRERD 104,968,370 15.48%
Interest in controlled corporation®

GL Capital Management Ltd R AE R 104,968,370 15.48%
Interest in controlled corporation®

Lion River I N.V. R EBE RS 195,104,060 28.78%
Interest in controlled corporation®

GL Glee Investment Limited EmEm?® 90,135,690 13.30%

Beneficial interest®

GL China Opportunities Fund L.P. SEUAE R 90,135,690 13.30%
Interest in controlled corporation®

GL Capital Management GP L.P. R EE R 90,135,690 13.30%
Interest in controlled corporation®

GL Capital Management GP Limited S LAERER? 90,135,690 13.30%
Interest in controlled corporation®
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EARAF
ERITRAN
BB BB D (%)
HERAEE Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares or the issued share
BREE LB EEME underlying capital of the
Name of shareholders Nature of Interest Shares Company (%)
ZHARRT] BEamEn? 84,523,130 12.47%
Ocean Falcon Limited Beneficial interest®
HIREEKERRAF EEEEERY 84,523,130 12.47%
Bank of China Group Investment Limited Interest in controlled corporation®
HEIERITRI BIR A A REEE R 84,523,130 12.47%
Bank of China Limited Interest in controlled corporation®
hRESKERREEAR REE R 84,523,130 12.47%
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation®
FRIRERREEAA REEE R 84,523,130 12.47%
China Investment Corporation Interest in controlled corporation®
Avengers Limited HEamEm® 106,536,790 15.72%
Beneficial interest®
CDH Fund V, L.P. REEEERY 106,536,790 15.72%
Interest in controlled corporation®
CDH V Holdings Company Limited S AERERS 106,536,790 15.72%
Interest in controlled corporation®
China Diamond Holdings V Limited RiEEE RS 106,536,790 15.72%
Interest in controlled corporation®
China Diamond Holdings Company Limited R AR R 106,536,790 15.72%
Interest in controlled corporation®
Ascendent Silver (Cayman) Limited BEnEm© 103,497,710 15.27%
Beneficial interest®
Ascendent Capital Partners Il, L.P. R EEERC 103,497,710 15.27%
Interest in controlled corporation®
Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP, L.P. IR EE R 103,497,710 15.27%
Interest in controlled corporation®
Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP, Limited ZEAEERO 103,497,710 15.27%
Interest in controlled corporation®
et EEEEE RO 103,497,710 15.27%
Mr. Meng Liang Interest in controlled corporation®
Boying Investments Limited iy 53,473,820 7.89%
Beneficial interest?”
KEMTE RIELBERY 53,473,820 7.89%

Mr. Zhu Weihang

Interest in controlled corporation?”
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GL Trade Investment L.P. was an exempted limited partnership registered in Canada on
March 25, 2015. Its general partner was GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd., a
company incorporated in Canada which was wholly owned by GL Capital Management
Ltd, which was held by GL Partners Capital Management Ltd as to 51% and Lion River
I'N.V. as to 49%. Lion River | N.V. was a company incorporated in Netherlands and was
wholly owned by Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock Exchange.
GL Partners Capital Management Ltd was a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and was controlled by Mr. Li Zhenfu, a non-executive director of our
Company as to 70%. As such, each of GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd., GL Capital
Management Ltd, GL Partners Capital Management Ltd, Lion River | N.V., Assicurazioni
Generali S.p.A and Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by GL
Trade Investment L.P.

GL Glee Investment Limited was a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on March 10, 2011 and was wholly owned by GL China Opportunities Fund L.P.,
a limited partnership registered in Cayman Islands whose general partner was GL Capital
Management GP L.P., a limited partnership registered in Cayman Islands, whose general
partner was GL Capital Management GP Limited, which was held by GL Partners Capital
Management Ltd as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as to 49%. Lion River | N.V. was a
company incorporated in Netherlands and was wholly owned by Assicurazioni Generali
S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock Exchange. GL Partners Capital Management Ltd
was a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and was controlled by
Mr. Li Zhenfu as to 70%. As such, each of GL China Opportunities Fund L.P., GL Capital
Management GP L.P., GL Capital Management GP Limited, Lion River | N.V., Assicurazioni
Generali S.p.A, GL Partners Capital Management Ltd, and Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by GL Glee Investment Limited.

Each of Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, Lion River | N.V., GL Partners Capital Management
Ltd and Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by GL Trade
Investment L.P. and GL Glee Investment Limited.
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Ocean Falcon Limited was a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong on March 15,
2017 and was wholly owned by Bank of China Group Investment Limited, a limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong which in turn was wholly owned by Bank of China
Limited, a joint stock company established in the PRC with limited liability which in turn
was held by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. as to 64.02%, a limited liability company
established in the PRC which in turn was wholly owned by China Investment Corporation,
a limited liability company which was wholly owned by the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China. As such, each of Bank of China Group Investment Limited, Bank of
China Limited, Central Huijin Investment Ltd., China Investment Corporation, and State
Council of the People’s Republic of China is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Ocean Falcon Limited.

Avengers Limited was a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
was wholly owned by CDH Fund V, L.P., a limited partnership registered in the Cayman
Islands. Its general partner was CDH V Holdings Company Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands which was held by China Diamond Holdings
V Limited as to 80%, a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
which in turns was wholly owned by China Diamond Holdings Company Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in British Virgin Islands. As such, each of CDH Fund V,
L.P., CDH V Holdings Company Limited, China Diamond Holdings V Limited and China
Diamond Holdings Company Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Avengers Limited.

Ascendent Silver (Cayman) Limited was a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and was wholly owned by Ascendent Capital Partners Il, L.P., an exempted
limited partnership registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands whose general partner
was Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP, L.P., an exempted limited partnership registered
under the laws of the Cayman Islands whose general partner was Ascendent Capital
Partners Il GP Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
was wholly owned by Mr. Meng Liang. As such, each of Ascendent Capital Partners II, L.P.,
Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP, L.P., Ascendent Capital Partners Il GP Limited and Mr.
Meng Liang is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Ascendent Silver (Cayman)
Limited.

Boying Investments Limited was a limited liability company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and was wholly owned by Mr. Zhu Weihang, an Independent Third Party.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, no person (other than

the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had interests or short position in

5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO or required to be notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE PLANS

1.

Option Incentive Plan
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Option Incentive

Plan as adopted by our Company on June 24, 2018 and as amended on

November 13, 2019. The terms of the Option Incentive Plan are not subject

to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the

Option Incentive Plan is to provide performance-driven, equitable and on-

going option incentives for eligible management and key employees with the

view to retaining key talents of our Company, aligning the interests of our

Company and its employees and Shareholders, making its employees to attend

to long-term development of our Company and to share increased value of our

Company. The participants of the Option Incentive Plan shall an employee who

has completed his or her probation period.

(a)

Grant and adjustment of options

Any grant to chief executive officer of our Company shall be proposed
by the chairman of the Board and subject to approval of the Board.
Any grant to any participants (excluding chief executive officer) shall be
considered by the corporate executive committee of our Company and
subject to approval of chief executive officer of our Company.

Supplementary grants to the employees who are newly engaged,
promoted, or have made special contributions to our Company and
eligible under the Option Incentive Plan may be made subject to approval
of the Board.
under the Option Incentive Plan, or is transferred to any other position

In the event that any participant becomes ineligible

or terminates his or her employment with our Company, or dies, our
Company may make adjustments to such participant pursuant to the
Option Incentive Plan. Any adjustments in respect of chief executive
officer of our Company shall be proposed by the chairman of the Board
and subject to approval of the Board, whilst any adjustments in respect
of any participants other than chief executive officer shall be considered
by the corporate executive committee of our Company and subject to

approval of the chief executive officer of our Company.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Maximum number of shares subject to the Option
Incentive Plan

The underlying shares of the options under the Option Incentive Plan
shall be the Shares to be issued by our Company.

The maximum number of shares underlying the options under the Option
Incentive Plan shall be no more than 54,778,710 Shares, representing
8.08% of the total number of Shares in issue on the Listing Date.

Exercise price and payment

The exercise price of options under the Option Incentive Plan shall be
USD0.308 (subject to adjustment). Upon confirmation by the Board or its
authorized representatives on the application of exercising the options,
the options shall be exercised upon the actual payment based on the
exercise price by the grantees.

Exercise and lapse of options

The term of options under the Option Incentive Plan shall be eight years
since grant date. Subject to satisfaction of the exercising conditions,
participants shall have the right to exercise the options vested to such
participant under the Option Incentive Plan or to waive such right during
the term. Any options not exercised during the term due to any reason
of participants shall be automatically cancelled by the Board upon
expiration of the term.

Vesting schedule

For initial grants, 25% of options granted under the Option Incentive
Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a four-
year term.

For supplementary grants during the year of 2019, 33%, 33% and 34%
of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon
each anniversary of grant date during a three-year term.

For supplementary grants during the year of 2020, 50% and 50% of
options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon
each anniversary of grant date during a two-year term.
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For supplementary grants during the year of 2021, 100% of options
granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested at the first
anniversary of grant date.

Participants who are key non-sales employees and winner of annual
Top Staff awards of our Company may vest 100% of options granted
to them at the first anniversary of grant date, subject to satisfaction of
certain vesting conditions.

The number of options to be vested over participants under the Option
Incentive Plan shall be determined based on annual performance
evaluation results, and there is no vesting of options if none of annual
performance targets is met.

Outstanding grants

As of the December 31, 2020, options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 54,778,710 Shares have been granted to a total of 130 eligible
participants by our Company at nil consideration under the Option
Incentive Plan, representing 8.08% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the Listing Date. All the options under the Share Option Incentive
Plan were granted between December 15, 2018 and July 1, 2020 (both
days inclusive) and the Company will not grant further options under the
Option Incentive Plan after the Listing. As the Company was not listed on
the Stock Exchange as at December 31, 2020, listed below in Table 1 the
options granted to our Directors, other connected persons and grantees
who have been granted 750,000 options or above under the Option
Incentive Plan which are outstanding, and table 2 the options granted
to the remaining 113 grantees who are not members of our Directors,
senior management or other connected person of the Company have
been granted less than 750,000 options under the Option Incentive Plan
which are outstanding to subscribe for a total of 20,543,000 Shares.
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=1 Table 1:
T
BRET
T8 i RATHE
(Ex/ RBHWER
SRERE) (BfEE)
(MfaE2) Number of 5B
Exercise outstanding K&
Price Shares under  (Ff{&3)
Bl BERF (Usp/ the options  Vesting
ARA Position/connected  Htr3it per option) EHHEH BRESRE granted Schedule
Grantee relationship Address (Note 2) Date of grant Option period (Note 1)  (Note 3)
EF
Director
HEREE WiTEE - il 0308 2018%F B H 5,925,000 a
Mr. ZHAO Hong BRITE tiEgm 128158 FEET84F
(#7) FEH RER December 15, 8 years since
Executive Director, TRERKTTIH 2018 the date of
Chief Executive 8055503 % grant
Officer and Room 503, No. 80 20204 H1H 831,210 c
President Lane 777, April 1, 2020
Lingling Road 20207 A1H 4,500,000 d
Xuhui District July 1, 2020
Shanghai
the PRC
EREEE
Senior Management
SRR Bl i E 0308 2018%F B H 1,580,000 a
Mr. WU Mingxiang ~ Vice President IEE 12A15H REE8E
(REAH) Mmam December 15, 8 years since
S 2018 the date of
lai5ldis grant
756195201 F
Room 201,
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No. 619, Lane 7,
North-Shang Hai
Road

Qing Shan Hu
District,

Nan Chang City
Jiangxi province
the PRC
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T
BRET
T8 i RATHE
(ZEx/ RBHWER
SHBERE) (H=E1)
(MfaE2) Number of 5B
Exercise outstanding B
Price Shares under  ([f{zF3)
B BAERE (usp/ the options  Vesting
ARA Position/connected  itudit per option) #EHHEH BRESRE granted Schedule
Grantee relationship Address (Note 2) Date of grant Option period (Note 1)  (Note 3)
BHLAE e I 0.308 2018%F BREAH 1,975,000 a
Mr. JIA Min Vice President 93l 124158 fEEt8eF
(Ef) RER December 15, 8 years since
=T 2018 the date of
88721571301 % grant
Room 1301, 20204 K18 200,000 C
No. 21, Lane 88, April 1, 2020
Sanjiang Road
Xuhui District
Shanghai
the PRC
iy e Bl 536 Anchor Circle, 0308 20184 ERLAH 1,975,000 a
Mr. SHAO Peter Vice President Redwood City 128158 A8
Chihwen CA 94065 December 15, 8 years since
USA 2018 the date of
grant
REREE 2lBE I 0.308 2018%F BEREAH 1,354,500 a
Mr. WU Lianzong  Vice President LR 12A158 fBET84F
(RETR) BEE December 15, 8 years since
A= HER 2018 the date of
BRiEENE grant
ST _BEIL301E 202064 H1H 200,000 C
Room 301, Suite 2, April 1, 2020
Building 57,
Yuxin Huayuan,
Xisangi East Road
Haidian District
Beijing
the PRC
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T
BRET
T8 i RATHE
(ZEx/ RBHWER
SHBERE) (H=E1)
(MfaE2) Number of 5B
Exercise outstanding B
Price Shares under  ([f{zF3)
Bl BERF (Usp/ the options  Vesting
ARA Position/connected  itudit per option) #EHHEH BRESRE granted Schedule
Grantee relationship Address (Note 2) Date of grant Option period (Note 1)  (Note 3)
BEIEE e ] 0.308 2018%F B A B 1,580,000 a
Mr. CHANG Vice President b 128158 BET8EF
Yansong =HE December 15, 8 years since
(BEh) BRR 2018 the date of
8117657401 E grant
Room 401, No.6, 20204 A18 200,000 C
Lane 811, April 1, 2020
Quxi Road
Huangpu District
Shanghai
the PRC
=LA Bl B LEm 0308 202064H1H ERILAH 800,000 c
Mr. GUO Xiaoning  Vice President RS April 1,2020  #E&8EF
(=) R 8 years since
82553997903 % the date of
Room 903, No. 39, grant
Lane 825,
Chenhui Road
Pudong District
Shanghai, the PRC
BMEEA T
Other connected persons
ERALL ErhHES i 0.308 2018%F BRI BH 2,370,000 a
Ms. PAN Rongrong  Director of EEm 12A158 BET8EF
(BER) SciClone China RER December 15, 8 years since
2697 15572402 % 2018 the date of
Room 2402, No. 1, grant
Lane 269 202067 H1H 1,500,000 d
Chang Ning Road July 1, 2020
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T
BRET
T8 i RATHE
(ZEx/ RBHWER
SHBERE) (H=E1)
(MfaE2) Number of 5B
Exercise outstanding B
Price Shares under  ([f{zF3)
B BAERE (usp/ the options  Vesting
ARA Position/connected  itudit per option) #EHHEH BRESRE granted Schedule
Grantee relationship Address (Note 2) Date of grant Option period (Note 1)  (Note 3)
LAl Chin Hung#E4  SciClone i 0.308 20184 k=gt 750,000 a
Mr. LAl Chin Hung  Pharmaceuticals R 12A15H REET8E
LimitedZE 3 W& December 15, 8 years since
Director of RERFEAR IR 2018 the date of
SciClone 6IE10E grant
Pharmaceuticals Flat 10, 6/Floor,
Limited Yan Yuet House,
Yan Shing Court,
Fanling,
New Territory
Hong Kong
WL SPIL ~ SPIL China Room 32-04, 0.308 2020F4A1H BETAH 400,000 C
Ms. LIN Huibin KNovaMed The Cosmopolitan, April 1,2020  #BET8F
(MREH) Pharmaceuticals Inc. 200 Kim Seng Road 8 years since
R 239471, Singapore the date of
Director of SPIL, grant
SPIL China and 2020€7A1H 150,000 d
NovaMed July 1, 2020
Pharmaceuticals
Inc.
EIEEE750,00017 3 L _FIEREAIATA
Grantees who have been granted 750,000 options or above
g+ Bz - BEEEIR HE 0.308 2018% BREAH 1,580,000 a
Ms. YU Zhongwen ~ BDEE ERm 128158 FEET8E
(A1) Vice President, BER December 15, 8 years since
Head of Strategic EE1R702E 2018 the date of
Planning and BD Apt 702, No. 1 grant
South 3rd Street, 2020%7H18 200,000 d
Haidian District, July 1, 2020
Beijing
the PRC
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T
BRET
T8 i RATHE
(ZEx/ RBHWER
SHBERE) (H=E1)
(MfaE2) Number of 5B
Exercise outstanding B
Price Shares under  ([f{zF3)
Bl BERF (Usp/ the options  Vesting
ARA Position/connected  itudit per option) #EHHEH BRESRE granted Schedule
Grantee relationship Address (Note 2) Date of grant Option period (Note 1)  (Note 3)
iy g ElFCE FE 0.308 2018%F B H 5 1,185,000 a
Ms. CHEN Xi ANEREE 93l 128158 BET8EF
(FRE%) Vice President, gLE December 15, 8 years since
Head of HR M35 = K1 12957401 F 2018 the date of
Room 401, grant
No. 129, Hu Ma
San Cun,
Baoshan District,
Shanghai
the PRC
FiRFELE BE - AHRA i 0308 20184 ERLAH 967,500 a
Mr. WANG Jinping ~ EBEHEE £ 128158 REET8EF
(F8RF) Director, Head of R December 15, 8 years since
Compliance & 457-8-1706% 2018 the date of
Legal Affairs Room 457-8-1706, grant
Fahuazhen Road, 2020€7A1H 150,000 d
Shanghai July 1, 2020
the PRC
R+ =R i 0308 20184 ERILAH 1,000,000 a
Ms. ZHANG Hong ~ Senior Area HIE 12A15H FBET8E
(5R4T) Director AT December 15, 8 years since
Pl 2018 the date of
BIEFDNE grant
14-1-501%
Room 14-1-501,
Binjiang
Huajiachi
Apartment,
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Kaixuan Street,
Jianggan District,
Hangzhou
Zhejiang Province
the PRC
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T
BRET
THEE i RATHE
(ZEx/ BRHEHEE
SHBERE) (BIEE)
(MfaE2) Number of 5B
Exercise outstanding B
Price Shares under  ([f{zF3)
B BAERE (usp/ the options  Vesting
ARA Position/connected  itudit per option) #EHHEH BRESRE granted Schedule
Grantee relationship Address (Note 2) Date of grant Option period (Note 1)  (Note 3)
BRESLE RREE THEE  PEH 0.308 2018%F BREAH 987,500 a
Mr. SUN Yi Senior Director, EEm 128158 MBET8E
(F#) Head of IT HTOE December 15, 8 years since
REUI 2018 the date of
99FF 1552903 % grant
Room 2903, No. 1,
Lane 99,
Yiminhe Road,
Hongkou District,
Shanghai
the PRC
ZANG Ying Qink+  ATEI&H - th 0308 20184 EEEEEE: 975,000 a
Ms. ZANG Ying Qin ~ #l3RCMOT & bW 124158 HBET8E
Former Vice AAE December 15, 8 years since
President, Head of 1889057 102 % 2018 the date of
R&D and CMO Room 102, No. 90, grant
Lane 188,
Mingyue Road,
Shanghai
the PRC
Kbt SRBE FE 0.308 2018%F BB 800,000 a
Ms. ZHU Lin FHEBTE i 12A158 FEET8EF
(SRH) Senior Director, R17= December 15, 8 years since
Head of Business HEE 2018 the date of
Excellence 377F 95501 E grant
Room 501, No. 9, 20204 A1H 100,000 C
Lane 377, April 1, 2020
Gumei Road,
Minhang District,
Shanghai
the PRC
&% 34,235,710
Total
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a1 AEEHFSK S EUS R AR E - Note 1:  excluding options forfeited or cancelled.

Msk2 . RIREDBEITHAE - Note 2:  adjusted due to dividend distribution.

fsE3 . H2HTXMIGEBEREROTRER - Note 3:  please refer to different categories of vesting schedules below.
=5l BEREX

Category Vesting schedule

a ROEHRA - BRI TR THBREN25%ER T RHANSBFRAERS -

25% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a four-year term.

b REFERA - BREREEE TR TRREN33%  33%M34%EX TRHNSBFAESRE -
33%, 33% and 34% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a three-
year term.

C PREFEIRA - BT &) T AR T RS AR H50% M50 % K T H B S AF A &SRS -
50% and 50% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a two-year
term.

d IR B T AT TEREM0%ER TR B AEFEERE -

100% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon first anniversary of grant date.

x2: Table 2:
TEER
FizTERET (En/ 8%
i RATER 1 BEARE)
FETHERET By (M) (BaE2)

i R AT BE AR AT WY EE Total number Exercise BERBX
(BFF&ET) ARAEH of outstanding Price (Pf=E3)
Range of outstanding Total Shares under (Usb/ Vesting
Shares under options number of options granted per option) B R Schedule
granted (Note 1) grantees (Note 1) (Note 2) Date of grant Option period (Note 3)
12100,0008 & 15 63 2,061,000 0.308 20185F12A15H BEHAH a d

1 to 100,000 Shares December 15, 2018 HBET8E
2019%4A1RH 8 years since the
April 1, 2019 date of grant
202054 A1H
April 1, 2020

100,001%200,0008% & 5 10 1,850,000 0.308 20184 12A15H BEHAH a b, cd

100,001 to 200,000 Shares December 15, 2018 fEFt8eF
201954 A1H 8 years since the
April 1, 2019 date of grant
20204 A1H
April 1, 2020
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TEER
FizTERET (/8%
i85 RAT AR 17 9 BaRE)
FETERET e (fiE1) (BaE2)

e RATBE AR AT WY S Total number Exercise BERBX
(BFF&E1) ARAEH of outstanding Price (Pf=E3)
Range of outstanding Total Shares under (Usb/ Vesting
Shares under options number of options granted per option) A BN Schedule
granted (Note 1) grantees (Note 1) (Note 2) Date of grant Option period (Note 3)
200,0012 300,000 8% 17 11 2,971,000 0.308 20184 12715H ERHAH a,b,cd

200,001 to 300,000 Shares December 15, 2018 feET8E

2019%4A1R 8 years since the

April 1, 2019 date of grant

20204 A1H

April 1, 2020
300,0012400,0000% B 15 16 6,240,000 0.308 2018F12A158 BB H acd
300,001 to 400,000 Shares December 15, 2018 fEFt84F

201954 A1H 8 years since the

April 1, 2019 date of grant

2020%4A1H

April 1, 2020
400,001%500,0008% %1% 5 2,420,000 0.308 2018F12H15H B L H acd
400,001 to 500,000 Shares December 15, 2018 fEEt8eF

2019%4AR1H 8 years since the

April 1, 2019 date of grant

202054 H1R

April 1, 2020
500,001Z600,000/% 17 5 2,901,000 0.308 2018F12A15H BB ab,cd
500,001 to 600,000 Shares December 15, 2018 FEE8E

2019%4AR1AH 8 years since the

April 1, 2019 date of grant

2020%4R1H

April 1, 2020
600,001%749,999% %17 3 2,100,000 0.308 2018%12H15H ERHAH a, c
600,001 to 749,999 Shares December 15, 2018 BT84

20204 R 1H 8 years since the

April 1, 2020 date of grant
&% 113 20,543,000
Total
Mgkl ©  NEIEWOR U sk U R B IS 4 - Note 1:  excluding options forfeited or cancelled.
faE2 . R BDEEITHE - Note 2:  adjusted due to dividend distribution.
fisE3: HRMMTXMIEBERENTRER - Note 3:  please refer to different categories of vesting schedules below.
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&5l BEREX
Category Vesting schedule
a REUEERA - BB 8 T AR TRREN25%ER T BN SAF R ERE -
25% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a four-year term.
b REFHRA - BRESEE E TR TREREN33% « 33%M34% TR TRBNSBEFAESE -
33%, 33% and 34% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a three-
year term.
C RRIEFEIRA - BB 8 T AT TRE AR M50% 50 % K T H i S AF A ERE -
50% and 50% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a two-year
term.
d BB BT TREREM100% ER TRMNEEBEFRERE -
100% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon first anniversary of grant date.
(9) BEREHBTERYE (g) Establishment of trustee for the Option Incentive
A Plan
RARBZEHEEZTA U Our Company has engaged a professional trustee to hold and manage
B A AR IR B AR B BT 8 our Shares to be issued under the Option Incentive Plan. Our Company
FTEITHRMD - AQAHRZT will issue up to 54,778,710 Share to the trustee.
AT & % 54,778,710 B 17 °
2. BRLAHZBRERBEBRESTS Post-IPO Option Plan

64

EVNES 1%:%&%&% 5 EREE
SRERABSGESNREARANHIE

AR Iﬂ@ IELEERAANTR
ERFRMBEBANEIELE N BHAAA
AIREROHEE BRXAMEERE
BRI EARAREERME - HE
REET2EETLHLATHE  HERS
YR EFEHRHERREZENBERE
B 3 1% A & B E B B A E ) [
A (B & BT B B 2 7] 35 (T {2 B B
Ai%@§‘§$~%@AE\EH~
WA DA ARl BP - fE
%~&@~¥%é¢%1~éaﬁ¥¥
BEEENURIGHES) FRERE
RERBRE - MREMEA  EATE
BEHRERERROIZELERIEE XA
BEBBRETERD  ERITER
i EEeNHERERRE  BET
% 8 38 FA U 1 R R 0 T BEBR 5% B MR
ABRERAE  BEBATTEER
BRSO TR -

The purpose of the Post-IPO Option Plan is to provide selected participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in our Company and to
encourage selected participants to work towards enhancing the value of our
Company and its Shares for the benefit of our Company and Shareholders as
a whole. The Post-IPO Option Plan will provide our Company with a flexible
means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to selected participants. Any individual, being
an employee, director, officer, consultant, adviser, distributor, contractor,
customer, supplier, agent, business partner, joint venture business partner or
service provider of any member of our Group or any affiliate who the Board
or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed or
will contribute to our Group is entitled to be offered and granted options.
However, no individual who is resident ‘in a place where the grant, acceptance
or exercise of options pursuant to the Post-IPO Option Plan is not permitted
under the laws and regulations of such place or where, in the view of the
Board or its delegate(s), compliance with applicable laws and regulations in
such place makes it necessary or expedient to exclude such individual, is eligible
to be offered or granted options.
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Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan and any other
schemes shall be decided by our Shareholders upon adoption of the
Post-IPO Option Plan and in no event shall such total number of Shares
exceed 67,787,426 Shares, being 10% of our Shares in issue on the
date of this annual report (the “Option Scheme Mandate Limit")
(excluding any Shares which may be issued pursuant to the exercise of
the Over-allotment Option and the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan). Options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the rules of the Post-IPO Option Plan (or any other share
option schemes of our Company) shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Option Scheme Mandate Limit.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Post-IPO Option Plan and any other share option schemes of our
Company at any time (and to which the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules are applicable) must not exceed 30% of our Shares in issue
from time to time (the “Option Scheme Limit”). No options may be
granted under any schemes of our Company (or its subsidiaries) if this
will result in the Option Scheme Limit being exceeded.

The Option Scheme Mandate Limit may be refreshed at any time by
obtaining prior approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. However, the refreshed Option Scheme Mandate Limit
cannot exceed 10% of our Shares in issue as at the date of such
approval. Options previously granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan
and any other share option schemes of our Company (and to which
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) (including
those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with its terms
or exercised), shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
refreshed Option Scheme Mandate Limit.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Our Company may also grant options in excess of the Option Scheme
Mandate Limit, provided such grant is to specifically identified selected
participant and is first approved by Shareholders in general meeting.

Maximum entitlement of a grantee

Unless approved by our Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
under the Post-IPO Option Plan and any other share option scheme(s) of
our Company to each selected participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue (the “Individual Limit”). Any further
grant of options to a selected participant which would result in the
aggregate number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted to such selected participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12 month period up
to and including the date of such further grant exceeding the Individual
Limit shall be subject to separate approval of our Shareholders (with
such selected participant and his associates abstaining from voting). The
number and terms (including the exercise price) of options to be granted
to such participant must be fixed before Shareholders’ approval and the
date of Board meeting for proposing such further grant should be taken
as the date for the purpose of calculating the exercise price pursuant to
LR17.03(9). As of the date of this annual report, the options under the
Post-IPO Option Plan have not been granted.

Time of exercise of an option

An option may, subject to the terms and conditions upon which such
option is granted, be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee giving
notice in writing to our Company in such form as the Board may from
time to time determine stating that the option is thereby exercised and
the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to
which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to
have taken effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the grantee with the number of
Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein,
together with a remittance in favour of our Company of HKD1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof, which must be received by
our Company within 20 business days from the date on which the offer
letter is delivered to the grantee.
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(e) Subscription price

The amount payable for each Share to be subscribed for under an option
("Subscription Price”) in the event of the option being exercised shall
be determined by the Board but shall be not less than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of our Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i)~ the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

(f) Duration

The Post-IPO Option Plan shall be valid and effective for the period of ten
years commencing on the Listing Date (after which, no further options
shall be offered or granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan), but in all
other respects the provisions of the Post-IPO Option Plan shall remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the rules of the Post-IPO Option Plan.

Save as disclosed above, no share options of the Company were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Post-IPO Option Plan during the period
from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

Post-IPO RSU Plan

The Post-IPO RSU Plan was approved and adopted by our Shareholders on
January 22, 2021. The terms of the Post-IPO RSU Plan are not subject to the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as the Post-IPO RSU Plan will not
involve the grant of options. The total number of Shares underlying the awards
to be granted under the Post-IPO RSU Plan shall be 6,689,963 Shares. Without
prejudice to the foregoing, the total number of Shares underlying the awards
to be granted under the Post-IPO RSU Plan in any financial year will not exceed
three per cent. (3%) of the issued Shares as at the beginning of that financial
year.
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On February 10, 2021, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
6,689,963 Shares to Maples Trustee Services (Cayman) Limited as trustee of
a trust with the intent that such number of Shares would ultimately be held
by SCLN ESOP Management Limited. On February 11, 2021, such number
of Shares were directed to SCLN ESOP Management Limited for the purpose
of holding Shares under the Post-IPO RSU Plan on trust for and on behalf of
grantees to be determined after the Listing. Application has been made to the
Stock Exchange for the listing of and permission to deal in such number of
Shares held by SCLN ESOP Management Limited.

As of December 31, 2020, our Company had not identified any grantee under
the Post-IPO RSU Plan and no restricted share unit was granted.

The purpose of the Post-IPO RSU Plan is to enable the directors, officers, and
other key contributors and employees of our Group to share the success of
our Company, in order to assure a closer identification of the interests of such
persons with those of our Group and stimulate the efforts of such persons on
the Group's behalf.

(a) Restricted Share Unit

An Award represents a grant of restricted share unit (“Restricted
Share Unit”, each a “RSU" or collectively “RSUs") to the grantees (the
“Grantees”). Each RSU shall represent the right to receive one Share
(subject to any adjustment in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO
RSU Plan due to changes of share capital of our Company) upon vesting.
The number of Shares that are subject to outstanding awards of RSUs
granted under the Post-IPO RSU Plan (the “Awards” and each of them,
an Award) at any time shall not exceed the aggregate number of RSUs
that then remain available for distribution under the Post-IPO RSU Plan.
The grant of an Award to a Grantee shall be documented by and subject
to an award agreement (the “Award Agreement”), in which the terms
and conditions of the Award determined by the Board shall be set out.
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(b) Grant of Award

(c)

At the time of grant, the Board shall specify the date or dates and/or any
vesting or any other terms and conditions (which may include continuing
employment or other service relationship, achievement of pre-established
performance goals and objectives and/or such other conditions that the
Board deems appropriate in its sole and absolute discretion) on which
RSUs under an Award shall become vested.

To receive Shares underlying their RSUs, Grantees must: (i) have been
an employee of any member of our Group on a continuous and
uninterrupted basis throughout the vesting periods of their Grant, and
(i) comply with any other additional obligations determined by the Board
(the “Continued Employment Condition”). If the Grantee ceases
to meet the Continued Employment Condition at any time during any
of the vesting periods of their Grant, he or she will automatically and

without prior notice or consideration forfeit his or her RSUs.

If any RSU is forfeited prior to vesting in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Award Agreement, then such RSU shall be forfeited
with immediate effect and of no further force or effect, and no payment
shall be made to the Grantee in respect thereof.

Vesting

(a)  Vesting period

Subject to the terms of the Post-IPO RSU Plan and the specific
terms and conditions applicable to each Award, the RSUs granted
shall be subject to vesting schedule and to the satisfaction of
performance and/or other conditions to be determined by the
Board (if any) in its absolute discretion. If such conditions are not
satisfied, the RSU shall automatically lapse on the date on which
such conditions are not satisfied, as determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18
were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company
or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the RSU Plan, during the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company

has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or the
laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at December 31, 2020 are set out in note

38(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles of Association, every Director, Auditor or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director, Auditor or
other officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal,

in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

ISSUANCE OF DEBENTURES

During the year ended December 31, 2020, no issuance of debentures was made by
the Company.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company made charitable and other
donations in a total amount of RMB3.3 million.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 41 of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company was not engaged in any
litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance is known to the directors to be pending or threatening against the
Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Our Group has adopted internal control and risk management policies to monitor
the on-going compliance with relevant laws and regulations. As far as the Board
is concerned, our Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company and its

subsidiaries in all aspects.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Since the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange during the year ended
December 31, 2020, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended December
31, 2020.

FINAL DIVIDEND

On February 5, 2021, the Board declared a dividend of USD120.0 million from our
consolidated retained earnings as of December 31, 2020 to the then Shareholders.
Save as disclosed above, the Board did not recommend payment of any final dividend
for the year ended December 31, 2020.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Wednesday, June 16
2021. Notice of the 2021 Annual General Meeting will be published and issued to
Shareholders in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlements to attend and vote at the AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, June 10, 2021
to Wednesday, June 16, 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. All Share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
June 9, 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual report, the Company has

maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2020 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
Hong Kong, March 25, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited

(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 218,
which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2020;

o the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2020;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of

significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong CBEIRACH G o TR T A
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com Mtk : +852 2289 8888 ¢ fHH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued
by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment assessment on
intangible assets that are not available for use.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

EMHWEANAEERRETEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HIMEANEREE ZREMG
Impairment assessment on intangible assets that are not
available for use

BLMAHT SRR 2.6 - MsE2.7 - K sE6(g) &M FE19 °
Refer to Note 2.6, Note 2.7, Note 6(g) and Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

M2020F12A318 © E&EFAEANELEENRAERAR
#2678 BT ESFHETRENR  REFEFHHBERAEIKRA
HA g3 AR ER S T AT METRERNR - BB BEB I
BEROBS T  -KAZHBENEE RREZEVEEEHMOR
TEABMMNAIKESE RERETFEREME -

As at December 31, 2020, the Group had intangible assets with the
carrying amount of RMB267.8 million that are not available for use,
which are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Management performed an annual impairment assessment at year
end with the assistance of an independent external valuer based on
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
intangible asset is related to using the multi-period excess earnings
method.

HMRABRAIEANEREEZREMAGT ABRETSIE - JIH
REZbEE P RAKBERBEERG RABNOBRRE  HTEE
ZEAALHTEERERNRALRER S HBEK AR A
% o

We considered the impairment assessment of intangible assets
that are not available for use is a key audit matter because the
assessment involves key assumptions which are subject to significant
management’s estimates and judgements, including the revenue
growth rate of each pipeline products under respective license
arrangements and the discount rate used in the multi-period excess
earnings method.

BPRERBH A ERANETLEE 2 REMLGTAER
WEFBIE TSR :

Our procedures performed in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on intangible assets that are not
available for use mainly include the following:

TRYFFEERENABIES LA ERNETLE
BEZREMTIRE - BB TE KOS AR EE
BREHIE MBBE BAE T HEEENEE REM
BEERREZE(AMAERREZNEEN)KFEFME
EAREREMEAF AR

Understanding and evaluating management’s internal
control and assessment process of the impairment
of intangible assets that are not available for use,
including development of the key assumptions
applied in determining the recoverable amount, and
assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as

subjectivity of significant assumptions used;

AEREEANINBELGEMNER IR
TEM

Assessing the competence, capability and objectivity
of the independent external valuer engaged by

management;

EHREMOGEEERNHHT  FEHEEEBRAZE
TEENEEEREMAFTHIEVEENTKE
RATANZPBRERREZNEEE  RTBBERR
R(MBERALE BEEEXBERTSEEMSG
MBRABRERBERE)NSEMT

Evaluating, with the assistance of our valuation
specialist, the appropriateness of multi-period excess
earnings method used by management to determine
the recoverable amount of intangible assets in the
impairment assessment by considering the industry
practice; and the reasonableness of key assumptions
used, including revenue growth rate and discount
rate by comparing with the Group’s business plan
and market data;
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BREITTEEH @ Key Audit Matters (continued)

HREETER
Key Audit Matter

BEMNESNATEERARESSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

e BRLKBAFEERELZNE BEERLFEME
WA FRAEPERER - U HEEE
MIZEN B AL
Performing retrospective review by comparing the
actual results for the current year with the Group’s
forecasts prepared in the prior year to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;

e HHEBAREMAARET @ FHEZBBREWNEEMN
FARA B2 R AR B0 BURR N
Assessing sensitivities over the key assumptions used
in multi-period excess earnings method in considering
the sufficiency of headroom;

e FAEAHMBBMRTPENEEMNEGAONRERD
M o
Evaluating the adequacy of disclosure of impairment
assessment of intangible assets in the consolidated
financial statement.

BIBEFMAEFEF  BMRR/REEEETFIERNER
BEZRBEMRTTAERBRRERMEBRFF
Based on the audit procedures performed, we found
management’'s key assumptions used in impairment
assessment of intangible assets that are not available for
use to be supportable by the available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear

on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or

safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Jack Li.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, March 25, 2021
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HZE12A31BILEE

Year ended December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
Mot ARET T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
WA Revenue 8 1,918,562 1,708,068
W A B AN Cost of revenue 12 (428,106) (393,141)
EF Gross profit 1,490,456 1,314,927
HERZHMAS Sales and marketing expenses 12 (456,389) (460,332)
THAX Administrative expenses 12 (216,220) (118,385)
2R X Research and development (“R&D") expenses 12 (75,420) (87,688)
b g A Other income 9 139,204 6,795
HaRx Other expenses 9,12 (75,173) —
Hi ez (EE) — F58 Other gains/(losses) — net 10 28,465 (5,128)
K& R B Operating profit 834,923 650,189
7 & YA Finance income 11 11,478 12,171
B & AR Finance costs 11 (29,592) (1,189)
B (AN, W A HEE Finance (cost)/income, net (18,114) 10,982
Ff 15 Bt A1 R Profit before income tax 816,809 661,171
e Income tax expense 14 (63,114) (46,567)
EATEE AEMEERFE Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company 753,695 614,604
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HE12A31BILEE

Year ended December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
BisE ARBTT ARBFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hih 2 mE K= Other comprehensive income
TERBET 2B Items that will not be reclassified
HH to profit or loss
NAnEBESAEEH “Eﬁ Changes in the fair value of equity
FTAE M2 investments at fair value through
BRI EH D ME {E other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) 26 153,247 17,679
2 18 A BE B 3 53 M E 18 #Y Items that may be subsequently reclassified
EH to profit or loss
Bk E B AR Currency translation differences 33 9,168 27,578
FRAXEKEEAR Total comprehensive income for
the year 916,110 659,861
ATALTEGZEKZMAE : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
AAREER A Owners of the Company 916,110 659,861
EATRBEEABREESRER Earnings per share attributable to
(AR¥ ) owners of the Company (RMB) 15
FRERAEF Basic earnings per share 1.38 1.13
FREERF Diluted earnings per share 1.35 1.13

F89B 2188 M it Az WIS MK AR P The notes on pages 89 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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M12A31H

As at December 31,

20205 20194
2020 2019
Mot AR®ET T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BE Assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
EREEE Right-of-use assets 17 8,810 26,082
¥ BB REE Property, plant and equipment 18 5,454 9,021
EREE Intangible assets 19 652,691 169,251
URAARBEFEAEE8 A Financial assets at fair value through
EHERNEREE profit or loss (“FVPL") 25, 26 55,936 24,971
IWAREBEFE2HEEZEF A Financial assets at FVOCI
ErEK=NE/mEE 25, 26 232,352 37,491
BEERIBEE Deferred tax assets 31 13,336 —
H & E Other assets 20 5,151 6,991
973,730 273,807
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 21 171,585 140,199
2 5 W FkE Trade receivables 22,25 324,791 362,900
Hihme & E Other current assets 23 60,416 25,666
AR BEFE2EEZEHFT A Financial assets at FVPL
EHERNEREE 25, 26 70,013 123,761
ReEkReEED Cash and cash equivalents 24, 25 1,118,986 919,490
X R ER e Restricted cash 24,25 163,123 —
1,908,914 1,572,016
EEH#E Total assets 2,882,644 1,845,823
FWEHEFEIZRABMRAE SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2020 £ & & & ANNUAL REPORT 83
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®12A31H
As at December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
Mot ARET T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EzkEaE Equity and liabilities
=R Liabilities
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
f& & Borrowings 30 1,171,489 —
EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 31 9,258 6,240
HEAE Lease liabilities 25, 29,
34(c) 2,070 6,992
HiE RSB & Other non-current liabilities 194 815
1,183,011 14,047
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5 KEMERKIE Trade and other payables 28 514,098 224,321
HEAE Lease liabilities 25, 29,
34(c) 6,402 19,466
f& 3K Borrowings 30 782,988 —
BN ER R IE B & Current tax liabilities 84,283 62,812
1,387,771 306,599
BEER Total liabilities 2,570,782 320,646
EEFE Net assets 311,862 1,525,177
AAREEAEMGLES Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
& 7 Share capital 32 192 —
H b fE Other reserves 33 162,673 1,296,133
REB AT Retained earnings 148,997 229,044
ERER Total equity 311,862 1,525,177
FRIEZR218E WM T RZ E M IS M &K BV AR The notes on pages 89 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
aN

FIEE2ISENMBREREELH20214F The financial statements on pages 81 to 218 were approved by the Board of Directors

SASHMES NEZRESRRZ on March 25, 2021 and were signed on its behalf.
b Zhao Hong
BE Director
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ARREE NS
Attributable to owners of the Company
(R&tE18) /
AR HAfEE REEF At

(Accumulated

losses)/
Share Other retained
capital reserves earnings Total
i3 AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT AREFT
Note RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
N2019F1B1B W &8 Balance at January 1, 2019 — 1,214,150 (171,279) 1,042,871
2TH K& Comprehensive income
F R FE Profit for the year — — 614,604 614,604
KARBEFELEE Changes in the fair value of equity
FEAHE fh 2 iz A investments at FVOC|
BRRERENAABEED 26 — 17,679 — 17,679
HNEEBE K, Foreign currency translation 33 — 27,578 - 27,578
2 &8 Total comprehensive income — 45,257 614,604 659,861
HEAEEREFEANRS  Transactions with equity holders of
the Group
EREZEATERE Appropriation to statutory reserves 33 — 2,685 (2,685) —
B0 B 2 7 2 Share based compensation expenses 27 — 34,041 — 34,041
[Egs) Dividends 16 — — (211,596) (211,596)
HASEREREAD Total transactions with equity
REHBE holders of the Group — 36,726 (214,281) (177,555)
R2019F12A31 B & Balance at December 31, 2019 — 1,296,133 229,044 1,525,177
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AAREE AEMS
Attributable to owners of the Company
IR H@#E REZF =
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
i3 ARMET T AR¥T T ARMT T ARMT T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2020F1B1R &84 Balance at January 1, 2020 — 1,296,133 229,044 1,525,177
EELVE: Comprehensive income
FRHNE Profit for the year — — 753,695 753,695
UKAREEFEAHES Changes in the fair value of equity
FHAH A 2 TH KA 5 investments at FVOCI
BREREH AR BEED 26 — 153,247 — 153,247
HVEETE K, Foreign currency translation 33 — 9,168 — 9,168
2HBEAE Total comprehensive income — 162,415 753,695 916,110
HAEERESEEANRKS  Transactions with equity holders of
the Group
BITERR Issuance of ordinary shares 32 192 25,193 — 25,385
BREETHRE Appropriation to statutory reserves 33 — 7,588 (7,588) —
B 5 B & 5 Share based compensation expenses 27 — 66,823 — 66,823
MR & Contribution from shareholders 33 — 8,761 — 8,761
g Dividends 16 — (1,404,240) (826,154) (2,230,394)
HEAEEREZFEAN Total transactions with equity
REBE holders of the Group 192 (1,295,875) (833,742) (2,129,425)
72020612 A31H K &84 Balance at December 31, 2020 192 162,673 148,997 311,862
FSOEE2I8EMM T AZET K IREMNERK The notes on pages 89 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

HE12A31BILEE

Year ended December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
FisE AR%T AREEFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RETBHFRBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEMBIRE Cash generated from operations 34 1,031,590 1,046,547
2 W & Interest received 8,577 11,964
2 F &8 Interest paid (21,922) (1,189)
SN iRCE Income tax paid (37,278) (25,696)
RETEBRERLSFE Net cash generated from operating activities 980,967 1,031,626
RETDMERERE Cash flows from investing activities
MYE - BERZEZMAN Payments for property, plant and
A equipment (3,747) (1,947)
mELEEYMRRIE Payments for intangible assets (465,619) (30,695)
WENAREEFEAE Acquisition of financial assets at
B2EAEHERDN FVPL — debt investments
CRMEE —BBKRE (39,149) (6,976)
WELAAEEFEAH Acquisition of financial assets at
BEFAEMEEKZEL FVOCI — equity investments
CREE — REKE (54,831) —
WELAAEBESEAH Acquisition of financial assets at
BETAEHERN FVPL — structured deposits
TREE —EBMUTFEX (967,000) (620,000)
PEUNRAREBEFZAH Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
FHTAZHERN at FVPL — structured deposits
CREE —HBERTXR
Fr 18 318 1,019,387 501,590
PR 28 & 48 N Increase in restricted cash 24(a) (163,123) —
HERRARBEFEAER Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
2T AEHERDN at FVPL — money market funds
PHEE —BEBEMEES
P s 5RIE 3,453 5,538
REZTBFARSFHE Net cash used in investing activities (670,629) (152,490)
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HE12A31BILEE

Year ended December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
FisE ARBTT ARBFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
METDRERERE Cash flows from financing activities
BTEAR Issuance of ordinary shares 32 25,385 —
HENKHERESEH D Principal elements of lease payments 17 (19,283) (22,993)
ST EBEITHA Payment of debt issuance cost (5,601) —
RITERATIERE Proceeds from bank borrowing 2,123,850 —
EWRZAR Payment of listing expenses (3,933) —
XN Dividends paid 16 (2,173,758) (211,596)
METBHFARESEE Net cash used in financing activities (53,340) (234,589)
ReRESEBYEMFR Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 256,998 644,547
FNREEREBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 919,490 275,962
ERFFHHIHES MRS EEY  Effects of exchange rate changes on
k-2 cash and cash equivalents (57,502) (1,019)
FREALCRBRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,118,986 919,490
%

9E F218E WM i RZ M IS M&K B AR The notes on pages 89 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 General information and basis of presentation

1.1

1.2

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on May 13, 2020
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in developing and commercializing a portfolio of
marketed products as well as pipeline with potential in its focused
therapeutic areas including oncology and severe infection (the “Listing

Business”).

The Company completed the initial public offering (“IPO") and had its
shares listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx") on
March 3, 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

History and reorganization of the Group
(a) History of the Group

Immediately prior to (as described in
Note 1.2(b)),

Pharmaceuticals,

the Reorganization
the Listing Business was operated by SciClone
("SPI"),
International Limited (“SPIL”), a company incorporated in the

Inc. SciClone  Pharmaceuticals
Cayman Islands, and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Operating
Entities”).

incorporated in the United States of America (the “U.S.”) in 1990.

SPIL was directly wholly owned by SPI, a company
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1

General information and basis of presentation

(continued)

1.2 History and reorganization of the Group (continued)

(a)

History of the Group (continued)

Prior to October 13, 2017, SPI was a publicly-traded US SEC
domestic registrant with NASDAQ-listed common stock under
ticker “SCLN”. On October 13, 2017, pursuant to an agreement
and plan of merger consummated on June 7, 2017 with a
consortium of investors (the “Shareholders”), SPI was privatized
and ceased to be a public corporation, with the trading of its
common shares terminated (the “Privatization”).

With the express purpose of carrying out the acquisition of SPI,
Silver Biotech Holding Limited (“SBH") was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on December 13, 2016. SBH is wholly owned by
Silver Biotech Elements Limited (“SBE"”), a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and owned by the Shareholders.

Silver Delaware Investment Limited (the “Merger Sub”), a United
States (Delaware) corporation and transitory acquisition vehicle,
which was wholly owned by Silver Biotech Investment Limited
(“SBI”), a Cayman Islands exempted company wholly owned by
SBH, was merged with and into SPI, with SPI continuing as the

sole surviving corporation.

As a result of the Privatization, SPI became a direct wholly
owned subsidiary of SBI, while SBH and SBE became the parent
companies of SPI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 General information and basis of presentation

(continued)

1.2 History and reorganization of the Group (continued)

(a)

(b)

History of the Group (continued)

After the Privatization in October 2017, a series of restructuring
steps were taken to streamline the Group’s global business
established SciClone
Pharmaceuticals Limited (“SPL”) and SciClone Pharmaceuticals

structure. During the restructuring, SBI
Management Limited (“SPML”, formerly known as SciClone
Pharmaceuticals Holding Limited) as its wholly owned subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong in 2018. Supply chain and executive
management businesses in SPI which comprised part of the Listing
Business were transferred and incorporated into SPL and SPML,

respectively.

As a result of the restructuring, 57% and 43% of the equity
interests of SPIL were held by SBH and Silver New Cayman Holding
Limited (“Silver New Cayman”), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands, which was 50% and 50% held by SBH and SPI,
respectively.

Reorganization

In preparing for the IPO and listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of the HKEx (the “Listing”), the Group underwent
a reorganization (the “Reorganization”) pursuant to which the
Listing Business was transferred to the Company.
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1

General information and basis of presentation

(continued)

1.2 History and reorganization of the Group (continued)
(b) Reorganization (continued)

The Reorganization involved the following steps:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

On April 6, 2020, SPI transferred the entire equity interests
of Sciclone Pharmaceuticals Italy S.R.L. (“SP Italy”) to SPIL at
cost. As a result, SP Italy became a wholly owned subsidiary
of SPIL;

On May 13, 2020, the Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with one share being allotted and issued
to the initial subscriber. On the same date, the subscriber
share of the Company was transferred at par value of
USD0.00005 to GL GLEE
the Ultimate Shareholders, for the purpose of handling

Investment Limited, one of

corporate reorganization and secretarial matters;

On June 16, 2020, SPI made distribution in specie of its
50% equity interests of Silver New Cayman to SBI. On June
18, 2020, SBI made distribution in specie of all its equity
interests of Silver New Cayman to SBH, and then Silver New

Cayman transferred all its equity interests of SPIL to SBH;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1

General information and basis of presentation

(continued)

1.2 History and reorganization of the Group (continued)
(b) Reorganization (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

On June 18, 2020, SBI transferred its entire equity interests
of SPL and SPML to SPIL at nil consideration. Following the
transfer, SPL and SPML became wholly owned subsidiaries
of SPIL;

On June 18, 2020, SBH made a distribution in specie of its
entire equity interests of SPIL to SBE; and

On June 24, 2020, SBE transferred its entire equity
interests of SPIL to the Company. The Company allotted
and issued 543,135,509 ordinary shares in total at par
value of USD0.00005 each to the Ultimate Shareholders in
proportion to their shareholdings in SBE as the fully paid
consideration.

Upon the completion of the Reorganization, the Company became

the holding company of the companies now comprising the

Group.

As part of the Reorganization, all the relevant intellectual

properties held by SPI are being transferred to SPIL. In light of the
long time frame for the transfer, on May 28, 2020, SPI and SPIL

entered into an intellectual property license agreement, pursuant

to which SPI agreed to grant a perpetual, exclusive and royalty-

free license to SPIL and its certain affiliates with respect to such

relevant intellectual properties held by SPI.

WAEBEEZRRABMR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2020 £ & $f &5 ANNUAL REPORT 93



PRI R I ot

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1

94

—RERKZIEE

1.3 2HEE

EREHAMKERESEAEZ - £T
X¥BHBBKEEBHARE - BB
EH BACEEBIANLT
E¥BWHEETFARR  THAR
AlFE  cEEMERN  ARAIKRE
SEEMEMER  THEEBE
FIEE o E XM aE1.207i A9 25 58
EAKEERBNER Tl
BAACEERARN EMEBLH
EHEERER -

E

At - AEBAEENAEBERER
RELEBTLETEBOLESE
BEAREERBET QRO A Y
BHRERERESHEEREIN
PRE2MMMERS LHEB 2
FREEZY -

SPIX B 7R 4 75 B T 75 B
BERRIAT R A AA GBS
Hx -

i) AEERBEPZ2IEMA
SPI X 7% - BN EFE XK
RREEFMEBAHAR -
SPIY X 5 I 4 £ - IR T
ERAHMBRERPAEHA
B o

(i) HEEHZTKE KEET
AEEME FHEKER
HSPEERBE(XERRE
ReRREEFEY - BNEH
BHEE HtRBHEER
Hh fE A 3RI8) DI ER B A
AR 2 R Sk AR R & (T &
33(ii)) ©

1

General information and basis of presentation
(continued)

1.3 Basis of presentation
Immediately prior to and after the Reorganization,

Business is conducted through the Operating Entities. Pursuant to the
Reorganization, the Listing Business held through the Operating Entities
are transferred to and held by the Company. The Company has not been
involved in any other business prior to the Reorganization and does not
meet the definition of a business. The steps as described in Note 1.2
above are merely a Reorganization of the Operating Entities and did not
change the business substance and management of the Listing Business

conducted through the Operating Entities.

Accordingly, the Group resulting from the Reorganization is regarded as
a continuation of the Listing Business under the Operating Entities and
the consolidated financial statements of the companies now comprising
the Group have been prepared on a consolidated basis and is presenting

using the respective carrying value of the Listing Business for all periods

presented.

The financial information of SPI that relates to the Listing Business for the
years presented was included in the consolidated financial statements in

the following manner:

(i) Retrospective presentation method is adopted by the Group
that SPI's business was incorporated as if it had always been
consolidated with the Listing Business. Transactions and balances
of SPI were consolidated in the consolidated financial statements

at carrying values.

(i) Upon completion of the Reorganization, assets and liabilities of
SPI relating to the Listing Business which were not transferred to
the Group (mainly included cash and cash equivalents, current

tax liabilities,

accounted for as a deemed distribution to or contribution from

the shareholders (Note 33(ii)).

the Listing

other current assets and other payables) were
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at FVPL or FVOCI which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
6.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains/losses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation.
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2 FEESTBEBEw 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
21 REEEH) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
— XEBEESERAR AT — New and amended standards adopted by the
RASILETER) Group
KEBEMK2020F1 18 H The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
MO FEREBREERER for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
AT R REEST - January 1, 2020:
RUT Bk 2 %A
28| WEERBEN

Effective for annual
periods beginning on

Standards or after
(B ET2ERI) B9k KRR EHER) £85% (BFIA) [EXRKFERE] 2020%F1A1H
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020
(BRI TR 22 8) 8357 (BATA) [EBHE=] 20201 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 3, “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020
(B IsaR s R]) 295% - (BIBREER) $£395% & (BERIMBImELER) £75% (EFIA) 202051 A1 H
[ F RN E
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform” January 1, 2020
RABFT BB S B E SR 20201 A1H
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting January 1, 2020
(EBHBIHELR) F165% (BFTA) [COVID-19iEFEHEEEE ] 202056 A1H
Amendment to IFRS 16, “COVID-19-related Rent Concessions” June 1, 2020
B AT 38 1 B A SR Y The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
SREWEEMNTE - BHEG amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to
TEHEMSRRAMES significantly affect the current or future periods.

ERFE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted

Standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued

but not yet effective and not been early adopted by the Group are

as follows:

RUT Bz %%

28| WEERBEN
Effective for annual

periods beginning on

Standards or after
(ER s E 2R 8175 [RBRE4] 20231 H1H

IFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts”

(BB HBHRELR) F105% R (EBESFER) F285 (BFIAX)

SELEZRMEEHEIOEA]

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor and

Its Associate or Joint Venture”

(BEEHERD F15% (BRIA) [BEIBRRSKRIERE

[FiteE-gibonil PN

Amendments to IAS 1, “Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-current”

(BEEMBHELEL) F35% (BFIA) [3IBBSER]

Amendments to IFRS 3, “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”

(B EsHER) F375% (BFIA) [BREAH — BITAKNMNKAE]

Amendments to IAS 37, “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”

20185 E£2020F (BB BREER) 2 FEHE
Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020

(B EHERD F1e5k (BRIA) [ - BER&RE : (EREREANMSHR]

Amendment to IAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use”

January 1, 2023

N

4 ==

FE

To be determined

20231 A1H
January 1, 2023

2022F1A1H
January 1, 2022

2022F1 /18
January 1, 2022

2022F1A1H
January 1, 2022

2022F1 /18
January 1, 2022

EZCHMERRBTANE
TTakE - LT EHER
EL TR KB RT AL IR
NS AR BN A O TR
RELEEATE -

The directors have performed assessment on the new standards

and amendments, and has concluded on a preliminary basis

that these new standards and amendments would not have

a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements when they become effective.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

(a) Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains/losses
on transactions between the companies within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

(i) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account

for business combinations other than those under common

control, regardless of whether equity instruments or other

assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquired business;

equity interests issued by the Group;

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.



2

FESTHTHREEME )

22 MEBRARE)

(a)

V78

(1)

a8)

REASHE)
EEBAHBRTE
AT HBEENK
AEMBERRAEER
& M RE R
HEWMARBET
2 (D8 PIHMERK
IR ¥4 F3-$-
W EE B A R B
18 5K 3% 3k 422 S E 25 BT
ER kTR B R
& 7S 0 48 FE Lt 1)
RN B EEEN
{E (] 3 PR B i 25

WERBKRAREE
By 32K o

%ﬁ*%F~#ﬁW
FEH RS M (T ) FEIE AR
%\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m
RS B B R A
BaRKEESENA
7 B {8 B 38 P U2 B 7]
WREETFELARE
BEHEE - JIAKT
B -WZESHE
18 74 FIT Wi B 2 765 T %
REEFENAAE
B AlZEEeEE
RERABRRERE

BEE .

ot B 75 ¥R AR MY R

Notes to the Consolidated Fmanoal Statements

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognized directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently re-measured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
("OCI") in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously

recognized in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements
of the Company are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

24

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial information of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated outside of Mainland China are USD,
EUR or HKD, while the functional currencies of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China are Renminbi (“RMB").
As the major business of the Group are within Mainland China,
the Group determined to present its consolidated financial

statements in RMB (unless otherwise stated).
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2 FEESTBEBEw 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.4 HNEERE (&) 2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) XZRK4EE (b) Transactions and balances
INERBERSE BNRT Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
fEXsIE B EEFGER currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
HANEEYE - #EFHAR transactions or valuation when items are re-measured. Foreign
SRAINETENEEEE exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
REBRFRERREME transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
A HNE W = RS ERA O rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
2HKERAER ° currencies are recognized in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income.

BA 5 20 A 8 HO SN U 25 T S Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
BERAHEERRROEE presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
RARNEZS o FiB HtnoME within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
WEHMEBIZFERE G presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
cERFEERNI LMl on a net basis within “Other gains/(losses) — net”.

(BR) —FRIARZT -

INE R R BEAENIEE Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
KEERAARBEEEZ currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
HEEEBRE - BARBE when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
AFTEMEENRBENERE assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
HIERA R BEWELEE the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
M—2BoHRE - Hlan - AR non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at FVPL
AEEFEEEEHTAR are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
HIEEN R ERSIEEN loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
MEERBEZELZER equities classified as at FVOCI are recognized in OCI.

BHRAEIS/IABEER
Z—akn - MABBARR
EBEFEAEZFHTAHM
PHRENERFIFEEE
BEZEAEZEREMZE
W AR -
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

3 income and expenses for each income statement are

translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

3 all resulting currency translation differences are recognized
in OCl.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognized in OCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Fmanoal Statements

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes the expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes the expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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2 FEESTBEBEw 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
25 ME - -BERZESE) 2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
ME BEARENTERAERE Depreciation of PP&E is calculated using the straight-line method to
IR E LT F R F S K allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
RAOBEFREEA;E  FEWQ lives, as follows:
™
fh 5T AT 62 S 5P
Estimated useful lives
— MARE K& 3E5F
— Office furniture and equipment 3-5 years
— E 45
— Vehicle 4 years
— HEMEEE FIAHBREEMET A EAFHRRORES

— Leasehold improvements

Shorter of remaining term of the lease and the estimated useful lives of assets

106

REHHBEERTEHFHE
ERERRETRIT  EEEY
BB -

FEENERHEESNE G TR
Bl 5 78 - H AR E E B MO E A
Yo m 5 28 (M E2.7) »

HEME BERRENESR
PRSFIREEREMENZHRET
W& G 2 E RO E IR
=/ (B1E) —FBEINER -

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals of PP&E are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized in “Other gains/
(losses) — net” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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2 FEESTBEBEw 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
26 BEEE 2.6 Intangible assets
(a) WM< (a) R&D expenditures

WRIEBFTEAENFRESL Research expenditure on research activities is recognized as an

EEEABERAMX - expense as incurred.

REREEENHEANSEE An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development

MEFEE  RSEUTE activities is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have

HEWBEENERTER been demonstrated:

J Rt Er] B EFRE . it is technically feasible to complete the intangible assets so
E LA that it will be available for use;

e BHEBETKERE . management intends to complete the intangible assets and
Ak ERFEE use or sell it;

. BENFERANKEEE . there is an ability to use or sell the intangible assets;
TEE

o A AEREE B E K J it can be demonstrated how the intangible assets will
R E A Al BE R R 2R generate probable future economic benefits;

B

. BB RBRHAE - B . adequate technical, financial and other resources to
Ko EAth B IR AT 58 B B complete the development and to use or sell the intangible
BWFEASEEER assets are available; and
BE R

o BEs A SEihEt 2 B o the expenditure attributable to the intangible assets during
BEEREREREMN its development can be reliably measured.

R X -

& £ 20194 220204 12 The Group’s R&D expenditures incurred did not meet the

A31BILEEE  AEER capitalization principle above and were expensed as incurred

BRI AFE Lt during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020.

BEARERA - MREERX

i e
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Licenses

Payments made to third parties to in-license or acquire intellectual
property rights, compounds and products include initial non-
refundable upfront payments, subsequent milestone payments
and royalty payments. Upfront and milestone payments are
capitalized as intangible assets when incurred, unless these
payments are for outsourced R&D work which follow the
capitalization principle in Note 2.6(a). Royalty payments incurred
along with the underlying sales are expensed as incurred and

charged to cost of revenue.

Additional payments for purchase of intangible assets contingent
on future events are not considered on initial recognition of the
assets, but are added to the costs of the assets initially recorded
when incurred, or when related liabilities are remeasured for

changes in cash flows, if such payments are related to the costs of

the assets.

Subsequent internal R&D expenses in relation to

intellectual property rights, compounds and products are expensed
or capitalized in accordance with the accounting policy as
mentioned in Note 2.6(a). The Group’s R&D expenditures incurred
did not meet the capitalization principle for any products and were

expensed as incurred during the years ended December 31, 2019

and 2020.

Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that have
an indefinite useful life or not available for use are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they

might be impaired (Note 2.7).
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
26 BEEE®) 2.6 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Fal(#&) (b) Licenses (continued)
TERNEBRESIALZEERN Intangible assets recognized related to in-license arrangements
B EEANHERRFZE are amortized on the straight-line basis over their useful economic
AR FERLEFIHRA lives when they become available for use (Note 6(c)).
B (M sE6() °
A ERELEENGRTA Estimated useful lives of available for-use intangible assets are as
FERFHNT : follows:
fAET A fE A H
Estimated useful lives
— FFA S5E10F (EREESIARHHRNEAERFEENR (UREERE)
— Licenses 5-10 years (based on the terms of the in-license arrangements or the estimated duration of product sales,
whichever is shorter)
(c) B (c) Software
AR E RIRHE A AT K Costs incurred to acquire and bring to use of software are
K EREREETINER capitalized as intangible assets and amortized over their estimated
b - WAEEET A A EH useful lives (generally 3 years).
CGBEAR3F)NTAHE -
27 kERmEEZRE 2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

BARARRAERFHHEE
REVEEFLEE HEEFE
TREANR XEEEHLER
BB B BRI AL H IR BUE R -
AIE SRR EITRER R - Ef
EERBEMHHRABRANER
7R FR T {8 7T BE 48 0 Ui (2] B A 17081
By HEEREEBLEA
WEeENSREDRERBE -
JRE e EAEEN DA EER
BHERARERBEEMENR
BERLE  BIERE BER
ABEYENRERECRRELSE
i) WRERRES—HA - HEd
S BEHBABENFEREER
BEWMEMRABERTD A AT AR
BlIEITRA

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal

of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.8
(a)

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI) or through profit or loss), and

— those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be
recorded either in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

See Note 25 for details of each type of financial assets.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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2 FEETHREHBE @ 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
28 RERHEMEMEE &) 2.8 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(b) HRRAILER (b) Recognition and derecognition
FELNEETABERLE Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
WEMEEHNKZ S A (B on the trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
AREBEAFEBEXKTEEESE purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when
ZE)ER - BWERE S the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
MEENRSRENENE expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
mEEHEE  BEAKEEE substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

E LR AARENRERR R
HRERE RSB EE

48 I TERR o

(c) #itE (c) Measurement
ML HERE - AEBO SR At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
BEREAAREBE(NAY its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL,
FURREBEFEEHES) transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
FFAEHETSNEREE) the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
MEZEGEBRNZe/REER FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

BORSGKATE - UAR
EBEFEAEZHFAEH
BENEREENZIHKE
RERZH -

BT RERRAKEAY Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
RS RS - [EERA entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
METENSREEERE payment of principal and interest.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt

instruments into the following measurement categories:

. Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in “Other
gains/(losses) — net” together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(c) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
"Other gains/(losses) — net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in “Other gains/(losses) — net” and
impairment expenses are presented as a separate line item
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(c) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is

recognized in profit or loss and presented net within “Other

gains/(losses) — net” in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss
as "Other income” when the Group’s right to receive payments is

established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognized
in "Other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair

value.
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2 FEESTBEBEw 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
28 RERHEMEMEE &) 2.8 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(d) #H#HE=MTA (d) Offsetting financial instruments
EAA ARG AITENA Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
DR WHEK reported in the consolidated balance sheets when there is a legally
FRERELA S FIREIEE enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there
ENEEAER  SREE is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the assets and
HeEr EEEE  LES settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
HEEBBRAN2HREZF must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
oo A RIERBIBITRAN T in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
FEURRARREHTE - B insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

B — MR IBIE T A KA
ARmHEFH—BHERE
REFN - BEERENRWE
i 7] 58 I AT ©

(e) HifE (e) Impairment

ANEBIL A R AETF(HE The Group assesses the expected credit losses associated with
BRBEKAFENELLT its debt instruments carried at amortized cost, including loan
EREMEREEREE 8 receivables, trade receivables and other receivables (including
HEKER  B5EWRZIE receivables from licensing income, purchase rebate receivables,
N E b FE W RTE (B IR rental deposits and interest receivables) on a forward-looking
WA RIS GRIA ~ PRES R B FE basis, and with the exposure arising from financial guarantee
WHIE - HEZR e & EKF contracts. The impairment methodology applied depends on
B) UERUBERAEHE whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

EoEE o FERRETD A
BFEERRREEEANT

& M 5E ©

MESEWREmMST © K For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
EEEA(EB Y KFRE permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
LERYF I 2 5T T recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

% AR ERMFESNER
AB R ERFIRE T
PAFERR. ©
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8

2.9

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(e) Impairment (continued)

Impairment on other receivables (including receivables from
licensing income, purchase rebate receivables, rental deposits and
interest receivables) and loan receivables is measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly consisting of raw materials, work in progress and
finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost comprises amounts related to direct materials, direct labor and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure. Costs
are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted
average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.10 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. They are generally
due for settlement within 90 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration
that is
components, when they are recognized at fair value. The Group holds

unconditional unless they contain significant financing
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Details about the Group’s impairment
policies and the calculation of the loss allowance are disclosed in Note

2.8.
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2 FEESTBEBEw 2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
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2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term and highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the

facility to which it relates.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.14 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, canceled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity
issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognized in profit or
loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments
issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

2.15 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings, pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.



B 0F B 5 #R R BT R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FEESTBEBEw 2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
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2.16 Financial guarantee contract
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Financial guarantee contract is recognized as a financial liability at the
time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value
and subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments and

° the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance with the

principles of IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present
value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual payments
required under the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be
payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognized as part of the cost of the investment.

2.17 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion of the Company
and its subsidiaries, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the consolidated balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only if it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary

differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except for

deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal

of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is

probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are

recognized on deductible

temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries

only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will

reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available

against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is

a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities

and when the deferred income tax balances relate to the same

taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset

where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to

the extent that it relates to items recognized in OCl or directly in

equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in OCI or directly in

equity, respectively.

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special tax

deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in relation to

qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts for such allowances

as tax credits, which means that the allowance reduces income tax

payable and current tax expense.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

The Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland China have to
make contribution to staff retirement scheme managed by local
government authorities in accordance with the relevant rules and
regulations. Contributions to these schemes are charged to the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as and when
incurred. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions.

The Group also participates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. Both the Group
and the employees are required to contribute to the scheme
monthly. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are expensed as incurred.
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2 FEESTBEBEw 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
219EERA (&) 2.19 Employee benefits (continued)
c) FELAEZL EER (c) Housing funds, medical insurances and other

BREMMERE social insurances

KEERTENEEFESR Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in
MEZERBNEENERER various government-supervised housing funds, medical insurances
Be  BERBEEMHE and other social insurance plan. The Group contributes on a
REREHE - REEE AKRR monthly basis to these funds based on certain percentages of the
EEHEMETEDE salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group's
MUEESHK - B—F L liability in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
B o AEEG U SEESFEE payable in each year. Contributions to the housing funds, medical
NEE USFEEMME insurances and other social insurances are expensed as incurred.

RER -EFEAER  BE
TR Jo E At A & OR B O (i 5K
REERH -

(d) ESEZR/RE (d) Employee leave entitlements
BEEEEZNFBRNEEREE Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they
S REBER - AEE R accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
EEZEEBERBRERHER for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
BMELEFBNGETARE to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
HEE EEEZARBL maternity leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

ERTTHER HEEEEBIE
ARBRAL -

(e) #LirE (e) Bonus plans

TEER 88 & A ANFE AN S B 3R R The expected cost of bonuses is recognized as a liability when
wEE 8 1R A IR 2 1+ the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation for
REELEEITHHEENE payment of bonus as a result of services rendered by employees
% - BB e EibEt and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities
BERAARE - RerrEN for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 1 year and are
BERHR—FANFE & measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are
EERREBI MBS B settled.

£ o
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

))

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the
earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the Group
recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of
IAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to present value.

2.20 Share-based payment

The Group operates share incentive plan, under which it receives services

from

employees as consideration for equity instruments (restricted

shares units (“RSUs”) and options) of the Company. The fair value of

the services received in exchange for the grant of the equity instruments

(RSUs and options) is recognized as an expense in the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income with a corresponding increase in

equity.

In terms of the RSUs and options awarded to employees, the total

amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of

equity instruments (RSUs and options) granted:

including any market performance conditions;

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions; and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
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(continued)

220 R B ERMNTE (&) 2.20 Share-based payment (continued)
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Non-marketing performance and service conditions are included in
calculation of the number of RSUs and options that are expected to vest.
The total amount expensed is recognized over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of RSUs and options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognizes the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment

to equity.

In some circumstances, employees may provide services in advance of the
grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognizing the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new ordinary
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction

costs are credited to share capital and share premium.

2.21 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

—  the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding

any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.21 Earnings per share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

—  the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

—  the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for
further operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to

passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition
The Group principally derives revenue from sales of products and
provision of promotion services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods sold or services
performed, stated net of discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The
Group recognizes revenue when the specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

(a) Product sales

The Group recognizes product revenue at the point in time when
the performance obligation under the terms of a contract with
the customer is satisfied and control of the product has been
transferred to the customer. The Group recognizes product
revenue from selling its proprietary product, Zadaxin, at the
shipping point and recognizes product revenue from selling
promotion products for business partners and in-licensed products
when the products have been delivered to the customers.

The Group’'s contractual arrangement with its exclusive
China importer and distributor for Zadaxin, contains variable
considerations in connection with the price mechanism that if
the provincial tender price is below or above a reference price
(baseline price), the Group may owe price compensation payable
to or is due price compensation receivable from the distributor.
The provincial tender price is the ultimate end-point sales price
approved by provincial authorities in China. The Group estimates
the variable consideration using the expected value method and
takes into consideration the tender price as at the report date
as well as the recent market trend. The variable consideration
(whether price compensation payable or receivable), under
the principles of IFRS 15, is recognized at the time when the
underlying originating sale is recognized.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Promotion service revenue

The Group generated promotion service revenue from the
provision of promotion services to customers. The Group
recognizes promotion  services revenue for designated
pharmaceutical products over time in the period in which its
customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the promotion and marketing services as specified in

promotion service contract.

2.24 Leases

The Group leases office and buildings as lessee. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years with no extension option.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is amortized over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably

certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date

less any lease incentives received,;

. any initial direct costs, and

o restoration costs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the Group’s incremental

borrowing rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognized on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases with a remaining term of 12
months or less as of the date of initial adoption of IFRS 16.

The right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities are present separately on
the consolidated balance sheets.

Lease transaction is considered as a single transaction in which the asset
and liability are integrally linked, there is no net temporary difference
recognition at inception. Subsequently, as differences arise on settlement
of the liability and the amortization of the leased asset, there will be
a net temporary difference on which deferred tax is recognized. The
Group's deferred tax balances related to lease transactions were minimal
as at December 31, 2019 and 2020.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the

Group will comply with all required conditions.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and recognized in profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to PP&E are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.26 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the net fair
value gains/(losses) on these assets. Interest income on financial assets
at amortized cost and financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the
effective interest method is recognized in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The overall risk management program of the Group focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on financial performance of the Group.
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Financial risk management (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The transactions of the Company are denominated and

settled in its functional currency, USD. The Group's
subsidiaries in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong are
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to RMB. Foreign
exchange risk primarily arose from recognized assets and
liabilities in the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in
the Cayman Islands when receiving or to receive foreign
currencies from, or paying or to pay foreign currencies to

business partners.

For the Group’s subsidiaries whose functional currency is
USD, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
USD with all other variables held constant, the impacts on
the profit before income tax for the year ended December
31, 2020 would have been approximately RMB16,153,000
higher/lower (2019: RMB20,533,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of net foreign exchange gains or losses on
translation of net monetary assets denominated in RMB.
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3

Financial risk management (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risks arise from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained in June 2020 (Note 30) at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate

risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates.

If the interest rate of borrowings with floating rate had
been 50 basis points higher/lower, the profit before income
tax for the year ended December 31, 2020 would have
been approximately RMB5,293,000 lower/higher (2019: nil).

(b) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade receivables, other
receivables (including receivables from licensing income, purchase
rebate receivables, rental deposits and interest receivables),
loan receivables and financial guarantee contracts. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
receivables (including receivables from licensing income, purchase
rebate receivables, rental deposits and interest receivables),
loan receivables and financial guarantee contracts represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The Group did not record any significant credit losses
during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020.
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Financial risk management (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit risk of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash

To manage this risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash, they are mainly placed with banks
with high credit rating. There has been no recent history
of default in relation to these financial institutions. The
expected credit loss is close to zero.

Credit risk of trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and

the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of at least 24 months before the
balance sheet date and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables, or significant
adverse changes in the market environment, including,
among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 on the customers.
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3 sRERERE® 3 Financial risk management (ontinued)
3.1 eRERREZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) EEREE &) (b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) B 3 W IE (i) Credit risk of trade receivables (continued)
RV AC )
7 2020 F 12 A 31 The expected credit loss was minimal at December 31, 2020
H- - BRESHERK as the trade receivables were considered to be of low credit
EHHWEREEEEE risk.
Rk - HIEHEEES
BE ) o
% 2020 & 12 A 31 As at December 31, 2020, approximately 84% (2019:
H- - K& B 4%84% 80%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from a
(20194 : 80%) W & customer (“Customer A"”), a subsidiary of a sizable state-
SEWRERE —H owned pharmaceutical product distributor. The credit
EPTEPAD(—R period granted to the Group's customers is usually no more
REHBERDHEE than 90 days and the credit quality of these customers is
HNWEBRA) - &AN&E assessed based on the financial positions of the customers,
BEFERMNEELS past experience and other factors. In view of the sound
BETHBIOK - collection history of receivables due from the customers,
EEEEESHENE management believes that the credit risk inherent in the
FPEBBRA  BAEL Group’s outstanding trade receivables balances due from
BERKTMH - ER the customers is not significant. The Group considered the
FE IR & P SR IE KUK impact of COVID-19, incorporated related forward-looking
LRI BIEER factors to measure expected credit losses, and determined
BAREBEERESER that the expected credit loss remained to be minimal as at
BEE S EWHRIBLE December 31, 2020.
HROEERRTTE
RN AREBEHETE
HEEBERER
COVID-19# % 2 K& 48
FARTEMRE R - W
7E 1R 20204 12 A 31
B®EHEEEBED
BE) o
TREBMAELGHBRARE The following table summarized customers with balances
S EWATEI0ONH T greater than 10% of trade receivables:
J=IE
"12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ZFA Customer A 84% 80%
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Financial risk management (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Credit risk of other receivables

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables from licensing
income, purchase rebate receivables, rental deposits and
interest receivables. The Group considers the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the counter
party’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the counter party;

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behavior of the counter party, including changes in
the payment status of the counter party.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ifi)  Credit risk of other receivables (continued)

As at December 31, 2020, there was no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition (2019: nil). The Group
assessed that the expected credit losses for these receivables
within the next 12 months are not material.

MIEBEEBEL T
- N
TREMEHRANE The following table summarized third parties with balances
R BEE10%M E greater than 10% of other current assets:
=73
"12831H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
NG Company B 23% 1%
NCI(@ Company C 17% 50%
~alD Company D 52% —
BAEBERRAEMR DA SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2020 F £ $k 5 ANNUAL REPORT 137



& OF B 75 R R B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

138

ﬁ%ﬂ@@%i@w” )

3.1 eRiERRAXE)
(b) EEERE &)

(c)

(iv) BI 7% JE (R & HEBY
15 B /7 bz
MM BERZHEM
Bl $§§E%mﬁ
HEBEERR &
%%Eﬁé\#%%
ERRRETEE -
#H = 20204 12 A 31
H B EREL
MEAEERRA
Z (2019 F :300 &
BEETHERAR
& 2,092,860, ooo%))
(FF7E35()(v) ° B ZE
2m9¢&2mo¢u
A31BIEEE - &M
RIEEERE BRI
Rl BV R
Ko BB IS EIR & BE
ERENEERBMKT
H - Bt - RK12
MAANNBHEES
BWARERK -

HRENTDECRRER
FBHP/TETHE € RER
B 7 G Zf%ﬁfﬁ/{”ﬁ#
&g AEENTFERS
EFRARINEGRER
¥OBETENAE KEH
SATER - TAIB R BEE LA
KR E A AR TE R ) fE i
MEBHBINRESRL -

3

Financial risk management (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

(iv)  Credit risk of financial guarantee arrangement

For the financial guarantee arrangement, the Group has
taken measures to manage credit risk, including credit
examination, fraud examination and risk monitoring alert.
The maximum credit risk from financial guarantee contracts
is nil as of December 31, 2020 (2019: USD300 million
(equivalent to RMB2,092,860,000)) (Note 35 (b)(iv)). Based
on the financial conditions of the guarantee, the Group
assessed that the credit risk in relation to the financial
guarantee arrangement since initial recognition was minimal
and therefore, the expected credit losses within the next 12
months were not material during the years ended December
31, 2019 and 2020.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through adequate committed
credit facilities. The Group’s primary cash requirements are for
payments for acquisition of license arrangements, purchases of
inventories, payments for operating expenses, capital injections
into subsidiaries, and unexpected cash outflow due to other
unforeseen crisis.
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3

Financial risk management (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group'’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to fund
its future cash flow needs through internally generated cash flows

from operations and borrowings from financial institutions.

The cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other current
assets (excluding prepayments) held by the Group are expected to
readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

At December 31, 2020, the Group had net current assets
of RMB521,143,000 (2019: RMB1,265,417,000). With the
consideration of anticipated operation cash inflows, and the ability
of adjusting the pace of its operation expansion and expenditures,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient cash

flows in the near future to manage the liquidity risks.
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3 SREREEe 3 Financial risk management (continued)
31 sREBEE®E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) mEHEZREEE) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)
TRIBEEEABRAZAS The table below analyzes the Group's non-derivative financial
L EIEA B A FI A ERRE - #EAR liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
SENENTESREBED B period at the balance sheets date to the contractual maturity date.

ZHREZNHBAR -

1 LR 122F 2E5% SEpE a3t
Less than Between 1 Between 2 More than
1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years Total
ARMET T ARMET T ARMET T ARMT T ARMT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#2020%12A31H At December 31, 2020
B 5 RHEMBENFIE Trade and other payables
(TRREENF & RIEL) (excluding salaries and
bonus payables) 432,884 — — — 432,884
B& Borrowings 863,338 416,355 802,080 — 2,081,773
HEAE Lease liabilities 6,514 2,186 31 — 8,731
1,302,736 418,541 802,111 — 2,523,388
H2019F12831H At December 31, 2019
B 5 RE MR FHRIE Trade and other payables
(TRREENFH € RIEL) (excluding salaries and
bonus payables) 159,083 — — — 159,083
HEAE Lease liabilities 19,820 5,542 2,017 — 27,379
178,903 5,542 2,017 — 186,462
M2020F 1243180 » K& As at December 31, 2020, the Group did not have derivative
B3 4574 S B B (& (2019 financial liability (2019: none).
F:E) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group considers its capital structure as the aggregate of total equity and
long-term debt less cash and cash equivalents. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in order to have funds available to
support the business activities which the directors intend to pursue in addition
to maximizing the return to shareholders. The directors do not establish
guantitative return on capital criteria for management, but rather relies on the
expertise of the Group’s management to sustain future development of the
business.

In order to carry out current operations and pay for administrative costs, the
Group will spend its existing working capital and raise additional amounts as
needed. The Group reviews its capital management approach on an on-going
basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size of the Group, is
reasonable.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyzes the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value
as of each balance sheet date, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorized into three levels within

a fair value hierarchy as follows:

3 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1);

3 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2); and

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market

data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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5 Fair value estimation (continueq)

The following table presents the Group's assets that are measured at fair value
as at December 31, 2019 and 2020:

BB FE_BH BE=EBH& &%t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR¥T T AR®ET T AR®T T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
7A20205F12H31H As at December 31, 2020
UAREBEFEHEEE8 A Financial assets at FVPL —
EHBEENERmEE — Current structured deposits
B 45 1 1 17 2 (P RE26) (Note 26) — 70,013 — 70,013
NRAARBEFEREESHT A Financial assets at FVOC| —
Hth2EKREMEemEE — Non-Current equity investments
FEM B E R E (T 7E26) (Note 26) 180,106 — 52,246 232,352
NARBEFEBEZEF A Financial assets at FVPL —
EfERNeREE — Non-Current equity investments
FEM B AERE (FiTaE26) (Note 26) 2,948 — — 2,948
AR EBEGFEHEES A Financial assets at FVPL —
ERERNEREE — Non-Current debt investments
SERBER R E (FiI7E26) (Note 26) — — 52,988 52,988
183,054 70,013 105,234 358,301
7"2019%12H31H As at December 31, 2019
LAREBEFEBEZE A Financial assets at FVPL —
EfERNEREE — Current money market funds
mEBEB TS E S (M26) (Note 26) 3,397 — — 3,397
LWAREBEFEBEZS A Finandial assets at FVPL —
EHERNEREE — Current structured deposits
T B 45 1 1 T R (BT RE26) (Note 26) — 120,364 — 120,364
AR BEFEBEE#ZZSHF A Finandal assets at FVOCI —
HrEKmNEe/mEE — Non-current equity investments
SEM B AR E (T 7E26) (Note 26) — — 37,491 37,491
WAREBEFEHBEZSE A Finandial assets at FVPL —
EHERNERMEE — Non-Current equity investments
FER B AR RE R & (P 7E26) (Note 26) 3,571 — — 3,571
NAREBEFEHEZE A Financial assets at FVPL —
EHEENEREE — Non-Current debt investments
SEMBEBRE (M E26) (Note 26) — — 21,400 21,400
6,968 120,364 58,891 186,223
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5 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at each of the reporting dates. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

° Discounted cash flow model and unobservable inputs mainly
including assumptions of expected future cash flows and discount
rate; and

o A combination of observable and unobservable inputs, including

risk-free rate and expected volatility, etc.
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5 AREBEMF @ 5  Fair value estimation (continued)
() EE=ZEBARANEMIE (c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
(%)
AEBEERBBENE=ZERT Level 3 instruments of the Group's assets and liabilities include long-term
BEBEUAABEFESEHES equity and debt investments measured at FVPL and long-term equity
SFABHER RERARES investment measured at FVOCI (Note 26).
BEURNRARBEFAEAEE
B et A E fib 2 W s 8 R AR
B & (FzE26) °
TREHHZ=20194F %2020 12 The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of long-
A3MBLEEFENUNAREBEETEZR term debt investments measured at FVPL for the years ended December
HEBHAAZHEE 2 RBES 31, 2019 and 2020.
BRENE="ERIALZS -
BZ12A318LFE
Year ended December 31,
20205 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
F 1) At beginning of the year 21,400 13,787
NE Addition 39,149 6,976
AREBEEEY Changes in fair value (6,179) 405
ME W Z &R Exchange differences (1,382) 232
FR At the end of the year 52,988 21,400
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Fair value estimation (continueq)

(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of equity
investment measured at FVOCI for the years ended December 31, 2019

HEEHH AHM2ERE 2 RiE and 2020.
KEMFE=-"ERITAEEH -
BZE12A31ALLEE
Year ended December 31,
2020 2019%F
2020 2019
AR®ET T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
F 4 At beginning of the year 37,491 19,285
NE Addition 54,831 —
8 E F— g &M ) Transfer to Level 1 (Note (i) (68,017) —
AREBEEEY Changes in fair value 28,899 17,679
5 =% Exchange differences (958) 527
FR At the end of the year 52,246 37,491
B 5 Note:

(i) EHZE2020F12A31BLLFE -
HEAREHKR AR LT - &
% /59,566,000 7T (M & K A
R #68,017,0007T) W& @ T A
RE-EBRBBREFE MR -
HZE2019F12A31HLLFE -
RABEEBRSBENE B
K F_ERRE=-EHzH
W% -

AEERETHBERRRAERE
FEBRTEABENOEEK - ZE
Bg-—ERAMKRENMHBETL
B ELBF - RERMBERN
BEEAEEE=-"ERIANRA
BE SERESRREIMMGE
BHRETHE -

(i) Financial instruments with the amount of USD9,566,000 (equivalent to
RMB68,017,000) was transferred from level 3 to level 1 upon the public
listing of the corresponding investee during the year ended December
31, 2020. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 of fair value
hierarchy classifications during the year ended December 31, 2019.

The Group has a team that manages the valuation of level 3 instruments
for financial reporting purposes. The team manages the valuation
exercise of the investments on a case by case basis. At least once every
year, the team would use valuation techniques to determine the fair
value of the Group's level 3 instruments. External valuation experts are
involved when necessary.
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5 DREEMEw

5 Fair value estimation (continueq)

o) EE=ZEBEH& AN I A (c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
(%)
FZERIANHEZZESRER The valuation of the level 3 instruments mainly included long-term debt
FELETRARNUNAABEFZAEHE investments measured at FVPL in unlisted companies (Note 26), short-
SEE A HERNEHERKE term investments measured at FVPL (Note 26) and equity investments
& (fisE26) - AR AR EBEFTEE measured at FVOC| (Note 26). As these instruments are not traded
HEEPHTAEHBEINEHEE in an active market, their fair values have been determined by using
(ffsF26) R AR R EEAEEE various applicable valuation techniques, including discounted cash flows
BB AREMPEKENRER approach etc.
B (H7E26) R ZEIAWE
RERBMSEE HARBED
ERZEERNHERN(2HER
RBEMEEF)ETE °
THREREEAKLELE=ZELAR The following table summarizes the quantitative information about
KA BESFEMRBEANAE R the significant unobservable inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value
ABHEHE(LER - measurements.
AREE AR BWAZHEE FABEBMASH
Bt M12HA31H BWARIE M12H318 BN REENBR
Relationship of
Fair value at Unobservable Range of inputs unobservable inputs
Description December 31, inputs December 31, to fair value
20204 20194 20204 20194
2020 2019 2020 2019
AR¥TRT AR®BTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AAREEHEREZEHTA 52,988 21,400 TR IR 49.97% 46.50% FERRESR -
EHBERNERRE AR BEEME
Debt investments measured Expected The higher the expected
at FVPL volatility volatility, the lower
the fair value
NAREEHEREZEHTA 52,246 37,491 TEER K I8 FEA 50.00% FERRESR -
HAth 2 H U a ) IR A AREEES
Equity investments measured Expected NA The higher the expected
at FVOCI volatility volatility, the higher

the fair value
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5 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

If the expected volatility had decreased/increased by 5% with all other
variables held constant, the fair value of debt investments measured
at FVPL would have been increased/decreased by approximately
RMB150,000 as of December 31, 2020 (2019: increased/decreased
RMB165,000).

If the expected volatility had decreased/increased by 5% with all other
variables held constant, the fair value of equity investments measured at
FVOCI would have been decreased/increased by approximately nil as of
December 31, 2020 (2019: decreased/increased RMB14,000).

If the fair values of the debt investments measured at FVPL held by the
Group had been 10% higher/lower, the profit before income tax for
the years ended December 31, 2020 would have been approximately
RMB1,384,000 higher/lower (2019: RMB2,140,000 higher/lower).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets that are not
measured at fair value, including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, other current assets (excluding prepayments), other assets
(excluding prepayments and tax receivables) and the Group’s financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value, including trade and other
payables and lease liabilities approximate their fair values due to short
maturities or the interest rates are close to the market interest rates.
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(b)

6

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The

resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

(b)

Fair value of measurement

Fair value of financial assets, in the absence of an active market, is
estimated by using appropriate valuation techniques. Such valuations
were based on certain assumptions about credit risk, volatility and
liquidity risks associated with the instruments, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results. Further

details are disclosed in Note 5.

Share-based compensation expenses

The fair values of share options granted are measured on the respective
grant dates based on the fair value of the underlying shares. In addition,
the Group is required to estimate the expected percentage of grantees
that will remain in employment with the Group or, where applicable,
if the performance conditions for vesting will be met at the end of the
vesting period. The Group only recognizes an expense for those share
options expected to vest over the vesting period during which the
grantees become unconditionally entitled to these share-based awards.
Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a material effect
on the determination of the fair value of the share options and the
amount of such share-based awards expected to become vested, which
may in turn significantly impact the determination of the share-based
compensation expenses.
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6 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(c)

(d)

R&D expenses

R&D expenditures incurred on the Group’s R&D activities, including
conducting pre-clinical studies and clinical trials, manufacturing
development efforts and activities related to regulatory filings for the
Group's drug candidates, are capitalized as intangible asset only when
the Group can demonstrate i) the technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, ii) the
Group's intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it,
iii) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset, iv) how the
intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits, v) the
Group's availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete and vi) the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset. Expenditures that do not meet these
capitalization principles are recognized as R&D expenses. During all years
presented, the Group’s R&D expenditures incurred did not meet these

capitalization principles for any products and were expensed as incurred.

Payments made to third parties to in-license or acquire intellectual
property rights, compounds and products, including initial upfront and
subsequent milestone payments, are capitalized, unless these payments
are for outsourced R&D work which follow the capitalization principle in
the proceeding paragraph.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group’'s finite life intangible assets generated from its in-license
arrangements are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful
economic lives, which are estimated to be the period of the in-license
arrangement. If the Group's estimate of the duration of sale of product
is shorter than the arrangement period, then the shorter period is used.
Additional amortization is recognized if the estimated useful economic
lives are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives are reviewed
at the end of the year based on changes in circumstances.
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6

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(e) Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognizes liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in

the period in which such determination is made.

For temporary differences which give rise to deferred tax assets, the
Group assesses the likelihood that the deferred income tax assets could
be recovered. Deferred tax assets are recognized based on the Group's

estimates and assumptions that they will be recovered from taxable

income arising from continuing operations in the foreseeable future.

(f) Variable arrangement in contract with customers

When the consideration in a contract with customers includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group
will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur

when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.
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6

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(g) Impairment of intangible assets associated with

license arrangements

Intangible assets associated with license arrangements that have an
indefinite useful life or not available for use are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. The Group obtained license
arrangements through acquisition for the purpose of continuing the
research and development work and commercialization of the products,
which are classified as license within intangible assets.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the intangible
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an intangible asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The impairment assessment of intangible
assets involves significant management’s estimates and judgements,
including the discount rate used in the mutli-period excess earnings
method and the revenue growth rate of each pipeline products. The
impairment test is based on the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the intangible asset is related. Key
assumptions are disclosed in Note 19.

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the Group, who reviews the Group’s consolidated results as
a whole when making decisions about allocating resources and assessing
performance. Therefore, it is determined that the Group’s operations represent

a single operating segment.
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7 DEER )

H £ 20194 % 2020412 A31 8 Ik 4F
E el AnmEERET

Segment information (continued)

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020, the geographical
information on the total revenues is as follows:

BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®T ARBT T
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
m BY A fth Mainland China 1,834,161 96 1,611,835 94
EH A, Others 84,401 4 96,233 6
1,918,562 1,708,068

BREEMEMONB SR T AIINIER

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, broken down

BEEMLABEOT by location of the assets, are shown as follows:
BZ12A831BLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20204 2019%F
2020 2019

AR®T T ARBT T
RMB’'000 % RMB'000 %
R A Mainland China 21,822 3 23,035 11
Hi Others 645,133 97 184,876 89

666,955 207,911

H = 20194 % 2020412 A31 8 Ik 4F
B HAEEZBRABERBARIONNE

The customers which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020 are listed as below:

FuT :
BZ12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,
202045 20194
2020 2019
% %
BFEA Customer A 79% 72%
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8 WA 8 Revenue
BZ12A310LFE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETT AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RE—RHEEER Recognized at a point in time
— EmHER — Product sales 1,918,562 1,708,068
9 HMKWARHEMBEX 9 Other income and other expenses
(i) HMwA (i) Other income
HZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20205 20194
2020 2019
AR®ET T ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
I I 47 BAi(a) Government grants (a) 9,948 6,795
B A () Sub-licensing income (b) 77,853 —
PR AR 1 HE FR(0) License termination compensation (c) 51,403 —
139,204 6,795
(i) HttfEX (i) Other expenses
BZEN2AMBLEE
Year ended December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BN EREEBH®D) Amortization of intangible assets associated with licensing (b) 75,173 —
(a) BINmEHYEBAER B (@)  Government grants are all income related and there exist no
I TFTE B 4 Bh BT B 35 B9 = unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
WM EIE - government grants.
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77,853,000 7T ° 7420214 1
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ik WKARZRNPED
EWEFAFEAE A (TMAH]D) ©

9

Other income and other expenses (continued)

(ii) Other expenses (continued)

(b)

In February 2020, the Group entered into several agreements with
Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively “Novartis”) to
purchase all of the rights, title and interests in, to and under the
assets of (i) marketing authorization, including but not limited to
the import drug license (“IDL") of Zometa product in the PRC and
(ii) trademarks, domain names, commercial information, medical
information, records and marketing authorization data, in each
case relating solely and exclusively to Zometa product in the PRC,
from Novartis. The total purchase consideration of USD60,000,000
(equivalent to RMB424,770,000) was recorded as intangible assets
and amortized over 5 years on a straight-line basis from February
2020. The related amortization expense of RMB75,173,000 was
recognized in the profit and loss for the year ended December
31, 2020. As at December 31, 2020, the outstanding payable of
the purchase consideration was US$25,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB163,123,000) (Note 28).

Prior to the Group obtains the IDL of Zometa product in the
PRC, as a transitional arrangement, it was agreed that Novartis
would continue to sell Zometa product in the PRC and pay the
profit of the sales to the Group during the period from February
24, 2020 until the earlier of (a) the date of obtaining the IDL for
Zometa product in the PRC by the Group and (b) one year from
February 24, 2020. The profit to be paid by Novartis to the Group
is recorded as licensing income in “Other income”. For the year
ended December 31, 2020, the Group recognized the licensing
income with an amount of RMB77,853,000. In January 2021, the
Group completed the transfer of IDL for Zometa, and became the
Marketing Authorization Holder (“MAH") of Zometa in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other income and other expenses (continued)

(ii) Other expenses (continued)

In April 2020, a licensing partner of the Group early terminated
the Group’s distributorship of an in-licensed product, and the
Group received compensations for the termination with the total
amount of approximately USD8,500,000. The compensation was
fully settled and recognized as other income with the amount of
RMB51,403,000 upon completion of the transfer of prescribed
registrations and documents in December 2020.

10 Other gains/(losses) — net

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31
2020 20194
2020 2019
AR®ET T AREBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R R H & s Gain on sales of raw materials — 2,206
HEME - BE KRB EE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (164) (192)
ARAREEEBEZEHTASH Change in fair value of financial assets at
BEEREEANBEE FVPL — money market funds
— EEBhiEED 6 94
NAREESFEAEE H‘)\"é“ﬁfﬁ Change in fair value of financial assets at
BafeREEALBEE FVPL — equity investments
Mg & (414) 1,458
NARBETZEESHITAER Change in fair value of financial assets at
BaeREEANBEE FVPL — structured deposits
TR 2,036 1,954
RAREE +EHE“§JJ*+)\"“‘HE Change in fair value of financial assets at
B eREEABESE FVPL — debt investments
BEHRE (6,179) 405
INEWES S (B518) F5 Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 32,194 (10,883)
Hith Others 986 (170)
28,465 (5,128)
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11 BME(RE) WA EE 11 Finance (cost)/income, net

BZ12A310LFE

Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETT AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RITIE KA BUA Interest income from bank deposits 11,478 12,171
5= ON Finance income 11,478 12,171
i SRS 2 Interest expenses on borrowings (28,480) —
HEaERNSMAX (KE17) Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 17) (1,112) (1,189)
BMER AR Finance costs (29,592) (1,189)
BE (RA&) WA FRE Finance (cost)/income, net (18,114) 10,982
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12 Expenses by nature

BZ12A31HLLFE
Year ended December 31,

2020F 20194
2020 2019
FisE AR%T AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kk EERFEEE) Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work in process (41,307) (6,102)
SEHIERMREMEINE 55 Raw materials and trading merchandise consumed 405,681 328,653
TFEHOR Write-downs of inventories 21 112 93
BH A Transportation expense 34,498 28,416
EEEFFAZ Employee benefit expenses 13 379,385 330,894
5 B E 4 Amortization of right-of-use assets 17 19,658 22,895
M - BB REREBITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18 8,640 6,265
B E#E Amortization of intangible assets 19 85,312 7,213
EmREEREEIE Impairment losses of intangible assets 19 19,627 =
TSR EMEBHERERX Market development and business
promotion expenses 152,997 157,749
BERGE Professional service fees 24,273 17,139
HEMAAENERARE Testing and clinical trial fees for R&D 22,995 45,380
ZIR R G Travel and meeting expenses 41,431 59,751
INZRINE VNG Utilities and office expense 10,222 10,864
1% 5 B 225 B Auditors’ remuneration 2,604 3,146
Bsilzha Listing expense 42,815 —
Hity Others 42,365 47,190
IRABEAS ~ $HE K& HRAY Total cost of revenue, sales and
THRY - FERY & marketing expenses, administrative expenses,
HAh 425 R&D expenses and other expenses 1,251,308 1,059,546
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13 EERAMAX

13 Employee benefit expenses

BZ12A31HLLFE
Year ended December 31,

2020F 20194

2020 2019

AR®ET T AREBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

T& - HeMEa Wages, salaries, bonuses 281,649 249,426

ARG BEREE N (M5E27)  Share-based payments (Note 27) 66,823 34,041

RIKSEHEIHR Q) Contributions to pension plans (a) 2,795 24,831
FEAES - BEMRBA Housing funds, medical insurance and

Ehrt2EAERb) other social welfare contributions (b) 28,118 22,596

379,385 330,894
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(a)

RIBRBSEOEBOBRTE A&
EAEFTEESMBEREBAR
R EIER - NEBE R B RAH
KAMRELIE e FHR
A BEELER)NA8%E AR
FEIER R - w A S EIR AR B A
H16%ZE20% (FE—ELR)E
Amar&l43k - Bt R ASNR
KERAIOER AR & —F
Ef - -BEREEOHRAKTEEE
FEfHRIKIE BT B RIKERT
F 1T - EHRCOVID-19& 15 »
75 AT B R AN & B B 2020
2AENAHEYERKERAN
R - HE2020F12A31H L F
E EBHREERERENAARE
23,202,0007T ©

(a)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group contributes
to state-sponsored retirement schemes for its employees in the PRC.
The Group's employees make monthly contributions to the schemes at
approximately 8% of the relevant income (comprising wages, salaries,
allowances and bonus, and subject to maximum caps), while the Group
contributes 16% to 20% of such relevant income, subject to certain
ceiling and has no further obligations for the actual payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement schemes are responsible for the entire post-retirement benefit
obligations payable to the retired employees. The local governments
in the PRC exempt the Group’s portion of contribution on the post-
retirement benefits during the period from February to December 2020
in view of COVID-19 Pandemic. During the year ended December 31,
2020, the exempted post-retirement benefits were RMB23,202,000.
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(b)

AEERTENEEFESES
ERFEENEREARES  BE
R RERBRTEMESLS
RBEE - AKEEBRIREEH
L HH21%E24% (RE — F L
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SEHEMEMT  USBEEMNN
HK AR - EHRCOVID-19%& 15 -
Bt 5 BT A e AN 5 [ 512020
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13 Employee benefit expenses (continued)

(b)

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in

various government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other employee social insurance plan.
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on
approximately 21% to 24% of the salaries of the employees, subject to
certain ceiling. The Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contributions payable in each period. The local governments in
the PRC exempt the Group’s portion of contribution on the medical
insurance and unemployment insurance during the period from February
to December 2020 in view of COVID-19 Pandemic. During the year
ended December 31, 2020, the exempted medical insurance and

unemployment insurance were RMB2,315,000.
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13 EERAE @ 13 Employee benefit expenses (ontinued)
() EERARESR (c) Benefits and interests of directors
—EFH2 — Directors’ emoluments
B ZE2020F12A31BIEEE K The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/payable by the
EHEN BN AATIEBRESE Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out as follows:
WEBMIT
EEAES
BACER  BERRA
I5 - §¢ —REiR Hftr g EfbfEE RiMe
ikl Fig | BRHH & Eshe BiERA B CEl
Housing
funds,
medical
Pension insurance
costs-  and other Share-
Wages, defined social Other Dis- based
salaries,  contribution welfare employee Director's cretionary compensation
bonuses plans contributions benefits fees bonus expenses Total

ARRTR  ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARNTR ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

BZ2020512A318LFE  For the year ended

December 31, 2020

HrES Executive Director

BREE) Mr. ZHAO Hong () 6,621 - 52 121 - - 21,963 28,757
FUnEs Non-executive directors

Ll ZhenfufE (i) Mr. LI Zhenfu (i) = = — - - — _ _
VASELLA Daniel LuziusZG (i)~ Mr. VASELLA Daniel Luzius (i) - - - = — — — —
RASLA() Mr. SHI Cen (i) — — — _ _ _ _ _
TRELL) Ms. WANG Xiaozhuo (i = = — - - — _ _
ZRIL() Ms. LI Quan (i = = - — - — _ _
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13 EEEFBE X 2 13 Employee benefit expenses (continued)
() EERANREZR#E) (c) Benefits and interests of directors (continued)
— EEME(E) — Directors’ emoluments (continued)
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE - & The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/payable by the
EHEN BN AATIEBRESE Group for the year ended December 31, 2019 are set out as follows:
BEBaT
EEARSE
RIF2ER  BERBRA
I% H2 —REfR Efpite Hiple S Rir#e
AL BE BRIt A Ezpd WisrEa X At
Housing
funds,
medical
Pension insurance
costs- and other Share-
Wages, defined social Other Dis- based
salaries,  contribution welfare employee Director's cretionary  compensation
bonuses plans  contributions benefits fees bonus expenses Total

ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTRT  ARBTR  ARBTRI  ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMB'OOO  RMBIOOD  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000

BZ2019512A31HLEE  For the year ended
December 31, 2019

HirEs Executive Director
BREE( Mr. ZHAO Hong (i) 6,145 — 100 130 — — 8,152 14,527
*unEs Non-executive directors
Ll Zhenfust (i) Mr. LI Zhenfu (i) - - - - — — — -
VASELLA Daniel Luzius7 £ (i) -~ Mr. VASELLA Daniel Luzius (i) — — — — — — — —
&) Mr. SHI Cen (i = = = = = = = =
FHELL() Ms. WANG Xiaozhuo (ii = - — _ _ _ _ _
BRI Ms. LI Quan (ii = = = = = = = =
(i) M2020F6 A248 - EKE (i) Mr. ZHAO Hong was appointed as the executive director of the Company
BEEREARANTES - on June 24, 2020.
(ii) MR2020F6A24H LI Zhenfu (i) Mr. LI Zhenfu, Mr. SHI Cen, Ms. WANG Xiaozhuo and Ms. LI Quan were
fHE - -AREEE FTEEZLT appointed as non-executive directors of the Company on June 24, 2020.
KERZLEZEARARASE
MITES -
(iii) #2020 £ 8 A 27 B  VASELLA (iii) Mr. VASELLA Daniel Luzius was appointed as non-executive directors of the
Daniel Luziuse £ E R ERA R Company on August 27, 2020.

AEMITES -
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13 EERBAMA @)
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13 Employee benefit expenses (continued)

(c)

Benefits and interests of directors (continued)

— Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

None of the directors received or receive any retirement benefits or
termination benefits during the year.

— Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

During the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2020, the Company did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services.

— Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favor of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors

As at December 31, 2019 and 2020, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings arrangement in favor of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and controlled entities with such directors.

— Directors’ material interest in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group'’s business in which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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13 EERAEXZ @ 13 Employee benefit expenses (continued)
d ZEESHFHMAL (d) Five highest paid individuals
REE2020F12A31HLEFE - The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
rEBREESME ALTBE— for the years ended December 31, 2020 include one director (2019: one)
ZEE(Q019F 18) (Efe R whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in analysis above.
B Bl 5 4T) o F IR FEA &R The emoluments payable to the remaining four individuals during the
BATHMEOT - year are as follows:

BZ12A31HLLFE
Year ended December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TE& - HFeMiEs Wages, salaries, bonuses 12,570 11,272
LARR 19 BB BV 5K Share-based payments 9,512 6,244
FEAES « BRI Housing funds, medical insurance and
H bt @A (b) other social welfare contributions (b) 246 427
Hib g 5 &7F Other employee benefits 716 674
23,044 18,617
EFEHME AT &8 E N &= 5 Excluding the director, the number of highest paid individuals whose
AE(TBREEZF)MAHBUOT : remunerations for each year fell within the following band is as follows:
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
e eE Emolument band
AR#3,000,001TE RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000
AR#4,000,0007C 2 2
AR#4,000,001 0= RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000
AR #5,000,0007T 1 1
AR#5,000,001 T2 RMB5,000,001 to RMB6,000,000
AR #6,000,0007T — 1
AR#¥10,000,001TE RMB10,000,001 to RMB11,000,000
AR#11,000,0007C 1 —
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14 FiEHAX 14 Income tax expense
AEBWAESHBEIMOT : The income tax expense of the Group are analyzed as follows:
BZ12A31BLEFE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BNVERFRAS 5 Current income tax 73,432 45,265
RIEFTISHL Deferred income tax (10,318) 1,302
e Income tax expense 63,114 46,567
AEEHAF BN EERNNRERER The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount
RASEETERAENRERGFHESH that would arise using the tax rate applicable to profit of the entities
WIEREEE -  ARBOT ¢ comprising the Group as follows:
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARET ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PS5 A1 F ) Profit before income tax 816,809 661,171
RERABEE ) Calculated at applicable tax rate (a) 58,392 40,919
FR B (b) PRC withholding tax (b) 3,018 1,302
N FEA SRR A2 (o) Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes (c) 7,037 14,398
AEREEMSHEER Tax losses for which no deferred income tax assets
MIBEE was recognized 1,104 606
R e il AR FE SR R TE B4R Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses (765) (8,866)
A FBRERE Over provision in prior years (5,672) (1,792)
RSB Income tax expense 63,114 46,567
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14 Income tax expense (continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

Current income tax

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China was calculated at tax rate of 25% on the assessable
profits for the periods presented, based on the existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as exempted companies with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and accordingly, are exempted

from Cayman Islands income tax.

Entities incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong profits
tax of which the tax rate was 16.5% up to April 1, 2018 when the
two-tiered profits tax regime took effect, under which the tax rate is
8.25% for assessable profits in the first HKD2 million and 16.5% for any

assessable profits in excess.

PRC withholding tax

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends distributed
by a company established in the PRC to a foreign investor with respect
to profits derived after January 1, 2008 are generally subject to a 5% or
10% withholding income tax, depending on the country incorporation of
the foreign investors. The Group has recognized deferred tax liabilities at
5% withholding tax rate for undistributed profits of its subsidiaries in the
PRC in accordance with the double taxation treaty arrangement between
the PRC and Hong Kong (Note 31).

Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes

The Group’s non-deductible expenses during the years ended December
31, 2019 and 2020 mainly represented non-deductible meals and
entertainment expenses pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations

promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the PRC.
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15 ERER

(a) HZE2019%F K&2020F12A31H 1E
FENSRERRF - BB
RNARHEE AEMFERR AR %
T B NEFHIEGE - £
BERNFARBIECHTERRN
PNAE 9 BREF » 543,135,510/ &
BER (AR EAEBEARRDELT
VERREE) ERENR201951
A1B T REE  MUOARQF]
REREFMKL -

(a)

15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2020 are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.
In determining the weighted average number of ordinary shares deemed
to be in issue during the year, 543,135,510 ordinary shares, being the
number of issued ordinary shares of the Company upon completion of
the Reorganization, were deemed to have been issued and allocated on
January 1, 2019 as if the Company has been incorporated by then.

HZ12A831BLLEE
Year ended December 31,

2020 20194

2020 2019

ARET ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RARHEA NEGEFERNFE Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 753,695 614,604
B BT T MR A A I 8K Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

(Fm%) (thousand shares) 547,981 543,136
EFRREARZF] Basic earnings per share (expressed in RMB per share)

(AFRARERT) 1.38 1.13
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BREARFER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 Earnings per share (continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assumed conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the year ended December
31, 2020, diluted earnings per share was calculated by considering the
ordinary shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding share options
(using the treasury stock method). For the year ended December 31,
2019, because the Company had no diluted instruments outstanding,
diluted earnings per share was same as basic earnings per share.

HZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20204 20194

2020 2019

AR%ET T AREETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ZNNCIEZ DN e AP Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 753,695 614,604
BT E AR A IR 1 8L Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

(FR) (thousand shares) 547,981 543,136

RN SR Diluted impact of share option 11,432 —

GREEE B AR AR i Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
FHE (TR diluted earnings per share (thousand shares) 559,413 543,136
TREE R Diluted earnings per share 1.35 1.13
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16 BRE 16 Dividends
A A B FEMAC S PR R E E£20204F 12 No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since its incorporation
AMBA AT NS EREMBKS © and up to December 31, 2020.
B E2019% K2020F12 A31B IEFE Dividends during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020 represented
B AR B SPIR AR R BB E T A FlMA dividends declared by SPI and the companies now comprising the Group to the
HZE2019F &2020512831H IEFE then owners of the companies for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
HNAREREAEATROKRE (NKE 2020, after eliminating intra-group dividends. The rates for dividend and the
AREE) BEREAREMEE number of shares ranking for dividends are not presented as such information
I AEAKR - A AREH A% S R LA & is not considered meaningful for the purpose of this report.
BRENKOHER ZER -
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHEMNARE Dividends payable at beginning of the year — —
FATRRE Declaration of dividends during the year 2,230,394 211,596
FREMRE Dividends paid during the year (2,173,758) (211,596)
PE 5 =58 Exchange differences (4,437) —
FREMNRE Dividends payable at end of the year 52,199 —

168



17 ERHEEE

B 0F B 5 #R R BT R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 Right-of-use assets

HEWE
Leased Properties
AR¥T T
RMB’000
72019F181H At January 1, 2019
BN Cost 120,175
G 5 Accumulated amortization (81,050)
BREFE Net book amount 39,125
B Z2019F12A31HILLEE Year ended December 31, 2019
B AREFE Opening net book amount 39,125
ME N =5 Exchange differences 613
NE Additions 9,239
B A Amortization charge (22,895)
HREEEFE Closing net book amount 26,082
M2019%612831H At December 31, 2019
B &N Cost 88,253
RETHEEH Accumulated amortization (62,171)
REFE Net book amount 26,082
HZE2020F12A31HILEE Year ended December 31, 2020
EAYIAREFE Opening net book amount 26,082
fEHZE%R Exchange differences (622)
NE Additions 3,008
HIHER Amortization charge (19,658)
HRBRENRE Closing net book amount 8,810
720206128318 At December 31, 2020
[DE Cost 77,982
EETHEH Accumulated amortization (69,172)
REFE Net book amount 8,810
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17 FRAEEE® 17 Right-of-use assets (continued)
A EUIREEHBRERERTH The consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the consolidated
FERBEEN TS - statements of cash flows contain the following amounts relating to leases:
BZE12A31BLFE
Year ended December 31,
20205 20194
2020 2019
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FREEERN Amortization of right-of-use assets 19,658 22,895
B Interest expenses 1,112 1,189
BRERBHAENTH Expenses relating to short-term leases 56 149
RESETHAENRSRE Cash outflow for leases as operating activities (1.168) (1,338)
BEEBSHENESR Cash outflow for leases as financing activities (19,283) (22,993)
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18 Property, plant and equipment

WAREA HE
&L B YL =
Office
furniture and Leasehold
equipment Vehicle improvements Total
ARET T AR®ET T AR®ET T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20191518 At January 1, 2019
[B%N Cost 49,188 559 13,240 62,987
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (39,294) (299) (10,082) (49,675)
BREFE Net book amount 9,894 260 3,158 13,312
#HZ2019%12H31H Year ended December 31, 2019
tHEE
YR EFE Opening net book amount 9,894 260 3,158 13,312
ME N =5 Exchange differences 163 4 52 219
NE Additions 1,947 — — 1,947
HE Disposals (192) — — (192)
HEER Depreciation charge (4,214) (140) (1,911) (6,265)
AR AR R E Closing net book amount 7,598 124 1,299 9,021
7A2019F12831H At December 31, 2019
B A Cost 50,221 569 13,388 64,178
REtinE Accumulated depreciation (42,623) (445) (12,089) (55,157)
IR E Net book amount 7,598 124 1,299 9,021
# Z=2020F12H31H Year ended December 31, 2020
IHEE
YR E R E Opening net book amount 7,598 124 1,299 9,021
BN =% Exchange differences 1,540 5 (55) 1,490
NE Additions 3,747 — — 3,747
HE Disposals (164) — — (164)
WEEH Depreciation charge (7,267) (129) (1,244) (8,640)
HRBRE R {E Closing net book amount 5,454 — — 5,454
7202056128318 At December 31, 2020
DE Cost 44,604 561 2,751 47,916
2FinE Accumulated depreciation (39,150) (561) (2,751) (42,462)
BREFE Net book amount 5,454 — — 5,454
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18 % HERRKH® 18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
MERYBFAGHEZERERATE Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated statements of
Al comprehensive income as follows:
BZE12A318LFEE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR%FTRT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
L oNZN Cost of revenue 5,362 5,200
SHE R R Sales and marketing expenses 2,670 891
THRAX Administrative expenses 293 81
T EE RS2 R&D expenses 315 93
8,640 6,265
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B B &5t
License Software Total
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
72019F181H At January 1, 2019
AR Cost 137,423 13,967 151,390
BEITE Accumulated amortization — (7,922) (7,922)
BREFE Net book amount 137,423 6,045 143,468
HZE2019F12A31HILLEE Year ended December 31, 2019
BAYIBREFE Opening net book amount 137,423 6,045 143,468
PE 5 =58 Exchange differences 2,201 100 2,301
NE Additions 30,695 — 30,695
BB Amortization charge (5,240) (1,973) (7,213)
HAREEEFE Closing net book amount 165,079 4,172 169,251
#2019%12A31H At December 31, 2019
D% Cost 170,381 12,981 183,362
RETHESH Accumulated amortization (5,302) (8,809) (14,111)
SR FE Net book amount 165,079 4,172 169,251
HZE2020F12A318 L EE Year ended December 31, 2020
HRYAR T FE Opening net book amount 165,079 4,172 169,251
ME N =5 Exchange differences (40,282) (81) (40,363)
ANE (MEEG) Additions (Note (i) 627,363 1,379 628,742
HIHER Amortization charge (83,040) (2,272) (85,312)
B R Impairment losses (19,627) — (19,627)
HRERMEFE Closing net book amount 649,493 3,198 652,691
#A2020512831H At December 31, 2020
AN Cost 753,239 14,360 767,599
BT Accumulated amortization (84,171) (11,162) (95,333)
BIEEE Impairment losses (19,575) — (19,575)
BREFHE Net book amount 649,493 3,198 652,691
B sE - Note:
(i) HZE2020F 128318 ItFE - EFE (i) Addition of intangible assets in the year ended December 31, 2020 was primarily

ENAEFTERANAEBRETESR
#) 7F ] & K E2Naxitamab & Omburtamab

BRI L BENENK
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due to the Group's acquisition of the license of Zometa and the upfront payments
for new license arrangements in relation with Naxitamab and Omburtamab.
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19

BEEE®)

BEMXDH AL G2 ERHEEN TR
Rl -

19 Intangible assets (continueq)

Amortization expenses have been charged to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as follows:

BZ12A31HILLEE
Year ended December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WK A Cost of revenue 7.867 5,240
HE R EHMAX Sales and marketing expenses 1,892 1,651
THAX Administrative expenses 180 150
I EE R R&D expenses 200 172
HAbBAT (FF5E9) Other expenses (Note 9) 75,173 —
85,312 7,213
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MERSEROHR  WEERERD
78 8] B 8 (#2030 FF = 20354 ) 1E i 1y
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WATER BB DL ETHE - FiE
ARBEERAERRELER  REMIE2
HETEEENEABERBBEN K
R B -

Impairment test

As at December 31, 2020, the carrying amount of intangible assets not yet
available for use was RMB267.8 million (December 31, 2019: RMB90.9 million).
Annual impairment test is performed in respect of these intangible assets based
on the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
intangible asset is related. The appropriate CGU is at the product level. The
annual impairment test is performed for each pipeline product by engaging an
independent appraiser to estimate fair value less cost to sell as the recoverable
amount of each pipeline product. The fair value is based on the multi-period
excess earnings method and the Group estimated the forecast period till the
year from 2030 to 2035 for its pipeline products based on the timing of clinical
development and regulatory approval, commercial ramp up to reach expected
peak revenue potential, and the length of exclusivity for each pipeline product.
The estimated revenue of each pipeline product is based on management’s
expectations of timing of commercialization. The costs and operating expenses
are estimated as a percentage over the revenue forecast period based on the
current margin levels of comparable companies with adjustments made to
reflect the expected future price changes. The discount rates used are post-
tax and reflect general risks relating to the relevant products that would be

considered by market participants.
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19 BREEE )

RAERI R (2) Impairment test (continued)
20194 2020912 A31H @ 5t & A
WESEMANETERIZOT ¢

19 Intangible assets (continueq)

The key assumptions used for recoverable amount calculations as at December
31, 2019 and 2020 are as follows:

PT-112 PT-112
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARIR = Discount rate 17% 18%
WAIERE Revenue growth rate 18.2%-80.7% 18.2%-80.7%
EeEE (ARETT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 59,243 45,707
REE (ARBTT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 22,837 24,417
ABTL-0812 ABTL-0812
®12A318
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARIR & Discount rate 17% 18%
A R & Revenue growth rate 1.0%-36.7% 1.0%-36.7%
e &% (AREFIT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 91,435 70,950
BREE (ARBTIIT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 16,464 17,602
SGX-942 SGX-942
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR & Discount rate i
NA 18%
U A $2 Revenue growth rate FiEHA
NA 0.7%-63.1%
Al ElSEE (ARETIT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) TiEA
NA 98,823
fREE (AREBTT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) TiE A
NA 20,929
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19 BREEE )

19 Intangible assets (continueq)

AR R () Impairment test (continued)
Vibativ Vibativ
MW12A318
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARIR & Discount rate 17% 18%
AR E Revenue growth rate 0.7%-23.2% 0.7%-232%
A E &% (AREFIT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 536,171 428,821
BREE (ARBTIIT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 19,575 20,929
1% A Oravig
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARIR & Discount rate 17% 18%
A & Revenue growth rate 3.4%-47.3% 3.4%-47.3%
A EeEE (ARETIT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 114,527 91,513
BREE (ARETT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 6,525 6,976
PEN-866 PEN-866
®12A318
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARIR = Discount rate @
17% NA
WA R = Revenue growth rate T3 B
7.0%-97.6% NA
AkEeE (ARETFT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 38 R
230,296 NA
BREE (AREFIIT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) TiE
26,100 NA
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19 BEEE @ 19 Intangible assets (ontinued)
VERED:EAE )] Impairment test (continued)
RRx-001 RRx-001
R12831H
As at December 31,
2020F 20194
2020 2019
ARIR =& Discount rate EN
17% NA
WA RE Revenue growth rate EN
3.0%-132.8% NA
AlEeE (ARETT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) i
389,403 NA
REE (ARKBFIT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) i
45,674 NA
Naxitamab Naxitamab
M"12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARIR & Discount rate TER
17% NA
PN 2= Revenue growth rate THERA
2.2%-150.0% NA
AkEeRE (ARETT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) ESHlE:
470,216 NA
BRAEE (ARETIT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) ENEL
97,874 NA
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19 BEREEE® 19 Intangible assets (continued)
RAERI R (2) Impairment test (continued)
Omburtamab Omburtamab
R12831H
As at December 31,
2020F 20194
2020 2019
ARIR =& Discount rate EN
17% NA
PNz -E o Revenue growth rate EN
3.0%-100.0% NA
Al ElSEE (ARETIT) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) TEH
44,355 NA
BREE (AREFIT) Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) i
32,625 NA
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(i)

(iii)

ZHEERBRREREEERR([E
REERH DM AEEPBEBEE - 52019
FRUEFERTFHAEN AEEY
BEERTARREBRATEBEHED
A EAS R 20194 2020412 A31
HELERME -

R EREMAN -—REBRTHA
e EXBEAEEEEBRERY (K
RERRANE TI5EE  BE 2
ASERRIEABEEESERTSE
®) -

WABEERDEREREVEEER
BETARANSEREVEEZEY
BECRN SR ARE (MEF TS
BERRTHRRE)MAE - R27
FEAR - AR L ERE A BIEYE
EREBL BEREEREBERASN
B BRAREEREERARGEA

Note:

(ii)

(iii)

Angiomax was approved by the National Medical Products Administration
("NMPA") for sales in China,
amortization from 2019. The Group did not identify any indication that the
intangible assets in relation to Angiomax would be impaired as at December 31,
2019 and 2020.

became available for use and commenced

Discount rates represented our general business and market risk and were derived
from capital asset pricing model by taking applicable market data into account,
such as risk free rate, market premium, beta, company specific risk and size
premium.

Revenue growth rates were based on the key inputs, such as the estimated market
penetration rates and market sizes etc., of each intangible asset from the expected
commercialization for each of the individual intangible asset of license not yet
available for use. As there were no significant changes noted in above key inputs,
the revenue growth rates estimated as of each balance sheet date remained within
the same range throughout the years presented.
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19 BEREEE® 19 Intangible assets (continued)

BRI ()

HER i EER - 1R2019F k20204
12A318 « B A E (SGX-942F: 51 I
B TR (E o

) FASGX-942 » ¥R 78  SGX-942 K B
720204 3= B EIIEA B R 42 26 - Bt -
MR2020F 128318 AEBEEHE
BEFEAEFL2EREREARE
19,627,0007C (3E &3& 7T) © & £2020
F12ANALEFE EHRREEBERE
HEEARERABRRBITHRASX

RERE — #RE

AN R 01 % BE TR SR 4 1%
D ONCES S 3ok 13- A
EEEBVAETRESENEER
BoMAARMERRIETE - B A
22 M B R R U L PR T 1 10 0 AR (0

Impairment test (continued)
Based on the result of above assessment, except for SGX-942, there was no
impairment for the intangible assets as at December 31, 2019 and 2020.

For SGX-942, in 2020, it was reported that SGX-942 failed to achieve its Phase
Il clinical endpoint. As a result, the Group provided full impairment to related
intangible assets with the amount of RMB19,627,000 (USD3 million) as at
December 31, 2020. The impairment losses were recognized as administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2020.

Impairment test — sensitivity

The Company performed sensitivity test by increasing 1% of discount rate
or decreasing 1% of revenue growth rate, which are the key assumptions
determining the recoverable amount of each intangible asset, with all other
variables held constant. The impacts on the amount by which the intangible
asset’s recoverable amount above its carrying amount (headroom) are as

B)MEZEEMT - below:
PT-112 PT-112
M12A831H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
Headroom 36,406 21,290
BRIR B IR & Impact by increasing discount rate (4,861) (4,095)
WA R FIOHE Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate (2,819) (2,184)
ABTL-0812 ABTL-0812
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 2019%F
2020 2019
Headroom 74,971 53,348
BRIR RIBhNR L& Impact by increasing discount rate (7.314) (6,174)
A & 3R D By 2 Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate (3,693) (2,853)
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19 BREEE )
BERS — BRE#)

19 Intangible assets (continueq)

Impairment test — sensitivity (continued)

SGX-942 SGX-942
R12831H
As at December 31,
2020F 20194
2020 2019
SR8 Headroom iEH
NA 77,894
ARIR RN R 2 Impact by increasing discount rate E A
NA (7,478)
U A 8 5 R D R R2 2 Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate EH
NA (3,516)
Vibativ Vibativ
MW12831H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR Headroom 516,596 407,892
BHIR 2R I8N A 222 Impact by increasing discount rate (28,905) (26,161)
WA R RGO E Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate (21,734) (17,196)
1% A Oravig
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20205 20194
2020 2019
PRER Headroom 108,002 84,537
BRIR B IR & Impact by increasing discount rate (5,905) (5,379)
A & D Ky 5 2 Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate (5,057) (4,018)

180



B 0F B 5 #R R BT R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 BREEE )
BERS — BRE#)

19 Intangible assets (continueq)

Impairment test — sensitivity (continued)

PEN-866 PEN-866
MW12A318
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
FREE Headroom TER
204,196 NA
BHIR SR I H RL 2 Impact by increasing discount rate TER
(18,479) NA
WA R R D E Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate TiERA
(3,158) NA
RRx-001 RRx-001
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
78 Headroom 343,729 i A
NA
BRIR RIG A & Impact by increasing discount rate (28,318) TEFH
NA
WA R R DRy R 2 Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate (23,692) TEA
NA
Naxitamab Naxitamab
M12A831H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
%R Headroom TER
372,342 NA
BRIR RIBNA) R & Impact by increasing discount rate TERA
(25,134) NA
WA REF DR Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate A
(22,269) NA
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19 BEREEE® 19 Intangible assets (continued)
AR — BB E®) Impairment test — sensitivity (continued)
Omburtamab Omburtamab
M12A318
As at December 31,
20205 20194
2020 2019
FREE Headroom 11,730 i@ A
NA
ARIR RN R 2 Impact by increasing discount rate (5,468) 3@
NA
WAEREFIOHTE Impact by decreasing revenue growth rate (3,732) T
NA
ENZTAEBRARNNERRHE - AT Considering there was still sufficient headroom based on the assessment,
RE  HMARATEETREETLEAENIW the Company believes that a reasonably possible change in any of the key
Bl BARKBENTFRNEIEREELEESE assumptions, on which the Company has based its determination of each
AlReEs)  WIreEREREAEBLE intangible asset’s recoverable amount, would not cause its carrying amount to
A 5 - exceed its recoverable amount.
20 Hith&E=E 20 Other assets
M12A318
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REHEK AT ENSRTIA Financial instruments at amortized costs:
— HERe — Rental deposits 5,151 3,434
Efth : Others:
— FEfTRER — Prepaid insurance — 3,557
5,151 6,991
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21 B8 21 Inventories
M12A318
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBT T ARBFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
RAE Raw materials 47,481 57,290
UK Finished goods 124,025 82,493
&M Work in progress 79 416
171,585 140,199
EfFEREEBBAEAZRFEN Write-downs of inventories were recognized for the amount by which the
CHEERFEMA L AGHE2E carrying amount of the inventories exceeds its net realizable value and was
Was R AT A KA ] —#8 o B Z=2020 recorded in “cost of revenue” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
FNRANBLEFENFEMBEAAR income. Write-downs of inventories were RMB112,000 for the year ended
#112,000 70 (2019 F : A K # 93,000 December 31, 2020 (2019: RMB93,000).
JT) °
j=v:) = "
22 ESZEWRIE 22 Trade receivables
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥T R ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B S EWGRIE Trade receivables 324,791 362,900
B B S R WG IE R (B B Less: allowance for impairment of trade receivables — —
B 5 RIA — HH Trade receivables — net 324,791 362,900
M20194 &2020F12 4318 - A& H As at December 31, 2019 and 2020, fair values of the trade receivables of the
BHRWFIEN L BEEEKRTER Group approximated their carrying amounts.
2 ¢
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22 BESEWRFERIE 22 Trade receivables (continued)
(a) ERNBZEHNEHRENFEY (@) Aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date is as
RE DT - follows:
M"12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
6EAA Up to 6 months 307,824 362,900
621218 A 6 to 12 months 914 —
—F A E More than one year 16,053 —
324,791 362,900
REENE H W HIE — R The Group's trade receivables are generally collectible within 180 days
ZEHHEMI80ORAE - E 5 E from the invoice date. No interest is charged on the trade receivables.
WK BT UF] B, o
(b) EZrUWFBEBUATIHEETE : (b) Trade receivables were denominated in following currencies:
M12A318
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥T T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR RMB 323,766 337,546
E usb 422 24,069
BT HKD 603 1,285
324,791 362,900
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22 ESEWRE =)

(@)

7 5 B e B IR B 75 5 2R AL
ERML T AT B E 5B UK
BENEHREERER  EREEY
FEBEREB VS ERET I
R -FHHERXTDENEEE
PHNRIERARBENE LE
VAR BR A B 3 B 5 P 4 H R OR
HEE NN R B KB R ZAE A A
RIEIEER o

M2020F12 8318 IR ZERE
WRIEW EIE R L 2HE S
ERFBELEEEEAS B
B30 A/ AT AR R K T8 ORI R
REEMRN  RBEHEEBEB
TN o RE B EEH 22020612 A
BSTHMEREEEERE T R
COVID-19# 52 28 J2 4 A 8 78 A1 I
MHEZE - WH#EFE2020F12A318
WIEEBEEEBDEE ) -

23 HttREB&EE

B 0F B 5 #R R BT R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 Trade receivables (continued)

(c)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses of trade receivables, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of related customers
and the corresponding historical credit losses. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

As at December 31, 2020, the expected credit loss was minimal as these
receivables had no history of default, most amount of trade receivables
were subsequently settled, and there was no unfavorable current
condition and forecast future economic condition identified. The Group
considered the impact of COVID-19 and incorporated related forward-
looking factors to measure expected credit losses as at December 31,
2020 and determined that the expected credit loss remained to be
minimal as at December 31, 2020.

23 Other current assets

M12A31H
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARETT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EX AT EN SR TA Financial instruments at amortized costs:
— R A EYRIE — Receivables from licensing income 25,508 —
— B B U ROE — Purchase rebate receivables 19,865 16,120
— HERe — Rental deposits 992 1,254
— FEUFILE — Interest receivables 2,901 207
Efth : Others:
— BNBRARRE — Prepaid clinical trial fee 2,793 5,695
— TERHRER — Prepaid insurance 315 1,255
— MEE B — Advance to employee 153 229
— B EWRAX — Prepaid listing expenses 7.112 —
— Hfth — Others 777 906
60,416 25,666
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23 EMREEE 2 23

720194 % 2020F 12 A318 » E i
PHEENREEIZUARENE A
HEREREBHOAABERS - &
B AT EME A EBGRBEREEE
WA FEURSRIE - PRI FE R R S R B
HERSRERAE  HEWRAEER
BEE - Bt & E2019F %20204F
12A31 B It FERRAREREERR
1218 ATEEE 18 - 20194 K& 20204
128318 + BRZEEWGRIEY &6 /R
i BETRWRIECHEERELS
B I 8 330 A 8 8 Tk R T8 DRI R 3R
KERR  WEHEEBEBRG/ -

24 BERBATESEYURE 24
bR 5 3 &

Other current assets (continued)

As at December 31, 2019 and 2020, the carrying amounts of other current
assets were primarily denominated in RMB and approximated their fair
values at each of the reporting dates. Other receivables that are measured
at amortized costs included receivables from licensing income, purchase
rebate receivables from the suppliers, rental deposits and interest receivables
were considered to be of low credit risk, and thus the impairment provision
recognized during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020 was limited
to 12 months expected losses. The expected credit losses were minimal as
these receivables had no history of default, certain amount of receivables were
subsequently settled, and there was no unfavorable current conditions and
forecast future economic conditions identified as at December 31, 2019 and
2020.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ReFRRFERS Cash in bank and in hand 1,282,109 919,490
o ZREHIIRE ) Less: restricted cash (a) (163,123) —
Be RIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,118,986 919,490
AT E¥ETE - Denominated in:
M12A31H
As at December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®T AREET T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
E7T usD 856,651 687,428
AR RMB 258,956 227,542
BT HKD 3,316 4,480
BT EUR 63 40
1,118,986 919,490
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24 BERBLSEBYURS
PR #l 38 & (&)

(a) ZRFIRE
R2020F12 8318 ' EXHERN
BEGFEALFERSEHBER
AEBWBELEEMRERT
& 1R M #2 425,000,000 7T (HHE
WA R#163,123,0007T) °

25 RERNESMEMTE

24 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
(continued)

(a) Restricted cash
As at December 31, 2020, the cash in bank and in hand balances
disclosed above included a deposit of USD25,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB163,123,000) for the bank guarantee provided for the Group’s
acquisition of intangible assets.

25 Financial instruments by category

M"12A31H
As at December 31,
2020F 20194
2020 2019
ARBTT AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REMEEEBERESNEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
REEK AT ENSREE ¢ Financial assets at amortized costs:
— B HEUGRIE — Trade receivables 324,791 362,900
— EMRBEE ((MEEEMAFIE) — Other current assets (excluding prepayments) 49,266 17,581
— ReRBLEEY — Cash and cash equivalents 1,118,986 919,490
— ZRHIRL — Restricted cash 163,123 —
— HEtEE (TeREBEMRER — Other assets (excluding prepayments and
JEUHLFR) tax receivables) 5,151 3,434
AR EEEBEEHAA Financial assets at FVOCI:
Hth2HWENESREE :
— UARBEIEEEEZHA — Long-term investments measured at FVOC|
Hip2EKamn REPRE 232,352 37,491
AR EEEEEEEHA Financial assets at FVPL:
EHERNEeREE
— UARAnEEFEBEZEFA — Short-term investments measured at FVPL
EHBENEERE 70,013 123,761
— UARAnEEFEBEZEFA — Long-term investments measured at FVPL
EHERNRRE 55,936 24,971
2,019,618 1,489,628
REHEESBRESNERE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
HEHEKAFENeREE Financial liabilities at amortized costs:
— B9 RHMENRIE — Trade and other payables (excluding salaries and
(TBERN & RELL) bonus payables) 432,884 159,083
— A EAE — Lease liabilities — current 6,402 19,466
— JERNHAHEEE — Lease liabilities — non-current 2,070 6,992
441,356 185,541
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26 TREERRE 26

Financial assets and investments

(@) UAREBEEFEEHES (a) Financial assets at FVPL
STAEHERNEMEE
LNARBEFEEEZSHTAE The financial assets at FVPL comprise the following investments:
HEZNSREERBEU TR
‘& :
M12A31H
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARET ARBTTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
kREBEE Non-current assets
— RRAERE — ETW3) — Equity investments — Listed (i) 2,948 3,571
— B E () — Debt investments (ii) 52,988 21,400
55,936 24,971
REEE Current assets
AR EBETEAHEEEHTA Short-term investments measured at
2 E1B 2R A 52 HBIR A (iil) FVPL (jii)
— EBETER — Structured Deposits 70,013 120,364
— EEmMIEES — Money market funds — 3,397
70,013 123,761

(b) AR EBEEFEEHZE
STAEMb 2 W E K £ El

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

EE
KAREEGFEBEZSHTAR The financial assets at FVOCI comprise the following investments:
EEARENEREERTEAUAT
®E
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREBEE Non-current assets
— RAERE — ET3) — Equity investments — Listed (i) 180,106 —
— RRERE — LT — Equity investments — Unlisted 52,246 37,491
232,352 37,491
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26 SWMEERRE

(b)

DN
A
BE
(i)

(ii)

REEFEAHEH
H 2 E W& & B
(#%)
BRERE — L
ETEFOR R BEREE
BB MR ERE - AR
BT EEALAL BE
SIBR - MAIMBRBAA -

EBERE

202012 A31H » A&
EEEHOEEHRARNITET
ENBEBRESEARAR
# 52,988,000 7t (2019 £ :
21,400,000) ° 48 B # & &
FEEREREEZ -

ZERERTE  QQERKRE
TR EE E R
AEBARERKLE TN
FRENEEEESRELD A
SEMF 2RO ATED
12 55 B ¢ (b)F 75 — TR AT IA
EEERERENRENBE
B2 RBLRERE 1 FEUCEL R
ROEZEERIRE ) AR
1) ) 5 342 2R 1 By AT B 2 A
RETHEBERNERE
R o FEREE M IRA DT
TEAMNEKRENRERE
ERERINAERFE
B ZEEBRESTUR
BEE - At - ELREE
REBITAAR - WIERNA
ARBEEFEEEZFHTA
EHESNEMEEE -

WAEBEEZRRABMR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2020 £ & $f &5 ANNUAL REPORT

B oF B 5 R 2R BT |

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 Financial assets and investments (continueq)

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Equity investments — Listed

The fair value of listed securities is determined based on the
closing prices quoted in active markets. They are accounted for
using their fair values based on quoted market prices without any
deduction for transaction costs.

Debt investments

As at December 31, 2020, the Group made debt investments
with  embedded RMB52,988,000 (2019:
RMB21,400,000), respectively. These investees are principally
engaged in pharmaceutical business.

derivatives  of

These investments including: (a) redeemable preferred shares that
the Group has the right to require and demand the investees
to redeem all of the shares held by the Group at guaranteed
predetermined fixed amount upon redemption events which are
out of control of the investee, (b) loan receivables embedded
with a warrant to acquire preferred shares of the investee at an
assigned price and (c) loan receivables that can be converted into
preferred shares of the investee upon conversion events which are
out of control of the investee. Debt investment with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest. Hence, these investments are accounted for as debt
instruments and are measured at financial assets at FVPL.
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26 eREERKEE®) 26 Financial assets and investments (continued)
(b) UDAAREBEFTEBHEE (b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)
FFAHMEZEKEN S/
BEE®)
(i) A A EEFEAAR (iii) Short-term investments measured at FVPL

BEEAER B
EHIRE

AR A EEEE RSB
A HRE R R A E U

The short-term investments measured at FVPL are structured
deposits and money market funds, denominated in RMB and

ARBRETENEE USD, with expected rates of return ranging from 1.48% to 5.00%
MERREEMSEES - B and 0.55% to 5.00% per annum for the years ended December
220194 K& 2020412 A 31 31, 2019 and 2020, respectively. The returns on all of these

HIEFE - EFEHFRRE
2RI 1.48% % 5.00% K
0.55%%5.00%2 H ° FT &
ZERAMBRHE|RE -
WEGNRERETHE
ABIENARe RFSKEE
AR AnBETEEHE
it AE MBS - ZERE
HRBE -

ARBERERBBABEESR
E RAENEEEHE X
REMERMEETSES
MAREBEIENE &
BME-—ERAAEBERER
KPR O R KRG H -

(iv) Bz NEZH T8

investments are not guaranteed, hence their contractual cash
flows do not qualify for solely payments of principal and interest.
Therefore, they are measured at FVPL. None of these investments
were past due.

The fair values are based on cash flow discounted using the
expected return based on management judgment and the fair
value of structured deposits and money market funds are within
level 2 and level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, respectively.

(iv) Amounts recognized in profit or loss

BZE12A31BLFEE
For the year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREREN AR EEE Fair value changes on equity investments (414) 1,458
BRIREN AL EBEED Fair value changes on debt investments (6,179) 405
RAREBEFEBEEZSHTA Fair value changes on short-term investments
EHERNEHRIEEN measured at FVPL
NREEE
— BEmISES — Money market funds 6 94
— HERBMTFR — Structured deposits 2,036 1,954
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26 SREERBE

(b) UAREBEFTEAEEE
SFAHML 2 E WS H £ R

26 Financial assets and investments (continueq)

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

BE#E)
(v) REMZEE Kz FE (v) Amounts recognized in OCI
okl
BZ12A31HLLEE
For the year ended December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR EBEFZEBEEEETA Fair value changes on equity investments
Hih 2 EW A IRERE R measured at FVOC|
NAEEES 153,247 17,679

27 URGAEBRNSR 27 Share-based payments

720184 6 A  SBEX 4 & 8B X B &t &
([2018F &) A AAEEEES &
ZEERTIRZHE - 2018F 5819518
B2 4227 & ILSBEE 3@ A% ({5 H 53.41
BERLEEBRNTI8%) BN EIT -
2018FEHEIIE TIREMEN A AR A
RTEHEAANE -BHERTAEE
BEMBRZHRENOREM S T H#
VRAXEEE HHBERE -

M20184 12 B ~ 201944 A ~ 2020 &
48 202078 »SBED Bl M A & &
& B &% ¥ 3,878,500 & - 339,000 & -
936,121% K& 650,000 R Z8i# - FT A
B Z HARE A I T M A SR RE
BERN R EREREZEAR ARG E
ANBERERBEAAIRE A 0] feiEE
BB AR - BITE % 2 AR A5 HA P B 57 5 B
A - REBRERERAREHNTHE
BEBIE O AR THTEEER
BRBERMAE -

In June 2018, SBE adopted an employee incentive plan (the “2018 Plan”),
which permits the grant of stock options to the employees and directors of the
Group. Under the 2018 Plan, a total of 4.22 million, representing 7.78% of
53.41 million common stocks of SBE were initially reserved for issuance. The
stock options of under the 2018 Plan have a contractual term of eight years
from the grant date. Stock based compensation expenses related to the stock
options granted to the Group’s employees were pushed down and recorded in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

In December 2018, April 2019, April 2020 and July 2020, SBE granted
3,878,500, 339,000, 936,121 and 650,000 stock options to the Group’s
employees, respectively. All of the stock options were granted with
performance conditions of which vesting is contingent upon meeting company-
wide performance goals and respective individual's personal performance
goals, compensation cost is recognized over the requisite service period if it is
probable that the performance target will be achieved. The Group reassesses
the probability of achieving the performance conditions at the end of each
reporting period and records cumulative catch-up adjustments for any changes

to its assessment.
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27 LR BERNS R

SBERR2019F 11 AMERRIRERE -
BIERR BIREALH] - R2018F 12 A K
20194 A7E2018F 5+ & T~ & F B B 15
HEZITFEENSE TS HEERS24
FEIT o WARBEITEERAEERILER N
B & BASE o

202066 A + AR R TEE A R K
W5 — TE B AR R RUE ET #1 (2020 F 5
Bl AR R2018F 518 - HIFK KI5
- EASBERY20184F 5T EI4H A - 1 & ARSBE
BRDZLEO D ABRRAFIOREKNG - &
& - AN A ERRE L 5 EASBEAR 35 —
B WARZALEEREERDMSH
§ o

TRBME =2020F12A318 LFE
E2018F & TR TFTAEEHEENRE
HREE®) - AT 217X 202046 A 12020
FrrEER -

27 Share-based payments (continued)

SBE distributed dividends to its shareholders in November 2019, exercise prices
for the share options granted under the 2018 Plan in December 2018 and
April 2019 were automatically adjusted from USD8 to USD5.24 based on the
proportion of dividend distribution. No incremental share-based compensation
expense was recognized as a result of the exercise price adjustment.

In June 2020, together with the Reorganization, the Company adopted another
option incentive plan (the “2020 Plan”) to replace the 2018 Plan, and its terms
and conditions remain the same as the 2018 Plan of SBE except that each share
of SBE proportionally splits into 10 shares of the Company. The Company's
proportion of equity remained the same as SBE after the Reorganization. No
incremental share-based compensation expense was recognized as a result of
this modification.

The following table summarizes activities of stock options granted to the
Group’s employees under the 2018 Plan, which was replaced by the 2020 Plan
in June 2020, for the year ended December 31, 2020:

HZE2020512A31B LFE
Year ended December 31, 2020

SEHEN

FIHTEE
(%) HEyE

Average exercise
price per option Number of
(USD) options
REA As at beginning of a year 5.24 4,162,800
1202046 A AT & Granted before June 2020 5.24 936,121
1202046 A ATE UL Forfeited before June 2020 5.24 (271,050)
1K2020%F 6 A KRR Hr 5 Share splits in June 2020 0.524 43,450,839
7202046 A& E Granted after June 2020 0.524 6,500,000
RER As at year end 0.524 54,778,710
RERFBRAITTE Vested and exercisable at year end 0.524 21,363,500
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27 URGAEBRNSR ) 27 Share-based payments (continued)

TRBAME E2019F12A31HILFE
F2018F 5B TR FAEBERENKRE

The following table summarizes activities of stock options granted to the
Group’s employees under the 2018 Plan for the years ended December 31,

HEEE 2019:
HZE2019612A31HLEFE
Year ended December 31, 2019

BEHEY

F1TEE
€] HESE

Average exercise
price per option Number of
(USD) options
REH) As at beginning of year 5.24 3,878,500
FABEEEH Granted during the year 5.24 339,000
FERE R Forfeited during the year 5.24 (54,700)
RER As at year end — 4,162,800
RERFEBNAITTE Vested and exercisable at year end 5.24 1,078,800

REE20194F K2020F12 A31 8 IEF
R ARITER R D EAE 2 B8R RAT(E

Share options outstanding as the end of the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2020 have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

BT :
IRAn HAHE
[ES e EpEE 1Ife(E 20204128318
Share options
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price December 31, 2020
2018412158 202612158 0.524%7T
December 15, 2018 December 15,2026 UsDO0.524 35,976,500
20194A1H 20274718 0.524%%7T
April 1, 2019 April 1, 2027 UsD0.524 2,941,000
20204A1H 20284 H1H 0.5243%7T
April 1, 2020 April 1, 2028 UsDO0.524 9,361,210
20207 H1H 2028F7H1H 0.524%%7T
July 1, 2020 July 1, 2028 UsDO0.524 6,500,000
A&t
Total 54,778,710
PASE R M AR AT BARE A I T A9 FIER & 40 HARR 6.384F
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of year 6.38 years
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27 URGAEBRNSR ) 27 Share-based payments (continued)

RE £20194 % 2020612 318 IF4F
R ARITENRDEAE BB A RITE

BT : (&)

Share options outstanding as the end of the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2020 have the following expiry date and exercise prices: (continued)

i dn ERRE
ESill=1" ZH A TE(E 201912 H31H
Share options
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price December 31, 2019
2018412 A15H 2026512 H15H 5.24%7T
December 15, 2018 December 15,2026 usD5.24 3,823,800
20194811 20274718 5.24% 7T
April 1, 2019 April 1, 2027 UsD5.24 339,000
20204811 2028%F4/18 5.24% 7T
April 1, 2020 April 1, 2028 UsD5.24 —
CEll
Total 4,162,800
RERRARITE IR T HFIRE L ER 7.084F
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of year 7.08 years
FIRTHENIREE Fair value of options granted
E2018F B TR TN EEMEN AR The fair value of each option granted under the 2018 Plan were estimated

BE  DHEASTRANBRR(HEBE)
ER—AAMECERARESEARTH

assumptions (or ranges thereof) in the following table:

on the date of each grant using the binomial option pricing model with the

B

BZ12A318LLFE
For the year ended December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARBT T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1TIEME Exercise price 5.24% 7T e
USD5.24 usD8
ERRE EAMR Option life 8F 84
8 years 8 years
FERARR (5 BY TR BR(B AR KR &) Expected price volatility of the underlying shares 48.50%-48.66% 46.75%
b | = Risk-free interest rate 0.69% 2.55%
RIETF BTSSR Fair value per option at grant date (USD) 8.77-11.17 1.81-2.07

~RfEE (ET)
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27 URGAEBRNSR ) 27 Share-based payments (continued)
ERE Stock subscription
M2018F6 248 ' SBERR I m B R & On June 24, 2018, SBE adopted an executive investment plan, pursuant to
P& - R2019F1A18 - A&EHE which, on January 1, 2019, certain executives and directors of the Group
ETITBRABRESTEANIETRER were permitted to subscribe 415,009 of its common stocks with a designated
R H415,0090% & % - ESBEE ik subscription price. Stock based compensation expenses generated from the
EERBEEAARBEZHAEEMESE differences between the designated subscription price and the fair value of
B & 58 A A R #2,890,0007T &) IR SBE’s common stocks with the amount of RMB2,890,000 were pushed down
PRX  WHOBTHIYZAREEERE and recorded in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
2019F 12 A31 B IEFE®E 08 75 3R ended December 31, 2019.
= o
LURMDAEBRNARRZE Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions
R 00E 5
RZENEREEEERIBAIHESH Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognized
UMD AEEMONRRSH AR I during the year as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:
T
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SRR Recognized in:
W AR AR Cost of revenue 658 1,784
THE R R X Sales and marketing expenses 16,696 16,201
TR Administrative expenses 41,390 12,336
RS R&D expenses 8,079 3,720
I&D & F 2 45 Total share-based compensation expenses 66,823 34,041
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28 EZRHMENKE 28 Trade and other payables
M12A318
As at December 31,
20205 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 e 5/IA(a) Trade payables (a) 57,546 66,047
B EERERERY Payables for marketing and promotion expenses 78,340 71,633
EfEE RIEA Salaries and bonus payable 81,214 65,238
FENEEREE Payables for professional service fee 15,216 8,278
FERT ETRRI Payables for listing expenses 26,790 —
EEREEMNRE (K3Eo(b)) Payables for purchase of a license (Note 9(b)) 163,123 —
AR E Dividends payable 52,199 —
Hith Others 39,670 13,125
514,098 224,321
(Q) NBELEABERAHENRHEA (@) Aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date at the
HiE B 5 A SRR O AR i o0 AT 40 respective balances sheet dates are as follows:
™
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
DR—F Less than 1 year 57,546 66,047
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29 Lease liabilities

®12A318
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARET T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT HAR B B A AR AR & 3K Minimum lease payments due
— —FR — Within 1 year 6,514 19,820
— —EWF — Between 1 and 2 years 2,186 5,542
— MERF — Between 2 and 5 years 31 2,017
8,731 27,379
B RKREEE R Less: future finance charges (259) (921)
HEaERE Present value of lease liabilities 8,472 26,458
—FR Within 1 year 6,402 19,466
—EMF Between 1 and 2 years 2,042 5,356
NERF Between 2 and 5 years 28 1,636
8,472 26,458
30 B 30 Borrowings
M12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETT AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
kREBEE Non-current assets
—FEEENRIER Long-term borrowings due after one year 1,171,489 —
REBEE Current assets
—FRE N RBAER Long-term borrowings due within one year 782,988 —
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H £H L
1EI FA (&)

202068 - RARIKZEWE A A
SPLEFRBERARTRNHDBERRARE S
DITERADNEE —HEBER30H
BETHRITHRE(RE]) SPIL(K
HMBAR  WERMBARIEDEE
RE BRI W E RIEARZRE MK

o
oA °

2020668 - —£ &R A300HEXE
JT(HHE R ARE2,123,850,0007T) A
FHEHFEER((BER]) BZERE
FIRE c 20%M A& B HEREBRIAT
BRREE  ((WWRAQAMARRE
KA EEE RS 120205 11 A48 Bl
TERBEXARAEE - HHERER2020
FNMALBEL  (WMIREAARBRR
BARXAREEBRBERAKE20205F 11
R4BRIEREXARBEE  BHHER
BE@QAATNE R AHABEEEN—@E
A RbO)R021FE3A3TBUAREE A
) ZRI{EH ©

ANARR2021F3A3BEEBH X
ERERXAREE - BEBENRFMBE
SPIL#S 72202163 A31 B ATEE & B MY
60EBET °

30 Borrowings (continued)

In June 2020, SPIL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained
a bank facility (the “Facility”) with a total amount of USD300 million from
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch (the “Lender”)
with substantially all of SPIL's (and its subsidiaries’, as applicable) assets and

common stocks pledged as security for the Facility.

In June 2020, a five-year loan of USD300 million (equivalent to
RMB2,123,850,000) (the “Loan") with floating rate was drawn down from the
Facility. The first installment of 20% principal amount shall be repaid according
to the following schedule: (i) if the Company has not yet submitted its initial
public offering (“IPO"”) application or has completed its IPO by November
4, 2020, the first installment shall be made on November 4, 2020; (ii) if the
Company has submitted IPO application but not yet completed its IPO before
November 4, 2020, the first installment shall be made until the earlier of (a)
one month after the Company’s IPO and (b) March 31, 2021.

The Company completed its IPO on the HKEx on March 3, 2021. According to
the repayments schedule, SPIL shall repay the first installment of USD60 million
before March 31, 2021.
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30 f& @) 30 Borrowings (continued)
ZEFNFE G BHERO TR The remaining repayment installments of the Loan are as follows:
(=p: RENEELEBR
Required Principal
Dates Payments
FErx
uUsbD’000
DERRE = 2021411 74R
2 installment November 4, 2021 60,000
DERRE= 2022511 A4H
BIS |nsta||ment November 4, 2022 60,000
SE R T H 202311 H4R
4™ installment November 4, 2023 60,000
DHNRERH 2024511 74R
5t installment November 4, 2024 60,000
AN - BERA B EKSPILA AR R 7T In addition, the Lender has a right to ask SPIL to repay at least USD40 million
KEaXx HAEEZ—@EAR FHE (equivalent to RMB283,180,000) of the principal amount in advance out of the
RARBEMSRBEHREBELRE S IPO proceeds within one month after the consummation of the Company’s IPO.
BAENEVIOBEET(HERARKE
283,180,0007T) °
BERBITHARFERX Debt Issuance Costs and Interest Expense
SPIL®t 3% Bt & = 4 795,000 7T (FHE R SPIL incurred a cost of USD795,000 (equivalent to RMB5,601,000) in
AR #5,601,0007T) BB AR » 52 K 7S 1 connection with the Facility, and the costs were recorded as debt issuance costs
REEB BTN - EEZERWRE offsetting the carrying value of the borrowings. The debt issuance costs are
B o ZEBEITRANKGERER R XX being amortized to interest expense over the life of the debt using the effective
EEBNFERNFEEEF M - interest method.
B E£2020F12A31BIEFE - HZ e For the year ended December 31, 2020, interest expenses in connection with
EiEARHF B A4,131,000% T the Facility Agreement was USD4,131,000 (equivalent to RMB28,480,000).

(& MW A R#28,480,0007T) °
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31 EZERSEH 31 Deferred income taxes
BREFIBEEEMELEHIBER BN DT The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:
B
"12A31H
As at December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BELEREEE ! Deferred tax assets:
— BR12 A REER — Deferred tax assets to be settled within 12 months
IEIERIA A B 13,336 —
EERBIEEE Deferred tax liabilities:
— BR12EAREER — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months
BIETRIERE (9,258) (6,240)
B £20194 &2020F 12 A31H It F The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the years ended
E-REMGHEEEBEBEEZ SR December 31, 2019 and 2020 without taking into consideration the offsetting
KR AEERER AR EALR) T AT of balances within the same jurisdiction, are as follows:
e
BERBEEE — KSR BEE
Deferred tax assets — Provision
for unrealized profits
ARETT
RMB’000
B £20195% %2020F1H1H As of January 1, 2019 and 2020 —
REm IR Charged to profit or loss 13,336
7A20205612H831H At December 31, 2020 13,336
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31 BEMSBH 2 31 Deferred income taxes (continued)
BEEBIEEE — ENH
Deferred tax
liabilities — withholding tax
AR®T T
RMB’000
B ZE2019F1H18 As of January 1, 2019 (4,938)
R HIRR Charged to profit or loss (1,302)
72019512H318 At December 31, 2019 (6,240)
HZ2020F141A8 As of January 1, 2020 (6,240)
R AP kR Charged to profit or loss (3,018)
7202056128318 At December 31, 2020 (9,258)

FEAE AR IB ) 2% A 7l Bt 3B 1B AR PR B SR A
MBERE S ERMEENHIEERE
RA BN EERREEREHRE
E o M2020F12A318 » AEE W K
B A R #33,398,0007T (20194F : AR
28,746,000 7T ) B &5 18 #E R R I FT 15
TREE o 2N& B R B A K 37 A T 8B
ANEM B IEEE B R 2021F £2025F 5|
H o AEER BB MK IHHE A A
W EEESERALE -

BEHEXERERLA

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax losses carrying forwards and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that realization of the related
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable. As at December 31,
2020, the Group did not recognize deferred income tax assets in respect of
losses of RMB33,398,000 (2019: RMB28,746,000). Tax losses of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China will expire from 2021 to 2025. Tax
losses of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong will be carried
forward indefinitely.
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32 k&

A XA 20209 5 A 13 B 5 fit Ak
Mo REMRA AS50,00FET DA
1,000,000,000 A% & A% ™ f& 0.00005 3%
TR T @A - RNFE A - SBEM — & &
REHET—BRET@E - R2020F6 A
24 B » AN A 7] #SBERR B FASBEAY 3 A%
Lt B 1| 1% 5 ¥ 47 543,135,509 A% A% 15
(Kt 3E1.2(b)) - 202068 A7 H » &
A Al bA3,657,000F T (HHE R AR
25,385,00070) K ¥ ERITHRA B R E
E BT ML E12,064,290 % B 1D ©

32 Share capital

The Company was incorporated on May 13, 2020 with an authorized share
capital of USD50,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a
par value of USD0.00005 each. On the same date, 1 ordinary share was
issued to one of the shareholders of SBE. On June 24, 2020, the Company
issued 543,135,509 shares to the shareholders of SBE in proportion to
their shareholdings in SBE (Note 1.2(b)). On August 7, 2020, the Company
issued and allotted 12,064,290 shares to the executives and directors at the
consideration of USD3,657,000 (equivalent to RMB25,385,000).

28T EZERN
ZERE ZLEEMHE
Equivalent
nominal
Number of value of
ordinary shares ordinary
issued shares
AR¥T T
RMB’000
7202058 13H At May 13, 2020 (date of incorporation)
(MR AE) 1 —
RAREISPILEY 2 B AR A M 2R Issuance of ordinary shares in exchange for the entire
mETE @A equity interests of SPIL 543,135,509 188
MITHA B RESHITE @R Issuance of ordinary shares to the executives and directors
(MizE27) (Note 27) 12,064,290 4
7A202012831H At December 31, 2020 555,199,800 192
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33 HfthfdE s 33 Other reserve
UAREBE
TEAEH
L-EI 5N
Hitn 2 H RA#HE BEHER EEB
MEmEE i 8 N BXDE CH)
Financial ~ Share-based Currency Statutory
asset at compensation  translation surplus Capital
Fvod reserve  differences reserve reserve Total
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®TR AR¥TR ARWTRT AR%TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
H2019F1 B1B &R Balance at January 1, 2019 19,341 62,190 (15,392) 5,302 1,142,709 1,214,150
SNETE R, Foreign currency translation — — 27,578 = — 27,578
B EETRE() Appropriation to statutory reserves (i) = = = 2,685 = 2,685
NRREEfEAHE Changes in the fair value of
FEHALMZEKREN equity investments at FVOC|
RERENDABEZS 17,679 — — — — 17,679
Bt B e Share-based compensation expenses — 34,041 — — — 34,041
W20195 12831 A& Balance at December 31, 2019 37,020 96,231 12,186 7,987 1,142,709 1,296,133
R2020F1 A 1A ML Balance at January 1, 2020 37,020 96,231 12,186 7,987 1,142,709 1,296,133
BITLER Issuance of ordinary shares — — — — 25,193 25,193
INEFE K, Foreign currency translation - - 9,168 — — 9,168
SRS ETERE) Appropriation to statutory reserves (i) - - — 7,588 - 7,588
NARBEFEAR Changes in the fair value of
HYHAEMEEKREN equity investments at FVOC|
RERENA A BEZS 153,247 — — — — 153,247
RIAMERS Share-based compensation expenses - 66,823 = = — 66,823
FRER H i) Contribution from shareholders (i) - - — — 8,761 8,761
& Dividends — — — —  (1,404,240)  (1,404,240)
R2020F 12831 &R Balance at December 31, 2020 190,267 163,054 21,354 15,575 (227,577) 162,673
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33 HREE w2

() WBEBE(REAREMERAGZE)R
R A i A PR & BB A R A
BERMBANE - ZEQAAER
HMBRUEFEERAEBENLR
EIBRRTHRESANEIT AL
AEERAIEAES  HEAHTA
PHETFEBAN - DETEETRS
AEENED L BI10% - BAT
EAESHNEBEHZERAMNE
HHEEARE - BEEATRBARE
© 48R E B 5E it B AN50% 55 Bl &
BRR -EATEBLABESRMEERE
PRESABELENER  HF
BEATRBABEIB LR TM
B ARE25% ©

EEAN - RIBCREARKMBEISNE
12K K P B A 3t S i 98 3 B R
ARMABERAAGEX  ZF
RRABMBIATFEERGFTEE
BOAANBERTRERBNRE
AL SETHEEZNENE
DHEADRAFIEI10% © & #FH
ELHEREDDEMEAR0%E
BIBAEER - FHREZEQRS
BESENHAER #HEEEA
RERHRTBENIEE -

(i) BHZERE RXEETFTAEEHN
SPIEEFHEEARERRELEA
BR o TR\ T E 4R ST KR SPIRY

33 Other reserve (continued)

(i) In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the stipulated provisions of the articles of association of subsidiaries
with limited liabilities in Mainland China, appropriation of net profits
(after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) should be made by
these companies to their respective statutory surplus reserve funds and
discretionary reserve funds before distributions are made to the owners.
The percentage of appropriation to statutory surplus reserve fund is
10%. The amount to be transferred to discretionary reserve fund is
determined by the equity owners of these companies. When the balance
of the statutory surplus reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered
capital, such transfer needs not to be made. Both statutory surplus
reserve fund and discretionary reserves fund can be capitalized as capital
of an enterprise, provided that the remaining statutory surplus reserve
fund shall not be less than 25% of the registered capital.

In addition, in accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Enterprises with Foreign Investments and the stipulated
provisions of the articles of association of wholly owned foreign
subsidiaries in Mainland China, appropriation from net profits (after
offsetting accumulated losses brought forward from prior years) should
be made by these companies to their respective reserve fund. The
percentage of net profit to be appropriated to the reserve fund is not
less than 10% of the net profit. When the balance of the reserve fund
reaches 50% of the registered capital, such transfer needs not to be
made. With approvals obtained from respective boards of directors of
these companies, the Reserve Fund can be used to offset accumulated
deficit or to increase capital.

(i) Upon completion of the Reorganization, net liabilities of SPI which
were not transferred to the Group were accounted for as a deemed
contribution from the Shareholders. The following table summarizes the

BEHBEMRR assets and liabilities of SPI upon the completion of the Reorganization:

RREE

Contribution from

shareholders

ARBT T

RMB’'000

REMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,948
HMmeEE Other current assets 4,526
mEFIBEAE Current tax liabilities (14,683)
B 5 R HA IR Trade and other payables (552)
(8,761)
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3 HEREEH 34 Cash flow information
(a) REMEBRE (a) Cash generated from operations
BZ12A31BLFE
Year ended December 31,
20205 20194
2020 2019
AR%T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FriSHiaFE Profit before income tax 816,809 661,171
FEER Adjustments for:
Y% - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,640 6,265
mR A EEH Amortization of intangible assets 85,312 7,213
i PR & B 5 Amortization of right-of-use assets 19,658 22,895
NAREBEGTZBEEZEHTA Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
EHBEENSREERN
RREEE 4,551 (3,911)
FEMR Write-downs of inventories 112 93
EREEREBE Impairment losses of intangible assets 19,627 —
BB Share based compensation 66,823 34,041
FEWA Interest income (11,478) (12,171)
HEWE - BB REENUR Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and
EmREERNEIR intangible assets 164 192
FERAX Interest expense 29,592 1,189
HNE (Wezs) EIR Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (5,358) 1,019
EEESRE Change in working capital:
FE (&) R (Increase)/decrease in inventories (41,058) 7,503
B 5 EWGRIER Decrease in trade receivables 26,771 265,389
HEibmsEE R A EEEN Increase in other current assets and other assets (29,910) (189)
B 5 K E At T FRIEE N Increase in trade and other payables 41,335 55,848
REMBRS Cash generated from operations 1,031,590 1,046,547
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34 REeREER® 34 Cash flow information (continued)
(b) kRERENMEEH (b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
AR%T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEHEBEIERSPIEEFE Deemed contributions from shareholders with
(TEERE) MRE derecognition of net liabilities (excluding cash) of
R HE  (FiFE330ii) SPI upon the Reorganization (Note 33(ii)) 10,709 —
BRAHELHREEREEE Acquisition of right-of-use assets through lease
(FaE17) arrangements (Note 17) 3,008 9,239
() (BT BE& EBHYE (c) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation
ATEHINFREEEN(ER),/ Set out below is an analysis of net (debt)/cash and the movements in net
He FEMER),/ R FEE (debt)/cash for each of the years presented.
B DT o
R12831H
As at December 31,
2020F 20194
2020 2019
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,118,986 919,490
B — —FNEER Borrowings — repayable within one year (782,988) —
B — —FREER Borrowings — repayable after one year (1,171,489) —
HEBE — —FRIH Lease liabilities — due within one year (6,402) (19,466)
HEEE — —F1&EIH Lease liabilities — due after one year (2,070) (6,992)
(&%) /HeF8E Net (debt)/cash (843,963) 893,032
ReERREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 1,118,986 919,490
BETE — FEFE Gross debt — floating interest rates (1,954,477) —
RIER — BEHE Gross debt — fixed interest rates (8,472) (26,458)
(&%) /BeFHE Net (debt)/cash (843,963) 893,032
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3 HEREER »)
() (B BE&FHEEEE

34 Cash flow information (continueq)

(c) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (continued)

HibEE RMETHEENEE
Other Liabilities from
assets financing activities
RER
RELEEY HESE RN ast
Cash and
cash Lease
equivalents liabilities Borrowings Total
ARBTT AR¥TRT AR¥TRT AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
7R2020F1 1B MRS FE Net cash as at January 1, 2020 919,490 (26,458) — 893,032
RERE Cash flows 256,998 20,395  (2,123,850)  (1,846,457)
fEREEEEM Increase of right-of-use assets — (3,008) — (3,008)
FEEH A& Accrual interests — (1,112) — (1,112)
Hin# 35 Other changes — — 5,601 5,601
NI 58 B Foreign exchange adjustments (57,502) 1,711 163,772 107,981
A2020%F12A31 B WEK B Net debt as at December 31, 2020 1,118,986 (8,472) (1,954,477) (843,963)
R2019F1B1BEHNE S FE Net cash as at January 1, 2019 275,962 (39,560) — 236,402
REmE Cash flows 644,547 24,182 — 668,729
fF R LN Increase of right-of-use assets — (9,239) — (9,239)
FEEHRB Accrual interests — (1,189) — (1,189)
HINEE B Foreign exchange adjustments (1,019) (652) — (1,671)
A2019F12A31BWEREFHE Net cash as at December 31, 2019 919,490 (26,458) — 893,032
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35 EXRBBMEXRS

ME T RIEEP - AR ERAEE
EH S A HAE S - TNHBEREE
REMMERTZES - ZEARES - K
RERFE LS ERNZTT TRRR
BT -

AT RBREAEBAEH R REK
SHARKZHEET -

(a) BWRERELNER

35 Significant related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control, common
significant influence or joint control.

The following companies are related parties of the Group that had balances
and/or transactions with the Group.

(@) Names and relationships with related parties

18 B%
Name Relationship
SBH RNIER AR

Intermediate holding company

(b) EHEABSINEARRS
(i) KB L FL 5%

(b) Significant transactions with related parties
(i) Payments on behalf of a related party

HZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®ET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
SBH — 246
(i) BEHHE (ii) Contribution from equity holders
BZE12A31HILEE
Year ended December 31,
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®ET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
SBH 8,761 —
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35 Significant related party transactions (continued)

(b) HEBAINERRSZ (&) (b) Significant transactions with related parties (continued)

(iii) 6 7K 2 7] IR Bk 19 7Y (iii) Dividends to the Company’s shareholders

®E
BENAMALEE
Year ended December 31,

20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
SBH 2,230,394 211,596

(iv) 3 2 8] IR K12 H AT
BB 1E R

2020566 A 2 Al * AN&E B
ASBHEY IR 1T B X gl 12
EAR o fHSBHARAEBITH R
IRITERRLB T AR
EEMENTA  AKEE
HSBHR SRITE A A T/
EBEER T R2019F
12A318 - E@E XA
%$300,000,000% 7T (48 E 7
A R #2,092,860,0007T) °
SBHE 7202046 A & & B
BIRITER - R20195F 12
A 318 [SBHIE & &9 & (R AT
B IEEREEMTE
e

(iv) Financial guarantee provided to the Company’s
shareholder

Prior to June 2020, the Group had provided guarantee for a
bank loan facility to SBH. In the event that SBH fails to perform
its obligations under the bank loan facility or otherwise defaults
thereunder, the Group will become liable for SBH’s obligations
under the bank loan facility, which amounted to USD300,000,000
(equivalent to RMB2,092,860,000) as at December 31, 2019. SBH
repaid the bank loan in full in June 2020. Financial guarantee
liability in relation to the guarantee provided to SBH was minimal
at December 31, 2019.
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35

BERBEEBIRZ @
() TEEIE ASHH

HEERBENXIENEZEE
ABHFHBMT

35 Significant related party transactions (continued)

(c) Key management personnel compensations

The compensations paid or payable to key management personnel for
employee services are shown below:

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
2020 2019%F
2020 2019
ARBTT AREBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE& - #FHeMiea Wages, salaries, bonuses 24,451 20,782
VARR 19 I B 89T 3R Share-based payments 29,332 17,410
RIKSFEIMR Contributions to pension plans 411 615
FERES - BERER Housing funds, medical insurance and

Hfhrt & 1@ AR other social welfare contributions 808 794
55,002 39,601

36

37
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HERE

AEER2019% K2020F12A318 1
EEMEASBAE -

HEER

(a)

R2021F 18228 * AR AKRRE
B R 49 LA B 1D B BB B 14 3K
AE(BERARABEEZRGR
MEMFE] B ARRAE
36,689,963 R K EIT R T
AEEBETEE SH/ABUR
HmBERERERES R L
MEAZETRBIEERR

R2021E2 8 - AR RETAE
$£6,689,963 I fX 1 BB 1& B &
7 B2 FSCLN ESOP Management
Limited * Z AR GEMEKZH B &
RBEERAFAEEE IR
MEBEAENEREERA S RRE
AEREAR EMERE)FER

1/\ ®

36 Contingencies

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at December 31,
2019 and 2020.

37 Subsequent Events

(a)

On January 22, 2021, the Company's shareholders approved and
adopted a share based payment scheme (the “Post-IPO RSU Plan”),
under which a total number of 6,689,963 shares of the Company
will be issued and granted to certain directors, officers, and other key
contributors and employees of the Group subject to certain vesting
conditions after the Listing.

In February 2021, an aggregate of 6,689,963 shares of the Company
were issued and then directed to SCLN ESOP Management Limited, a
company incorporated for the purpose of holding shares under the Post-
IPO RSU Plan in trust for and on behalf of grantees to be determined
after the Listing.



37 HHIEEE(»)

(b)

R2021F2A58 KARAEEE
HETHAEE2020612A318
WEHRBRAPRAERERR
TR 412008 BE TR B HE
gl - ZERBEBEMN202163H2H
IEE - RIBREREALF - R
2018412 A 2201944 B #2018
FHETETHORMDEBEZITE
fE#£0.524% Jr B 8) #7 % 5)0.308
ETT

M2020F3A3R8 * AR AERBE
BEXFERE R AREE - BR
NHEEER  ARFIZREFR18.80
7 7T B 17 115,984,500 f% % & &
% e

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 Subsequent Events (continued)

On February 5, 2021, the Company’s board of directors approved its
plan to declare a dividend of approximately USD120.0 million from its
consolidated retained earnings as of December 31, 2020 to its existing
shareholders and the dividends were paid on March 2, 2021. Exercise
prices for the share options granted under the 2018 Plan in December
2018 and April 2019 are automatically adjusted from USDO0.524 to
USDO0.308 based on the proportion of this dividend distribution.

On March 3, 2020, the Company completed its IPO on the HKEx. Upon
the IPO, the Company issued 115,984,500 new ordinary shares at
HKD18.80 per share.
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38 AANTNEEESEERE 38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

&2 B Company
(a) ARAMEEERBX (a) Balance sheet of the Company
M12A31H
As at
December 31,
20204
2020
ARETT
RMB’000
BE Assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
HENB AR Investment in subsidiaries 6,260,693
REEE Current assets
Hihmeh&E Other current assets 7,112
ReRBFLEFED Cash and cash equivalents 23,877
30,989
EEHAE Total assets 6,291,682
EakBE Equity and liabilities
=N Liabilities
REEE Current liabilities
B 5 K H b FERTRIE Trade and other payables 46,392
=Rt Total liabilities 46,392
EEZRE Net assets 6,245,290
AAREE AELER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
N Share capital 192
Hhi#FE Other reserves 6,284,378
REtEsiE Accumulated losses (39,280)
A Total equity 6,245,290
RATRMEEBBEREN20214F The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
SA2SHEEEGHE WREAE Directors on March 25, 2021 and were signed on its behalf.
2.
B
Zhao Hong
E
Director
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38 AATFINEEEBEXRNLFE 38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

HE2H e Company (continued)
(b) DTN EEEE (b) Reserve movement of the Company
EMERER BERNE &5t
Currency
translation Capital
differences reserve Total
ARET T
RMB’000
7R202065813H Balance at May 13, 2020
(FEMABE) KSR (date of incorporation) — — —
NI RE 5, Foreign currency translation (533,651) — (533,651)
AIREISPILEY 2 B AR A M 2 Issuance of ordinary shares in
MmETERR exchange for the entire
equity interests of SPIL — 6,792,648 6,792,648
MITHA B REEHITEBR Issuance of ordinary shares to
(Pt 5E27) the executives and directors
(Note 27) — 25,381 25,381
72020512 A31H W& &R Balance at December 31, 2020 (533,651) 6,818,029 6,284,378
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38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the
Company (continued)

(c) Information about subsidiaries
The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December
31, 2020 are as follows:

BB

TEEE EEH S S e
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Place and date of issued/  Principal activities/ Attributable equity interests of
Company name incorporation paid-in capital place of operation the Group
MW12A318
As at December 31,
2020 2019%F
2020 2019
EERE
Directly held
SPIL FERS 900,000X7t EmiE A& - XHHE 100% 100%
199246118168 : Ri&EER HeEHS
7199357 H19H
ERAEM
Cayman Islands, USD900,000  Product sales, manufacturing,
11/16/1992; business development and
Registered in investment holding/
Hong Kong on Cayman Islands
July 19, 1993
BEEE
Indirectly held
SP Italy BARF 10,0008  REAFEBFA, 100% 100%
2000412 148 BAAH
Italy, EUR10,000 License holding in Italy/Italy
December
14, 2000
SciClone == 50,000%7C REZRRERHE, 100% 100%
Pharmaceuticals 200549 H 198 HEHS
International China Cayman Islands, USD50,000  Investment holding and
Holding Ltd. September product sales/Cayman Islands
19, 2005
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38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

-1 )) Company (continueq)
(<) EBEMEBATINER (&) (c) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AR AL a7,/
NGIEE 2N B BHEAHE IBEEH KL EEREERAER

Particulars of

Place and date of issued/ Principal activities/ Attributable equity interests of
Company name incorporation paid-in capital place of operation the Group
M®12A31H
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
SciClone B 61,828,872 EfmiINE B 100% 100%
Pharmaceuticals 2010698 14H T
Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, USD  Product sales/Hong Kong
September 61,828,872
14, 2010
NovaMed EEX 50,0007 (RERIREER HEHS 100% 100%
Pharmaceuticals Inc. 2006454 19H
Cayman Islands, USD50,000 Dormant investment holding/
May 19, 2006 Cayman Islands
SciClone SRAFE - 1670 HRIRAF,SRAFITE 100% 100%
Pharmaceuticals 20194 H29H
Pty Ltd. Australia USD1  Dormant Company/Australia
April 29, 2019
BR N BR A 2R BT A REARKEME  AKRY10,500,000 #FERYFEH 100% —
BRAR ( [HE]) 7T
20204 H2H
SciClone People’s RMB  R&D services/PRC
Pharmaceuticals Republic of China 10,500,000
Development (Suzhou) (“PRC"),
Co., Ltd. April 2, 2020
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Information about subsidiaries (continued)
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Place and date of issued/ Principal activities/ Attributable equity interests of
Company name incorporation paid-in capital place of operation the Group
M®12A31H
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
BNEBEES HE 14,000,000 {RER AT/ HE 100% 100%
(b&) BRAR 20074F3A2H ETT
NovaMed PRC, USD  Dormant Company/PRC
Pharmaceuticals March 2, 2007 14,000,000
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
BB (PE) e - AR SHRHEEHRS, HE 100% 100%
BRAA 201410H15H 50,000,0007T
SciClone PRC, RMB50,000,000 Marketing and promotional
Pharmaceuticals October 15, 2014 support services/PRC
(China) Co., Ltd.
BEBETIHARAR  PHE- AREE  EmpHRTBCE/HE 100% 100%
201569 H24H 30,000,0007T
SciClone PRC, RMB  Products distribution and
Pharmaceuticals September 24, 30,000,000 administration support/PRC
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. 2015
PEEZRENK R AR BRIRHERSEHEH
BRAR 2018457168 1,000,0007C
Pu Duo Medical PRC, RMB1,000,000  Clinical research service/PRC 100% 100%
Technology Huangpu May 16, 2018
Shanghai
BEBERE HE AR¥E SRR, PE 100% 100%
(dem) BRAT 20184 7H23A 1,000,0007%
SciClone PRC, RMB1,000,000 Various support services/PRC
Pharmaceuticals July 23, 2018

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
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38 ARAFAMNEERBREMR

38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

-1 )) Company (continueq)
(<) EBEMEBATINER (&) (c) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AR AL a7,/
NGIEE 2N B BHEAHE IBEEH KL EEREERAER

Particulars of

Place and date of issued/ Principal activities/ Attributable equity interests of
Company name incorporation paid-in capital place of operation the Group
M®12A31H
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
BEEH (L8) HE - 250,000 &R HEERS,HE 100% 100%
BRAA 200652 A7H
SciClone PRC, UsD250,000 Marketing and promotion
Pharmaceuticals February 7, 2006 services/PRC
(China) Ltd.
SciClone EEX 50,0007 ERIRATFFERTS, FHEHS 100% 100%
Pharmaceuticals 20086 A11H
International Cayman Islands, USD50,000  Pre-clinical R&D services/
(Cayman) June 11, 2008 Cayman Islands
Development Ltd.
SciClone ik - 1,0005%7T  ERIRATEREIRTS, BB 100% 100%
Pharmaceuticals (HK) 20154 10H21H
Development Co Ltd. Hong Kong, USD1,000  Preclinical R&D services/
October 21, 2015 Hong Kong
Eas ik e 1,400,0005% 7T  FREMRT,HE 100% 100%
(b&) BRAT 20154 5H128
SciClone PRC, UsD1,400,000 R&D services/PRC
Pharmaceuticals May 12, 2015

Development
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
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Information about subsidiaries (continued)
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Place and date of issued/ Principal activities/ Attributable equity interests of
Company name incorporation paid-in capital place of operation the Group
M®12A31H
As at December 31,
2020 20194
2020 2019
SPL EE 10,0007 HEHEKESRERS,EE 100% 100%
201849 H19H
Hong Kong, Hong Kong Dollar  Supply chain and
September 19, ("HKD") 10,000  quality assurance services/
2018 Hong Kong
SPML EE 10,0007 ERERYGEE 100% 100%
201849 H19H
Hong Kong, HKD10,000 Management services/
September 19, Hong Kong
2018
EEHEEER R ARY  EMHEE/HE 100% —
(L&) BRAT 202047 A8H 5,000,0007C
SciClone Supply Chain  PRC, RMB5,000,000  Product sales/PRC
Management July 8, 2020

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
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Financial Summary

HENANBILEE

Year ended December 31,

2020F 20194 2018%F 201745
2020 2019 2018 2017
AR®TRT ARBTIT AREFTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
LN Revenue 1,918,562 1,708,068 1,408,869 1,212,966
EF Gross Profit 1,490,456 1,314,927 1,105,870 1,031,788
4 7 Net Profit 753,695 614,604 535,082 19,582
W12A318
As at December 31,
20204 20194 2018%F 20174
2020 2019 2018 2017
ARETRT ARBTT AR®TT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
mEE Total Assets 2,882,644 1,845,823 1,296,277 1,427,651
waE Total Liabilities 2,570,782 320,646 253,406 467,753
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About the Report

We hereby release the first 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance Report ("ESG
report”) of SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited. In this report, we will disclose
our Group's ESG strategies, measures and performances in our daily operation
covering the period from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 (hereinafter referred

to as the “reporting period”).

This report is prepared in compliance with the “ESG Reporting Guide” in Appendix
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Unless otherwise stated, this report covers our main businesses in China. The Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) for environmental aspects cover our offices in China.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the reporting principles of the ESG
Reporting Guide, which include:

° Materiality: We identify key ESG issues through stakeholder engagement and

materiality assessment, and disclosure accordingly in the ESG report.

° Quantitative: This Report presents environmental KPIs in quantitative terms,
with narratives provided to explain the purpose and impacts.

° Balance: This report provides an unbiased picture of our Group's current

performance on ESG management following the principle of balance.

o Consistency: This is our first ESG report and we will use consistent
methodologies to disclose ESG information in the following years to ensure the

comparability of information.
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ESGE A ESG Governance

BRI EXL

New SciClone Corporate Culture

e -

- SciCrone
. BESR
BEHERE
e

EXEEEXE®
BPEEIRERRERERREERGE Targeting oncology and severe infection therapeutic areas, we are dedicated
A BORRGEREEEE BPE to becoming an international biopharmaceutical company focusing on China
g8 BEIBRZ BERE KABRE market with sustainable growth, by working hard to win trust from our
FETISHBIBREYRGEDE o patients, respect from our customers and pride from our employees.
NEBEREACH  REBEREN We are dedicated to improving patients’ health by providing top-tier
EEEMMRE - healthcare products and services with global standards of care.

EEBEEER

Employer value proposition

AETREEEA RN ARSI
REAEMTA  FETONEESE
7 8y 1 58 -

We provide employees with the cultural environment of international
companies and a platform to display their talents, so that employees can get
better returns for their efforts.
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Our values include customer, win-win, responsibility, efficiency, performance

and compliance.
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Our leadership criteria include setting direction, developing talents, engaging
partners, embracing change and driving for results.

ESG strategy

With more than 20 years of experience in commercializing differentiated high quality
medicines in China market, sustainable development strategy always serves as the
framework for our roadmap and guides every aspect of our business.

ESG governance structure

To achieve top-down supervision of ESG matters and to ensure the smooth
implementation of the ESG work of our Group, we are establishing an ESG
governance structure composed of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and an ESG
Working Group composed of major departments of our Group.

The Board is the highest decision-making body of the ESG management of our
Group, assuming full responsibility for our Group’s ESG matters. Apart from
formulating our Group's ESG strategy and objectives, and consistently evaluate,
prioritize and manage material ESG-related issues and risks, the Board is also
responsible for reviewing the performances of ESG management system and the
progress of achieving ESG objectives.

The ESG working group is responsible for the reporting of ESG-related matters, the
implementation of ESG work and the compilation of annual ESG report to the Board.

Stakeholder engagement

Our Group's stakeholders include governments and regulators, shareholders and
investors, employees, customers and patients, partners and suppliers, communities,
peer companies and industrial associations and media. We understand and respond to
their expectations and requirements through several communication mechanisms, in
this way to enhance our business model in a sustainable way.
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HFEER

Expectations and Requirements

BB

Communication Mechanisms
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Governments and regulators

BREEEE

Shareholders and investors

0
H

Employees

BEPREE

Customers and patients

BIERBHEMER

Partners and suppliers

B ERER
AT
BB E

Compliance with laws and regulations
Pay taxes
Epidemic prevention and controls

ARER
BEBR
R 0
R E

Corporate governance
Return on investment
Information disclosure
Risk management

[RIEE THE
WREEREE
BERERZS

E\

Protect employee’s rights and interests
Career development channel
Occupational health and safety

=8 2R ERMRY
BEWEH
PRI E

High quality products and services
Responsible marketing
Privacy protection

BRRE
EmATE
HBERRE

Compliance procurement
Win-win cooperation
Intellectual property protection

BREE
&R 4970
2 ERTEE

Compliance management

Proactive in tax payment

Active participation of government’s
projects

S8 | 145 B I ER
BREEEEE®
7554

GRS

Mandatory information disclosure
Shareholder and investor meetings
Road show

Company website

EMEE MIE

Regular meetings and trainings

Employee care activities

Internal communication channels
Quarterly performance communication
and annual performance review

PR ZRAR B2 BB

AmENEH

Service hotline and email
Conferences and meetings

BRE YT
AR5 ah A
A WET

Conferences and meetings
Business visits

Audit and performance evaluation
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Expectations and Requirements
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Communication Mechanisms
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Communities

ROTEERITERS

Peer companies and
industrial associations
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Community development
Support for community welfare

ATHF
HITRRRARER

Fair competition
Contribution to industrial development

EE%H
HERE
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Official website
Public welfare activities
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Industrial conferences
Benchmarking

B J =E 2 HE m &R A
. BROTETEN =Wk b
Media 3 High-quality products and services Press release
o Positive social influence Official website
BEEMTME Materiality Assessment
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In order to further clarify the expectations of internal and external stakeholders
towards ESG issues at SciClone, we have conducted the materiality assessment
through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification: Based on our business development and industrial trends,
we have identified 18 ESG issues which we believe have significant impact on our
business and stakeholders.

Step 2: Assessment: Through materiality evaluation questionnaires with internal
stakeholders of our Group, we assessed the materiality of every issue by the aspects
of “materiality to SciClone’s business” and “impact on stakeholders” and formulated
the Materiality Assessment Matrix.

Step 3: Review: The Board and the ESG Working Group reviewed and confirmed the

assessment results.
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RIE 2 kERWE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EZE Material ERHEERZ2
Product quality and safety
5 BRERRENE BEEREZS

BT QE Business ethics and Occupational health

Employee training integrity and safety

and development
BEANEHEREFMEE
Responsible marketing

EEEERALRE and customer satisfaction

Customer information
and privacy protection

HREERE
Intellectual property protection

AR A EEEE
Sustainable supply
chain management

B B R AU RT
Product
development
and innovation

BIRER
Employee
rights and
benefits

NIHEH

Public welfare B ETRMEYE
Prohibit child labor and
forced labor

AEZ Immaterial

HEAEKNWEEM Materiality to SciClone’s business = High

EEMTEER Materiality Assessment Matrix
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Operation

Supply chain management

Our suppliers usually include the contract manufacturing organizations (CMO), the
manufacturers of the active pharmaceutical ingredients used in the manufacture of
our finished products, the business partners whose products we sell on their behalf

and other service providers.

We choose our suppliers based on fair and open principle, as well as a variety
of factors including quality, technical expertise, industry reputation and Good
Manufacturing Practice (GMP) compliance with the relevant regulatory authorities.
According to our Procurement Standard Operating Process {IREEIZH#IRIERTE) |
suppliers participating in the bidding are required to provide business licenses within
the validity period. Before signing the contract, suppliers need to provide the required
qualification documents according to our Supplier New SOP {#tFERI#T7EZSOP) and
complete the Third-Party Due Diligence Questionnaire {5 =1 =BMEFE) to
ensure compliance with relevant requirements.

To monitor and evaluate the products or services provided by suppliers, we have
established a set of specifications and production requirements, and we review their
production related documentation, including batch records and analysis records, to
ensure the production comply with related requirements. In addition, we conduct on-
site audits to ensure that the suppliers meet GMP requirements.

Product responsibility

SciClone is committed to providing quality products and services, consistently
emphasizing safety, integrity, innovation and continuous improvement to customers
by fostering and maintaining an attitude of quality awareness while building and
perpetuating relationships based on quality principles with customers, partners,

vendors and suppliers.

For our proprietary and in-licensed pharmaceutical products, we produce all such
products through outsourced CMOs. Our production quality management system is
fully aligned with the current GMP as implemented in markets that we operate in.
For the promotion products we sell for our business partners, we also adopt stringent
quality management measures for the promotion products we sell for our business

partners.
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Quality control system and culture
with strict and high standard

We strictly abide by the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the People’s Republic
of China {HEARKMBLERZEIERE) , Good Clinical Practice of Pharmaceutical
Products {EEYIREIR A5 E S EIRIRE) , Measures for the Administration of Drug
Registration {EEFEMEEPEE) and other laws and regulations, and carry out
research and development, clinical research and commercial production in accordance
with the laws. We have formulated the Quality Manual {'EZF ) which serves as
a road map to SciClone’s quality system and instruct employees on detailed operation
to provide high-quality products and services to our customers. The President and
Chief Executive Officer of SciClone has appointed the Head of Quality Assurance to
be the management representative for the quality.

CEEFM)
The Quality
Manual

SOP » &#& ~ A% -
BOREOSE - BB 4astEl
SOPs, Forms, Test Methods,

Batch Records, Validation Master Plans

RSk ¥R

Records and Reports

EEBE BRIV RFBERRRGEESE
Quality To achieve and sustain quality of products and services
objectives

ERTEERRENRNEERR

To maintain an effective quality system complying with international standards

FIRW ML 2T - RAEENEFEE To achieve and maintain a level of quality
which enhances the Group's reputation with customers

FRENTERBEERLERE
To ensure compliance with relevant statutory and safety requirements
BB NEANMEBEFHERB M EE

To endeavor, at all the time, to maximize customer satisfaction with the products
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Process performance and product quality will be monitored, including review of
production activities & outcomes and release & stability testing activities. We will
maintain a testing program on an adequate number of product batches to evaluate
the stability of the products, including proper storage conditions and expiration date.

Product quality complaints and medical complaints linked to adverse reactions and
injuries will be managed based on the requirements of the Quality Manual &
ZFM) in a timely manner. Appropriate action will be taken to ensure that the
unqualified products are recalled and quarantined when necessary. As at December
31, 2020, our Group had no complaints or product recalls due to safety and health

reasons.

Compliance

Business ethics

Our success is built upon a foundation of integrity — a longstanding commitment to
act with the highest ethical standards and to conduct business honestly and legally.
We strictly abides by the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China {F%E A
REMBIFE)Y , the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the People’s Republic
of China (FPEARKEMBEEEREIRL) , the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China (HFEARKEMERTIEEFHEFE) and other laws and
regulations.

BEY
BRBRARX
Establishment

of
compliance
system and

culture

TR
Process
control
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We ensure compliance operation through whole process management including
the establishment of compliance system and culture, process control, supervision
and investigation. Moreover, we have formulated the Global Anti-Bribery & Anti-
Corruption Policy {2 kR B[R GBI EE ) , which addresses and effectuates our
commitment to comply with laws, rules and regulations relating to the interactions
with government officials, health care professionals and other business partners.
All employees are required to complete the relevant compliance trainings and sign
the Anti-Bribery Certification to certify that they will comply with our Group policy.
Failure to comply with any provision of this policy is a serious violation, and may
result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination, as well as civil or criminal
charges. In 2020, our Group had no cases involving corruption.

Intellectual property and privacy protection

Intellectual property and privacy protection are essential to the success of our
business. We have engaged external counsel to manage all our intellectual property
rights, ensuring the risks related to the identification of property rights are effectively
controlled. We have also established a regular reporting system to ensure that we
can adequately control the risks associated with our intellectual property. Moreover,
employees are required to sign the Confidentiality and Intellectual Property Protection
Agreement {IRE M A EERERZ) , complete the courses and pass the related
examination.

Compliance marketing

Our Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations such as the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China {(FFEARKMBIESE) . Promotional
information is required to be consistent with pharmaceutical product information
approved by China Food and Drug Administration. We designate personnel with
sufficient knowledge and appropriate qualifications to be responsible for approving all
promotional communications, or we receive scientific advice on such communications

from adequately qualified scientific personnel.

Employee

Human resource is one of the valuable assets at our Group. We provide our
employees with global-standard company culture, encouraging mutual respect,
open communication and teamwork. Meanwhile, we establish a platform where the
employees can show their talent and their efforts can be recognized and rewarded.

Standardised employment

We follow close to the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China ™% AR
Bl 805 |, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (% AR
MBELEHARE) | the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor {Z£1H{E
ZT#RE) and other relevant laws and regulations. We treat and respect employees
fairly, regardless of their gender, nationality, background and race. Child labor and
forced labor are strictly prohibited.
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We have adopted series of policies including the Management Measures for Employee
Recruitment, Enrollment, In-service and Dismission 8 T8k  AB - 8 MBS
Y% and Management Measures for Internal Employee Talent Recommendation
(REPE TAA HBERILE) |

2020, we have carried out improvement and optimization in many aspects, such as

to optimize our human recourse mechanism. In

the update and optimization of on-boarding, transfer, and dismission processes, as
well as the upgrade of the HR system including performance management, welfare
application and approval, etc.

Compensation and benefits

We provide market-competitive compensation and benefits through innovative
performance review system and competitive benefits program. In addition to standard
benefits according to labor law and related regulations, we provide employees with
annual physical examination, supplementary medical security insurance, personal
accident insurance and serious disease insurance. We also provide reimbursement
benefits for emergency care, hospitalization expenses and childcare expenses for
employees’ children.

Working hours and holidays

We have formulated the Measures on the Management of Working Hours and
Holidays  TYEREIFRERERITE)
working hour system is adopted by our Group according to the job requirement.

The standard working hour and flexible

Employees are entitled to enjoy the Chinese public holidays, statutory leave, annual
leave, and all other holidays that are granted in accordance with relevant rules and
regulations. Employees from ethnic minority areas are entitled with corresponding
leave in accordance with the regulations of their local ethnic minority government.

Health and safety

As part of our governance, we are committed to providing a safe working
environment for our employees. We strictly abide by applicable Chinese laws and
regulations on workplace health and safety, including but not limited to the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China {2 ARKEMELE)X) and the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases

(hEgEARAMBBERTAE) .

To enhance safety awareness of employees and to ensure the safety of the workplace,
we introduce guidelines on safety practices, accident prevention and accident
reporting based on the Office and Safety Code {I¥ANRZZEMMEI) to employees
during new employee training. Meanwhile, we actively cooperate with the property
management to conduct integrated testing on fire services system.
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During the outbreak of novel coronavirus pneumonia epidemic (COVID-19), we made
efforts to prevent and control the epidemic and took effective measures to ensure the
safety of employees. We regularly communicated with employees through email and
other means, and reduced employees’ travel by working at home and other measures
to avoid cross-infection. In addition, we have lunched staff physical and mental care
project — “Answer Heart”, to offer professional psychologist, psychological test and
health tips that help staff to face and solve difficulties. With a joint effort from all
employees, we minimized the impact of the epidemic, and there was no confirmed
case within our Group during the reporting period.

Development and training

We emphasize the diversity of our employees and provide fair and transparent
opportunities to all. By formulating the Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)
for Promotion Management (EHERIZERERIZ) . we clarify the specific
conditions and process requirements for promotion, so as to create a more fair and
equal opportunity for employees’ career progress and development. We have also
established the performance management mechanism to perform comprehensive
assessment of employees from the aspects of business result appraisal and behaviors
rating.

At SciClone, promotion can be divided into position promotion and title promotion
according to its nature. For position promotion, if the position is available and
the employee meets the relevant requirements of knowledge/experience, skills,
personality, character and values, attitudes and motivation, he or she will be
promoted. For title promotion, the employee to be promoted should meet the
requirements of the relevant work experience, knowledge, compliance, performance
and other aspects of the promotion standards of the corresponding positions. We
implement the “Talent Cultivation Program” and “Cadre Project” to strength our
talent pool. For the development of our key talents, we select the excellent candidates
and arrange the personalized development plan for them.

&
PN T Area sales
& RS Regional sales management
Area sales management
management
BB

Position promotion

HBENIA L

Director or above

4

BIMEES

Deputy director

Senior manager

BEEA

Title promotion
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We believe that training programs improve the productivity and maintain the
quality, knowledge and skill level of our staff. We established the SciClone School
in September 2020 to develop a comprehensive training system for our employees.
The corresponding courses are allocated to each type of employee according to the
job requirement. Meanwhile, we provide regular and professional training programs
including mandatory training programs related to compliance and company policies,
as well as professional training to meet the needs of each department or position.
Our training types including:

° Orientation training: get a comprehensive understanding of our Group and
its products through the introduction of company culture, compliance training,
internal process system operation training, drug safety alert and quality
complaints, etc.

o Sales representative training: training on product knowledge, sales skills,
area management, advanced sales skills, key account management, self-
awareness and effective communication, negotiation and winning skills.

. DSM manager training: regional business management, field coaching,
interview skills, situational leadership, performance communication and
management, etc. For the potential DSM program training includes: strategic
performance management, workplace stress and emotion management,
structural resilience, excellence in leadership, etc.

o RSM training: lead the leader; coach the coach; leadership courses, etc.

° Middle-level cadre training: in addition to professional training, sales and
non-sales managers can receive advanced training regarding management
and strategy aspects, as well as participate in various workshops and projects
through our SciClone College.

:fﬂhm{} HI Iil _

BLEEBR - 2BMNEBBEE

SciClone School — Visit to Alibaba Group
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In addition to offline trainings, we have established our own online training platform
— iSciclone. Employees can take online courses to learn about our Group's policies
and complete relevant exams remotely via mobile phones or computers.

Employee care

At SciClone, we share success and joy, celebrate reward and growth together. To
achieve work-life balance, we celebrate festivals with games and gifts, and also
organize all kinds of activities such as annual meeting, team building, basketball,
table tennis. badminton activities, etc.
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2020 Incentive Trip

Environment

While providing top-tier healthcare products and services with global standards,
we pay high attention to the impact of company operation on the ecological
environment. We strictly abide relevant laws and regulations such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (% AR LME IR
5{R#%) and the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China {/
#= NRHEMBIELEEIRE) . Meanwhile, we advocate green office through different
measures:

° Put up posters of power and water saving to remind employees to switch off

power and water equipment in a timely manner;

o Encourage paperless office whenever possible, avoid unnecessary use of paper
and reduce the amount of color printing;

. Promote garbage classification among employees and provide four different
types of bins for the collection of household food waste, recyclable waste,
hazardous waste and residual waste.
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20205 » NEBFBRIREAOKPIB RO T ¢ In 2020, our Group's environment related KPIs are shown as follows:
20204
IRIBKPI Environmental KPIs 2020
gERERERE (JERE) Total energy consumption (MWh)' 430.48
— MR EFEEE OREM) — Total indirect energy consumption (MWh) 430.48
— BeRERERE KRR, A) — Energy consumption intensity (MWh per capita) 0.54
BERBHNESE Total GHG emissions (tCO,e)?
(A LiREE) 2 292.80
— RREEAERESNR (B8E ) — Energy Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) (tCO,e)
(WE—SftixE S 292.80
— REREHERGAE — GHG emission intensity (tCO.e per capita)
(S e £,/ A) 0.37
AeanBEMEEE (1) Packaging materials used for finished products in total (tonnes) 78
— BEEBEMFERANBEME — Packaging materials used per unit produced (kg per unit produced)
(T / BEEEM) 0.038
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Notes:

Total energy consumption is calculated based on the electricity consumption in offices and
warehouses.

Based on the nature of our Group’s business operation, there is no material direct GHG
emissions (Scope 1) as the use of fuels is relatively limited in our Group. Thus, our GHG
emissions mainly consist of energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) from purchased
electricity. GHG emissions are presented in CO, equivalents and calculated in accordance
with the 2017 and 2012 Regional Grid Average CO, Emission Factor for China {2011
FM20125F 7+ BRI EHTH S eiBiRE )
Reform Commission (NDRC) and How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting

issued by National Development and

Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by HKEx.

There is no production process conducted in our Group and the waste generated is mainly
residual waste from office operation which is disposed by the property management.
Since the environmental impacts are relatively limited, KPI A1.1 (The types of emissions
and respective emissions data), A1.3 (Total hazardous waste produced), A1.4 (Total non-
hazardous waste produced) are not disclosed in the ESG report.

Our Group's water consumption is mainly for domestic use and sourced from municipal
water system, which is sufficient for of daily operation. However, as only a minimal
amount of water was used in the offices and water charges are not required, KPI A2.2
(Water consumption in total and intensity) is not disclosed in the ESG report.
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5. Apart from matters disclosed above, we do not cause other significant environmental
impacts or make heavy use of other environmental and natural resources during operation.
Therefore, Aspect A3 (The environment and natural resources) and KPI A3.1 (Description
of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them) are not applicable to our Group, and are not disclosed in
the ESG report.

6. Based on our assessment, we believe that climate-related risks do not cause material
impact on our current business. Therefore, Aspect A4 (Climate change) and KPI A4.1
(Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them) are not disclosed
in the ESG report. In the future, we will continuously monitor the climate-related issues
which may impact our operation and disclose relevant information in future reports when
appropriate.

Community

We believe that the development of public welfare activities is not only the
performance of corporate social responsibility, but also an important measure to
enhance the pride of employees. As our Group continues to grow, we are willing to

assume more social responsibilities.

Meanwhile, to ensure such activities are conducted in compliance with related laws
and regulations, we have stipulated the guidelines for charitable donations through
the Global Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy 2 ¥k 8% B < /B BIE) .

Fighting COVID-19 epidemic

We have actively assumed its social responsibility during the outbreak of COVID-19.
As a thymalfasin immunomodulator, our product Zadaxin is considered as the
recommended medicine for severe patients with low lymphocyte counts and low
cellular immune function. Thus, apart from donating RMB1 million in cash to
the Wuhan Charity Federation, we have also donated Zadaxin to foundations,
hospitals and medical institutions to provide help to doctors and patients, including
approximately RMB5 million worth of Zadaxin to the Wuhan Red Cross Federation.
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Donations to support the fight against COVID-19
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Apart from donation, we have assisted experts from Wuhan and Guangzhou in
exploring immunomodulatory therapies for COVID-19 and actively organized online
academic exchange activities related to COVID-19 with experts, such as the forums
of “Walk Through the Dark Moment-The First Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia
Multidisciplinary Forum” and “Expert Seminar of COVID-19 Immunomodulation
Therapy” held by the Infectious Diseases Division of the Shanghai Huashan Hospital,
Affiliated to Fudan University. The forums have received wide public attention, of
which “Walk Through the Dark Moment — The First Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia
Multidisciplinary Forum” has got over 5 million views online.
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HEHEZGEBREA TS E@GEATEESHEZEGSEEBEEALTZE
B EE RS A EREMALT

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct or
indirect common control with such specified person

AARIFR202151 A22 BB EHRMI R £ B BAEBAAKEZER4MA) -
R EF2 P45y

the articles of association of our Company, conditionally adopted on January 22, 2021

HBEHNA

and effective on the Listing Date, a summary of which is set out in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus

EEYERELETY
the audit committee of our Board

5=

the board of Directors

HBERRES
the British Virgin Islands

FEREENFE2E (R
AR T A e

the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961), as
amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

AR) (BERT) (1961 FE35EN) - K IARERI MR

PEARKME  RABRERME - TRESS  AFEITHERAE
the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of the Prospectus, Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

EREDIFE6228 (RFRMED) (BARERT S )
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BEEDIE3I2E (AR OBRMFIRGRSD) &H) (EARERISHER)
the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended or supplemented from time to time

BASEEEREGRAR - —KN2020F5 138 ERAEHSEMA I NEREERAF
SciClone Pharmaceutlcals (Holdings) Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on May 13, 2020

ZA/NCTE- =3

the director(s) of our Company
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“GL Capital Group”

[ H [#HA] Ec

" n u n

“Group”, "our Group”, “we” or “us”

Bl = 84 £
“HK$" or “"Hong Kong dollar(s)” or
“cent”
(&8 Ec|

“Hong Kong” or “HK"

[ BEBBAAT] o B3 |
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or
"Stock Exchange”

[ KBBERBFA) | R &
[ Cus<s Al |

"Hong Kong Takeovers Code” or
“Takeovers Codes”

(= |
“Listing”
[EmBEH] |

“Listing Date”

[ KEmRAD | Ec

“Listing Rules”
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BIMSERE—RE - WIEEAEE - MAEMAGL Capital Management GP Limited * GL
Capital Management GP L.P. ~ GL China Opportunities Fund L.P. + GL Glee Investment
Limited » GL Capital Management Ltd * GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd ~ GL
Trade Investment LPXGL Partners Capital Management Lt B —#H A7) - AEES
HRABRER [FE/RER] —6

our single largest Shareholder, which is not a legal entity, but a group of companies
comprising GL Capital Management GP Limited, GL Capital Management GP L.P., GL
China Opportunities Fund L.P., GL Glee Investment Limited, GL Capital Management
Ltd, GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd, GL Trade Investment LP and GL Partners
Capital Management Ltd, details of which are set forth in the section headed
“Substantial Shareholder” in the Prospectus

KRB REMBRAIAR (AR AEREGHEBARNZERAR AR E)
ZEMBAREMS LR (RIERME) KENER

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before the Company
became the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by
such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)

BREEEEET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

HEFEBSITHR
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

EEBMARSMAERAR
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

FESEME (RANE - S0 RROBIESRAD) - ETEHEST - MR UE MR E
g

the Code on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the SFC, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

Rty A BB S P AR T
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

AN B BB P E W AR BRI ARABESH RS - HHR2021F3A30 5
JiKES

the date, expected to be on or about March 3, 2021, on which our Shares are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and from which dealings in our Shares are permitted to
commence on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

(BEBMEXZMARABEFS LR (EIRHEET M)
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time
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“Main Board”

[ERAM] =5 [ABERAME ]
“Memorandum” or
“Memorandum of Association”
[ETED |
“NASDAQ"

[ RAEREEE ]

“Option Incentive Plan”

[ERDHRERBRETS ]

“Post-IPO Option Plan”

[ERAHBRERZRSEROENCE ]

“Post-IPO RSU Plan”

[FEBF] & [ExR]

“PRC government” or “State”
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MEBMIIEENESRTS (TREHETS) - BUNEEHAPTGEMIL EE W
1181k

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

PERM 202151 A22 A B GRS LT ARAERN AR RABERALM - EMEH
AR E A $5%Y

the memorandum of association of our Company, conditionally adopted by our
Shareholders on January 22, 2021 to take effect on the Listing Date, a summary of
which is set out in Appendix IV to the Prospectus

EEMITERRETS
the NASDAQ Stock Market in the United States

ARRTF20185F6 A24 B RERWHEIE MBI 8] (RTRHERT) - UARRSE
ABLARNEFREERTRA  TRRFOMEFNARRERMED DEER—
RRER — DR EHEl — 1 BRI RE T 8] —&F

the option incentive plan approved and adopted by our Company on June 24, 2018,
as amended from time to time, for the benefit of any director and employee of the
Company or any of our subsidiaries; a summary of the principal terms is set forth in
the section headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Share Plans — 1. Option
Incentive Plan” in Appendix V to the Prospectus

202151 22 B BERFRBRRRANNERAFEERBERETS - RETLHEER
HESBEARBMAARR  T2RFHEENABREREMSEE DEER—RER
— DM EEl — 2. R R ERBRETE] —&

the post-IPO share option scheme adopted by Shareholders’ resolution on January
22, 2021, to provide selected participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in our Company; a summary of principal terms is set forth in the section
headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Share Plans — 2. Post-IPO Option
Plan” in Appendix V to the Prospectus

R2021F1 A2 B ARRAZ RN E R ARBRERZRABH B8 < 4KE
BEEF SRABARAEMBARERMEREERADZARRNKI - TEEFMESR
RABRERWER VEER—RER — D.RMOFE — 3. B AAFHEEEZRHIRG
Bt El] —&

the post-IPO Restricted Share Unit Plan adopted by Shareholders’ resolution on January
22, 2021, to enable the directors, officers, and other key contributors and employees
of our Group to share the success of our Company; a summary of principal terms is set
forth in the section headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Share Plans — 3.
Post-IPO RSU Plan” in Appendix V to the Prospectus

MEIRRIEA - BEMABUADE (BHEE - mREMBEIIE T RFERE) RE#E
sk (X EME) A EE—(E

the central government of the PRC, including all political subdivisions (including
provincial, municipal and other regional or local government entities) and its organs or,
as the context requires, any of them
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[RRER

“Prospectus”

[FHESS ]

“Remuneration Committee”

[ARM
“RMB"
[ZREBOEMFEER ]

“RSU Holding Entity”

[SciClone US |

“SciClone US"

[FE4TE

"SciClone Jiangsu

"

[ tatl]

“Share Plans”
[ ]

“Share(s)"
MR®R

“Shareholder(s)”

[SPIL]

“SPIL"
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AARIAEIR2021F2 198 MBIRER
the prospectus of the Company dated February 19, 2021

ERgFMEES

the remuneration committee of our Board

FEIEE R AR

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

SCLN ESOP Management Limited + —ZR 54 528 # R R B¥ 55X A 32 B FAMaples Trustee
Services (Cayman) LimitedZ2E#HEMNER AT @ BEHAAFHEERZBEHIRGD B
SFEIAETEE AR RBIBEE R A ARMBE R IR HIRG BT EIREZARAN (R EHE
HE) FHEKRND

SCLN ESOP Management Limited, a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and wholly owned by Maples Trustee Services (Cayman) Limited, holding our
Shares pursuant to the Post-IPO RSU Plan on trust for and on behalf of grantees under
the Post-IPO RSU Plan which will be determined after the Listing

SciClone Pharmaceuticals LLC (BIf#/A&SciClone Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) * —ZK #1990
F5A4REERMFIER DM ML - WK200346 426 A 75 Frh )N S5
BBV AR] - REBEPIEATEAENER FTERE - AREHETHKE @ SciClone  USTE
EREEN—ED

SciClone Pharmaceuticals LLC (formerly known as SciClone Pharmaceuticals, Inc.),
a company incorporated in the State of California of the United States on May 4,
1990 and reincorporated in the State of Delaware of the United States on June 26,
2003, and our previous listing entity on NASDAQ. Upon completion of the Corporate
Reorganization, SciClone US is no longer part of the Group

BERETHARAA
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.

BRSBTS EALHEERBREAIRERALHEERZREIMN EfLE
the Option Incentive Plan, Post-IPO Option Plan and Post-IPO RSU Plan

R BIIEAF G AR E(E0.000055 T A & @ AR
ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with nominal value of US$0.00005
each

BFHEA

holder(s) of our Shares

SciClone Pharmaceuticals International Ltd. © —&K® 1992511 A16 B LM S &
RIEVEREARAR - BRFAOHEAR

SciClone Pharmaceuticals International Ltd., an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on November 16, 1992 and our Subsidiary
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